
AGENDA 

CITY OF ISANTI  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

TUESDAY, MAY 18, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL 

 

A. Call to Order 

B. Pledge of Allegiance 

C. Roll Call 

D. Public Comment 

E. Adopt Agenda 

 

F. Proclamations/Commendations/Certificate Awards 

1. Mayors Employer Luncheon 

 

G. Approve City Council Minutes 

1. May 4, 2021- Regular Meeting of the City Council 

2. April 6, 2021 Economic Development Authority Meeting Minutes 

3. April 20, 2021- Special Economic Development Authority Meeting Minutes 

 

H. Announcements      

1. Park, Recreation, & Culture Board Meeting      Tuesday, May 25, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 

2. CITY OFFICES CLOSED       Monday, May 31, 2021 

    (In Observance of Memorial Day) 

3. City Council Meeting        Tuesday, June1, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

4. EDA Meeting         Tuesday, June 1, 2021 

    (Following the City Council Meeting) 

 

I. Council Committee Reports 

 

J. Public Hearings 

 

K. Business Items 

City Administrator Josi Wood 

1. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving a Special Event Permit Application for Rum River Rods 11th 

Annual Summer Spectacular Car Show 

2. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving a Special Event Permit Application for BMC British Auto Car 

Show 

 

Finance Director Mike Betker 

3. Resolution 2021-XXX Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Agreements Documents 

Related to Lease Revenue Bond Issue 2021A (Jessica Green) 

 

L. Approve Consent Agenda 

1. Consider Payroll in the Amount of $125,892.32 Accounts Payable in the Amount of 

$237,261.59 

2. Request for Proposals for Fire Extinguisher and Fire Protection Services 

3. Resolution 2021-XXX Accepting Quote for Electrical Maintenance Services and Authorizing to 

Enter into a Contract for Electrical Maintenance Services 

4. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Application for Exempt Gambling Permit for Knights of 

Columbus 

5. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Temporary Liquor License for the Isanti Rodeo Association 



6. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Donation Box at Liquor Store 

7. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between the City of 

Isanti and Cambridge-Isanti School District #911 for the School Resource Officer Program 

8. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Painting of a Pickleball Court at Mattson Park 

9. Resolution 2021-XXX Calling for a Public Hearing on the Issuance of a Conduit Revenue Note 

and Authorizing the Publication of a Notice of Hearing (Art and Science Academy Project) 

10. Resolution 2021-XXX Authorizing to Enter into Agreement with Marie Ridgeway LICSW LLC 

for Wellness Consulting Services 

11. Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Short-Term Building Inspection Services Contract with Rum 

River Construction Consultants 

12. Resolution 2021-XXX Accepting Quote from AA Store Fixtures for Sales Floor Shelving at 

Liquor Store 

 

M. Other Communications 

1. April Police Department Reports 

2. April Code Enforcement Officer Report 

3. April Building Inspector Report 

4. May Engineering Status Report 

 

Adjournment 





MINUTES 
CITY OF ISANTI  

CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

TUESDAY, MAY 4, 2021 – 7:00 P.M. 

CITY HALL 

Mayor Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited. 

Members Present: Mayor Jeff Johnson, Councilors: Jimmy Gordon, Paul Bergley, Steve Lundeen and Dan 

Collison 

Members Absent: None 

Staff Present: City Administrator Josi Wood, Human Resources Director Katie Brooks, Finance Director Mike 

Betker, City Engineer Jason Cook, Community Development Director Sheila Sellman 

D. Public Comment

None

E. Adopt Agenda

• Add Business K.3 Fire District Training Discussion

• Remove Consent: L.14 Approving the Offer of FT Police Officer for Jesse Zajac

• Add Consent: L.14 Accepting Received Quotation for Liquor Store Refrigeration Systems

• Add: Closed session pursuant to MN Statute 13D.05

Motion by Lundeen, second by Bergley to adopt the agenda with the revisions listed above. Motion 

passed 5-0. Motion carried. 

F. Proclamations/Commendations/Certificate Award

1. 2020 Wastewater Treatment Award

Mayor Johnson shared that Isanti has been awarded the Waste Water Treatment award for a number

of years and it is a testament of the great staff in the Public Works department.

G. Approve City Council Minutes

1. March 23, 2021- Parks, Recreation and Culture Board Meeting

2. April 13, 2021- Special City Council Meeting

3. April 20, 2021- Regular Meeting of the City Council

4. April 20, 2021- Committee of the Whole Meeting

Motion by Lundeen, second by Bergley to approve minutes as presented. Motion passed 5-0. Motion 

carried. 

H. Announcements

1. Committee of the Whole Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 5:00 p.m. 

2. City Council Meeting Tuesday, May 18, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. 

3. Planning Commission Meeting Tuesday, May 18, 2021 

(Immediately following the City Council 

Meeting) 

G.1.



Page 2  5-4-2021 City Council Meeting 
 

I. Council Committee Reports 

Mayor Johnson stated that he attended the Athens Township Board meeting where they shared Isanti 

is doing a great job. 

 

J. Public Hearings 

None 

 

K. Business Items  

Community Development Director Sheila Sellman 

1. Ordinance-755 Amending City Code Chapter 87; Keeping of Certain Animals 

Community Development Director Sheila Sellman shared that this is to add Honeybees to the 

Ordinance. The ordinance includes the changes directed at April’s Committee of the Whole meeting 

with language that the City is not liable for hives when the City sprays for mosquitos and registration 

is required. The ordinance has been posted for the required 10 days. 

 

Lundeen stated that he would like to draw the line about keeping of certain animals. 

 

Motion by Lundeen, second by Bergley to approve ordinance as presented. Motion passed 5-0. 

Motion carried. 

 

City Engineer Jason Cook 

2. Resolution 2021-086 Awarding the Bid for the 2021 Storm System Maintenance Project 

City Engineer Jason Cook shared that four contractors were contacted to request for a bid for the 

2021 Storm System Maintenance Project. Two contractors submitted a bid by the deadline. 

Dirtworks is recommended to be awarded this project as the bid received is within the anticipated 

budget. 

 

Motion by Lundeen, second by Collison to approve resolution as presented. Motion passed 5-0. 

Motion carried. 

 

City Administrator Josi Wood 

3. Resolution 2021-102 Council Acknowledgement and Support of Fire District Training Exercises  

City Administrator Josi Wood shared that the Fire District plans to do a live burn training on 

Monday, May 10th. A prop will be brought it in the size of a skid load trailer made of metal, 

cardboard and wood in it to simulate a house fire where Firefighters will train putting it out. The 

training will use approximately 2,000 gallons of water and Fire Chief Al Jankovich has requested the 

fee for the water charges be waived for this training. 

 

Councilmember Lundeen stated he did not see a reason to charge the water fee for the training as it 

betters the department for the City. 

 

A motion was made by Lundeen to waive water fees for the training and any future training 

exercises for the Fire District as well as requests for training does not need to be approved by 

Council as long as no conflicts and proper notice to the City, seconded by Collison. Motion passed 

5-0. Motion carried. 

 

L. Approve Consent Agenda 

1. Payroll in the Amount of $113,687.03 Accounts Payable in the Amount of $427,016.93 

2. Resolution 2021-087 Approving a Mutual Aid Agreement Between the City of Isanti and Isanti 

County for the Sharing of Equipment and Personnel Resources 



Page 3 5-4-2021 City Council Meeting

3. Resolution 2021-088 Approving a Temporary 3.2 On-Sale Malt Liquor License for the Isanti

Lions Club for the 2021 Isanti Street Dances

4. Approval of Rights of First Refusal Agreement with UPS for City Owned Land PID 16.029.1400

5. Resolution 2021-089 Approving the dissolution of Joint and Cooperative Agreement, Joint

Planning Advisory Board, with the City of Cambridge

6. Resolution 2021- 090 Approving the Offer for Park and Rec Internship for Maizy Burk

7. Resolution 2021-091 Approving the Offer for Economic Development/ Marketing Intern Will

Bucheger

8. Resolution 2021- 092 Accepting Resignation for Building Official Steven Thorp

9. Resolution 2021-093 Amending the 2021 Capital Improvement Plan for the Isanti Community

Center

10. Resolution 2021-094 Approving New Position- Permit Technician

11. Resolution 2021-095 Accepting Donation for the Isanti Redbirds and Authorizing Expenditure

of Same

12. Resolution 2021-096 Authorizing Appraisal of Parcel 16.090.0102

13. Resolution 2021-097 Approving Request for Proposals for Interim and Backup Building

Inspection Services

14. Resolution 2021-098 Accepting Revised Quotation for Liquor Store Refrigeration Systems

14. LELS #217 & #416 Memorandum of Understanding- Vacation Carry Over

15. Resolution 2021-099 Support for and Authorization to Proceed with the Issuance Conduit Debt

Councilmember Gordon asked if the oven at the Community Center is a commercial oven. 

City Administrator Josi Wood stated that it is a commercial convection oven and the benefit of 

having the convection oven over using the range is that the natural gas does not need to be turned on 

and the pilot lights be lit. Part of the cost is the purchase of a range hood to come into compliance as 

there currently is not one. 

Motion by Bergley, second by Lundeen to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion passed 

5-0. Motion carried.

M. Other Communications

1. Draft Minutes for the April 27, 2021 Parks, Recreation and Culture Board Meeting

Mayor Johnson stated the Council was going into closed session pursuant to MN Statute 13D.05 at 

7:23 p.m. 

N. Closed Session

Motion made by Lundeen and seconded by Collison to move into Closed Session pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes Section 13D.05, subdivisions 2(b) and 3(b) for preliminary consideration of 
charges or allegations against a City employee and pursuant to the attorney-client privilege to obtain 
advice regarding potential imminent legal action related to the City’s allegations and defenses in an 
employment matter.  Motion passed 5-0.  Motion carried.

Meeting was closed at 7:24 p.m. and motion by Lundeen and seconded by Collison to recess the 
closed meeting and reopen at 8:11 p.m.  Motion passed 5-0.  Motion carried.

Upon reopening of the meeting, a motion was made by Lundeen to approve Resolution 2021-100 
Resolution Disciplining an Employee, seconded by Gordon. Motion passed 5-0. Motion carried.



Page 4 5-4-2021 City Council Meeting

A motion was made by Lundeen to approve Resolution 2021-101 Authorizing Interim 

Compensation to Assistant Liquor Store Manager Keith Lusk and Clerk I Gregory Fauskee, 

seconded by Collison. Motion passed 5-0. Motion carried. 

Adjournment 

A motion was made by Lundeen, seconded by Collison to adjourn. Motion passed 5-0. Motion 

carried. 

Meeting adjourned at 8:14 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 



Economic Development 

Meeting Minutes April 6, 2021 

1. Call to Order:  Mayor Johnson called the meeting to order at 7:28pm

a. Pledge of Allegiance

b. Roll Call: members Present: Jeff Johnson, Jimmy Gordon, Paul Bergley, Steve Lundeen,

Dan Collison, Justin Nielson (7:35pm) absent: Luke Merrill. Staff present: Sheila Sellman

Community Development Director, and Josi Wood City Administrator.
c. Agenda Modifications: None

d. Adopt Agenda: Motion by Lundeen 2nd by Collison to adopt the agenda, motion passed 5-0.

2. Approve Minutes of February 2, 2021 Regular Economic Development Authority Meeting:

Motion by Collison 2nd by Bergley to approve, motion passed 5-0.

3. Business Items

A. Second Amendment to Purchase Agreement with LTL LED, LLC: The EDA entered into a

purchase agreement with LTL LED, LLC to purchase two lots, LTL LED LLC needs to

change their name on the purchase agreement to Wolf River Industries, LLC this is their

affiliated entity. Motion by Lundeen, second by Collison to approved the second

amendment, motion passed 5-0.

B. Market Guide – Retail Academy:  Sellman gave a summary of  the Retail Academy. She

explained the market guide and a list of targeted businesses. She asked the EDA to approve a

membership to the ICSC (International Council of Shopping Centers) she explained this

membership will provide contacts for site selectors and real estate contacts. Motion by

Lundeen, Second by Bergley motion approved 6-0.

4. Other Business / Updates / Communications

5. Adjournment: Motion by Bergley second by Lundeen to adjourn, motion passed 6-0. Meeting

adjourned at 7:49pm.

Respectfully submitted by Sheila Sellman Community Development Director/EDA Secretary 

G.2.



Economic Development Authority 

Special Meeting Minutes 

April 20, 2021 

1. Call to Order: EDA President Jeff Johnson called the meeting to order at 6:33pm

a. Pledge of Allegiance

b. Roll Call: Members present: Jeff Johnson, Steve Lundeen, Dan Collison, Paul Bergley, Jimmy

Gordon (via Zoom) and Justin Nielson. Members Absent: Luke Merrill. Staff Present: Sheila

Sellman, Community Development Director, Josi Wood, City Administrator, Jaden Strand, City

Clerk, Mike Betker, Finance Director, Jason Cook, City Engineer.

Others present: Jessica Green Northland Securities.

c. Agenda Modifications: None

d. Adopt Agenda: Motion by Lundeen 2nd by Bergley and Collison to adopt the agenda, motion passed

6-0.

2. Resolution 2021-XX Establishing Economic Development District No. 2: Finance Director Mike

Betker introduced the resolution indicating this is the first step for the revenue bonds we are using to

build the liquor store. Jessica Green with Northland Securities reviewed the resolution stating this

resolution is for boundaries. Motion by Lundeen Second by Collison to approve the resolution,

motion passed 6-0.

3. Resolution 2021-XX Approving the Issuance of Public Project Lease Revenue Bonds, Series

2021A (City of Isanti, Minnesota Lease with Option to Purchase Project): Green introduced the

resolution. This resolution provides for the issuance and sale of lease revenue bonds for the liquor

store project. The plan is to sell the bonds the morning of May 18, 2021 with some flexibility based

on the market. She also reviewed the finance plan summary. Proceeds from the bonds will be issued

to finance the construction of a new municipal store building. The bonds will mature annually each

December 15 in the years 2022 through 2036. Interest on the bonds will be payable on June 15, 2022

and semiannually thereafter on each December 15 and June 15.

Motion by Lundeen to approve – Discussion on motion: Gordon had questions about why we are

bonding for such a high amount. Betker explained it is an amount up to not to exceed amount. He

further explained we are using the bonds to recoup the land purchase and a large escrow amount

which is rolled into the bond so we don’t have to tie up cash. Gordon asked if we used cash to

purchase the land, and Betker confirmed that we did. Betker explained that was the plan to begin

with is to pay ourselves back with the bond. Gordon asked if we could just bond for less since we

already paid for the land with cash. Betker explained that its best to use the bonds to pay ourselves

back so there is a cushion for the project. Gordon would like to see us be more aggressive to get the

lower interest rate. Motion seconded by Collison; Motion passed 5-1. Gordan NAY.

4. Adjournment: Motion by Lundeen to adjourn, second by Collison motion passed 6-0 meeting

adjourned at 6:52pm.

Respectfully submitted by Sheila Sellman, Community Development Director/Secretary 

G.3.



Memo for Council Action 

To: Mayor Johnson and Members of the City Council 

From: Alyssa Olson - Parks, Recreation, and Events Coordinator 

Date: May 18, 2021 

Subject: Resolution 2021-XXX Approving a Special Event Permit Request for the Rum River Rods 

11th Annual Summer Spectacular Car Show 

Background 

The Rum River Rods have submitted a special event permit application to host their annual Summer 

Spectacular Car Show on Main Street. The event, including setup and tear down, will take place Saturday, 

August 7, 2021 from 8am-4pm.   

Road closures are being requested along Main Street from the railroad tracks, west to 4th Avenue; 1 block 

North and South to 2nd Avenue and 1st Avenue. The event will precede the Downtown Isanti Street Dance and 

will utilize the same road blocks and restrooms. Speakers and a PA system will be used during the event. 

Event staff and volunteers will be responsible for cleaning up waste on the property after the event ahead of 

the Street Dance setup.  

The approximate attendance is 300-500. 

The event is free to attend and owners pay $10 per car to show. Money collected will support club expenses 

and event production.  

The complete application along with departmental review are attached. 

Staff Request 

City staff is requesting approval of the Rum River Rods 11th Annual Summer Spectacular Car Show Special 

Event Permit application and attachments. 

Attachments 

• Resolution 2021-XXX

• Special Event Application – Rum River Rods 11th Annual Summer Spectacular Car Show

K.1.



RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

 

APPROVING A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION FOR RUM RIVER RODS 11TH 

ANNUAL SUMMER SPECTACULAR CAR SHOW 

 

WHEREAS, Rum River Rods has submitted a Special Event application requesting a permit to host the 

11th Annual Summer Spectacular Car Show; and,  

 

WHEREAS, a one-day event is scheduled to take place on Main Street on Saturday, August 7; and,  

 

WHEREAS, event will take place Saturday, August 7 from 8:00 am to 4:00 pm; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the estimated number of people to be in attendance each day is 300-500; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the applicant will not be required to provide additional restrooms for the event; and,  

 

WHEREAS, road closures will be needed for a portion of Main Street W at the beginning of the railroad 

tracks to 2nd Avenue; and, 

 

WHEREAS, alley closures will be needed from 1st Avenue at the alley South of City Hall to the alley 

South of the Qwest building; and,   

 

WHEREAS, the applicant has submitted a complete request with the application materials; and,  

 

WHEREAS, public addressing systems and live entertainment will be utilized during the event;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 

Minnesota to hereby approve the special event permit request for Summer Spectacular Car Show; 

 

AND FURTHERMORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 

Minnesota that this Resolution is hereby the “Permit” for the above stated Special Event. 

  

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

 

 

              

Attest:        Mayor Jeff Johnson 

 

      

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 































SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS 

POLICY NUMBER: EFFECTIVE DATE: 

CVG1813-04 03/09/2021 

NUMBER TITLE 

MJIL 1000 (06-10) 

MD 001 (07-02) 

IL 00 03 (09�08) 

IL 00 17 (11-98) 

IL 00 21 (09-08) 

IL 02 45 (09-08) 

MIL 1214 (09-17) 

MDGL 1500 (03-14) 

CG 00 01 (04-13) 

COMMON 

Signature Page 

Commercial Lines Policy Declarations 

Calculation Of Premium 

Common Policy Conditions 

Nuclear Energy Liability Exclusion Endorsement (Broad Form) 

Minnesota Changes - Cancellation And Nonrenewal 

Trade Or Economic Sanctions 

GENERAL LIABILITY 

Commercial General Liability Policy Declarations 

Commercial General Liability Coverage Form 
CG 01 22 (12-07) Minnesota Changes - Contractual Liability Exclusion And Supplementary 

Payments 
CG 20 02 (11-85) Additional Insured - Club Members 
CG 20 11 (04-13) Additional Insured - Managers Or Lessors Of Premises 
CG 20 12 (04-13) Additional Insured - State Or Governmental Agency Or Subdivision Or 

Political Subdivision - Permits Or Authorizations 
CG 20 26 (04-13) Additional Insured - Designated Person or Organization 
CG 20 28 (04-13) Additional Insured - Lessor Of Leased Equipment 
CG 21 06 (05-14) Exclusion - Access Or Disclosure Of Confidential Or Personal 

Information And Data-Related Liability - With Limited Bodily Injury 

CG 21 16 

CG 21 35 

CG 21 47 

CG 21 55 

CG 21 73 

CG 21 96 

CG 26 05 

CG 26 81 

MGL 1266 

MGL 1319 

Exception 

(04-13) Exclusion - Designated Professional Services 
(10-01) Exclusion - Coverage C - Medical Payments 

(12-07) Employment-Related Practices Exclusion 
(09-99) Total Pollution Exclusion With A Hostile Fire Exception 
(01-15) Exclusion of Certified Acts of Terrorism 
(03-05) Silica Or Silica-Related Dust Exclusion 

(02-07) Minnesota Changes 

(12-04) Minnesota Changes - Duties Condition 

(08-14) Amended Duties And Representations Conditions 

(01-16) Exclusion - Unmanned Aircraft 

MGL 1346 (10-19) Exclusion - Abuse, Molestation, Or Exploitation 

MGL-TERR-2 (01-15)Confirmation of Exclusion of Certified Acts of Terrorism Coverage -

MIL 1301 (03-14) 

MIL 1303 (05-15) 

MIL 1304 (05-15) 

MD 0010702 

Terrorism Risk Insurance Act 

Exclusion - Fungi or Bacteria 

Exclusion - Asbestos 

Exclusion - Lead Liability 

Page 3 of 3 





Classifications And Premium 
Rate Advance Premium 

Prod/Comp Prem/ Prod/Comp 
Classification Code No. Premium Basis Prem/ Ops Ops Ops Ops 

REFER TO "COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EXTENSION OF DECLARATIONS" 

Total Advance Premium: $350 

Forms And Endorsements 

Forms and Endorsements applying to this Coverage Part and made a part of this policy at time of issue: 

SEE "SCHEDULE OF FORMS AND ENDORSEMENTS" 

These Declarations, together with the Common Policy Conditions, Coverage Form(s) and any 
endorsements, complete the above numbered policy. 

Countersigned: 

MDGL 1500 0314 

By: 
-----------------

DATE AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc., with its 
permission. 

Page 2 of 4 





LOC 

NO. 

001-001 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

EXTENSION OF DECLARATIONS 

CLASSIFICATION AND PREMIUM 

CLASSIFICATION CODE PREMIUM RATE 

NO. BASE Prem/ ,rod/Comp 
Ops Ops 

C::lubs-Civic, Service or Social- 41670 20 Incl. Incl. 
no Buildings or Premises owned Each 
br Leased Except for Office 
Purposes - Not-For-Profit 
Products-completed operations 
are subject to the General 
liggregate Limit 
TERRITORY: 502 

MDGL 1500 0314 

ADVANCE PREMIUM 
Prem/ Prod/Comp 

Ops Ops 

Incl. Incl. 

Page 4 of 4 







1 

Memo for Council Action 

To: Mayor Johnson and Members of the City Council 

From: Alyssa Olson, Parks, Recreation & Events Coordinator 

Date: May 18, 2021 

Subject: Resolution 2021-XXX Approving a Special Event Permit Application for BMC British 

Auto Car Show  

Background 

The City received a special event application from BMC British Auto which will be hosting a car show 

on their premises at 444 East Dual Blvd on Saturday, June 5, 2021 from 10:00 am to 3:00 pm. 

Organizers are expecting 75 people for the event. Show cars will be parked on the premises; spectators 

will park along both sides of East Dual Blvd. Event organizers anticipate their onsite restrooms to be 

adequate for the event. Their staff and volunteers will clean up after the event; the $100 clean up deposit 

has been submitted.  

Event organizers have indicated that they will be putting out ground signs the day of the event at the 

intersection of Heritage Blvd and East Dual Blvd and on their property; this use is allowed under City 

Code without a permit.  

A copy of the application and department approval has been attached for City Council review. 

Staff Request 

City staff is requesting approval of the BMC British Auto Car Show Special Event Permit application 

and attachments.  

Attachments 

• Resolution 2021-XXX

• Special Event Permit Application

K.2.



RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

 

APPROVING A SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT APPLICATION FOR BMC BRITISH AUTO 

CAR SHOW 

 

WHEREAS, BMC British Auto will be hosting a car show on Saturday, June 5th, 2021 from 

10:00 am to 3:00 pm on their premises at 444 East Dual Blvd in Isanti; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the estimated number of participants 75; and, 

 

WHEREAS, show cars will be parked on BMC premises with spectator parking on the street; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, event organizers have indicated they will put out signs which are allowed within 

City Code the day of the event and will remove them when the event has finished; and,  

 

WHEREAS, event staff and volunteers will clean-up after the event, and the organizers have 

submitted the $100 clean up deposit; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 

Minnesota to hereby approve the application for the BMC British Auto Car Show to be held on June 5, 

2021; 

 

AND FURTHERMORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Isanti, Minnesota that this Resolution is hereby the ‘Permit’ for the above stated Special Event. 

 

This Resolution hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

 

          

  ____________________________________ 

Attest:      Mayor Jeff Johnson 

 

____________________________________ 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 













C. We agree to procure, keep in force, and pay for special event insurance coverage,
from an insurer acceptable to the City oflsanti, for the duration of the above
described activities.

(Special Events Holder Initials Here) � 

D. By signing this RELEASE AND INDE1\1NIFICATION AGREEMENT, we

hereby expressly assume all such risks of injury, loss, or damage to us or any related 
third party, arising out of or in any way related to the above described activities, 

whether or not caused by the act, omission, negligence, or other fault of the City of 
Isanti, its officers, its employees, or by any other cause. 

(Special Event Holder Initials Here) -:/----

E. By signing this RELEASE AND INDE1\1NIFICATION AGREEMENT, we
further hereby exempt, release and discharge the City of Isanti, its officers, and its 
employees from any and all claims, demands, and actions for such injury, loss or 
damage to us or to any third party, arising out of or in any way related to the above 
described activities, whether or not caused by the act, omission, negligence, or other 
fault of the City oflsanti, its officers, its employees, or by any other cause. 

(Special Event Holder Initials Here) � 

F. We further agree to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the City oflsanti, its
officers, employees, insurers, and self insurance pool, from and against all liability,
claims, and demands, court costs and attorney fees, including those arising from any
third party claim asserted against the City of Isanti, its officers, employees, insurers
or self insurance pool, on account of injury, loss or damage, including without
limitation claims arising from bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, disease, death,
property damage or loss, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever, which arise out
of or are in any way related to the above described activities, whether or not caused
by our act, omission, negligence, or other fault of the City of Isanti, its officers, its
employees, or by any other cause.

(Special Event Holder Initials Here) � 

G. By signing this RELEASE AND INDE1\1NIFICATION AGREEMENT, we
hereby acknowledge and agree that said Agreement extends to all acts omissions, 
negligence, or other fault of the City of Isanti, its officers, and/or its employees, and 
that said Agreement is intended to be as broad and inclusive as is permitted by the 
laws of the State of Minnesota. If any portion thereof is held invalid, it is further 
agreed that the balance shall, notwithstanding, continue in full legal force and effect. 

(Special Event Holder Initials Here) �

City oflsanti 
110 1

st 
Avenue NW• PO Box 428 • Isanti, MN 55040 • Phone (763) 444-5512 • Fax (763) 444-5560 















13296833v1 

EXTRACT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA 

HELD:  May 18, 2021 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Isanti, Minnesota was duly called and held at the City Hall on May 18, 2021 at 7:00 o'clock 
P.M.

The following members were present: 

and the following were absent: 

Member ________________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT, LEASE AGREEMENT AND 

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING AND ALLOCATING SMALL ISSUER 
REBATE EXCEPTION AUTHORITY 

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti, Minnesota (the "City"), is authorized, pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 465.71, to enter into lease purchase agreements; 

WHEREAS, the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti, Minnesota, a 
body corporate and politic (the "Authority") has agreed to enter into a Lease Agreement dated as 
of June 1, 2021 (the "Lease") with the City pursuant to which the Authority will provide for the 
acquisition and betterment of a municipal liquor store (the "Project") to be used by the City; 

WHEREAS, in order to carry out the transaction, (1) the City will Ground Lease the land, 
upon which the Project is to be constructed, to the Authority pursuant to a Ground Lease 
Agreement executed by the City, dated as of June 1, 2021 (the "Ground Lease"), and (2) the 
Authority will lease the Land and the Project back to the City pursuant to the Lease; 

WHEREAS, the Authority will issue its $3,280,000 Public Project Lease Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2021A (City of Isanti, Minnesota, Lease With Option to Purchase Project) (the "Bonds") 
to provide funds to finance the Project pursuant to an Indenture of Trust dated as of June 1, 2021 
(the "Indenture") between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee, setting 
forth the form and details of the Bonds and their issuance and pledging the rental payments 
derived from the Lease to the payment of the Bonds; 

WHEREAS, the City is an obligated person under the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 (the 
"Rule") promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to the Securities and 
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and is therefore subject to continuing disclosure 
requirements under the Rule and accordingly, the City will enter into a Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking (the "Continuing Disclosure Undertaking") relating to the Bonds; 

K.3.



13296833v1 
 

 2 
 

WHEREAS, unless an exception is available, bonds which are tax-exempt are subject to 
the federal arbitrage requirement of rebating earnings in excess of the bond yield on certain 
investments; ordinarily bonds are subject to rebate if issued by a governmental unit that lacks 
general taxing powers, such as Authority; and if the Authority issues bonds on behalf of a 
governmental unit with general taxing powers, such as the City, it will be treated as having 
general taxing powers if the bonds do not exceed the lesser of $5,000,000 or such amount of the 
$5,000,000 small issuer limitation as a governmental unit with general taxing powers may 
allocate to the Authority; and the City is a governmental unit with general taxing powers 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota, as follows: 

1. Authorization of Bonds; Documents Presented.  The Authority proposes to issue 
its Bonds payable from rental payments to be made by the City under the Lease.  The Bonds 
shall bear interest at the rates as are prescribed by the Indenture.  Forms of the following 
documents (collectively, the "Bond Documents") relating to the Bonds and the Project have been 
submitted to the City Council and are now on file in the office of the Administrator: 

(a) the Ground Lease; 

(b) the Lease; and 

(c) the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking. 

2. Approval and Execution of Bond Documents.  The Mayor and the Administrator 
are hereby authorized and directed to execute, and deliver, on behalf of the City the Bond 
Documents in substantially the forms on file with the Administrator.  All of the provisions of the 
Bond Documents when executed and delivered as authorized herein shall be deemed to be a part 
of this resolution as fully and to the same extent as if incorporated herein and shall be in full 
force and effect from the date of execution and delivery thereof. 

3. Approval of Indenture.  The City hereby approves the Indenture and the Bonds 
described therein (collectively, the "Related Documents") in substantially the forms submitted to 
the City. 

4. Authorized City Representative.  The City Administrator is hereby designated and 
authorized to act on behalf of the City as the City Representative, as defined in the Indenture. 

5. Furnishing of Certificates and Proceedings.  The Mayor and Administrator and 
other officers of the City are authorized and directed to prepare and furnish to the purchaser of 
the Bonds and Bond Counsel, certified copies of all proceedings and records of the City relating 
to the Bonds, and such other affidavits and certificates as may be required to show the facts 
relating to the legality of the Bonds as such facts appear from the books and records in the 
officers' custody and control or as otherwise known to them; and all such certified copies, 
certificates and affidavits, including any heretofore furnished, shall constitute representations of 
the City as to the truth of all statements contained therein. 



13296833v1 
 

 3 
 

6. Continuing Disclosure.  The City is the sole obligated person with respect to the 
Bonds.  The City hereby agrees, in accordance with the provisions of Rule 15c2-12 (the "Rule"), 
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "Commission") pursuant to the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking (the 
"Undertaking") hereinafter described to: 

(a) Provide or cause to be provided to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 
(the "MSRB") by filing at www.emma.msrb.org in accordance with the Rule, certain annual 
financial information and operating data in accordance with the Undertaking.  The City reserves 
the right to modify from time to time the terms of the Undertaking as provided therein. 

(b) Provide or cause to be provided to the MSRB notice of the occurrence of certain 
events with respect to the Bonds in not more than ten (10) business days after the occurrence of 
the event, in accordance with the Undertaking. 

(c) Provide or cause to be provided to the MSRB notice of a failure by the City to 
provide the annual financial information with respect to the City described in the Undertaking, in 
not more than ten (10) business days following such occurrence. 

(d) The City agrees that its covenants pursuant to the Rule set forth in this paragraph 
and in the Undertaking is intended to be for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds and shall be 
enforceable on behalf of such Holders; provided that the right to enforce the provisions of these 
covenants shall be limited to a right to obtain specific enforcement of the City's obligations under 
the covenants. 

The Mayor and Administrator of the City, or any other officer of the City authorized to 
act in their place (the "Officers") are hereby authorized and directed to execute on behalf of the 
City the Undertaking in substantially the form presented to the City Council subject to such 
modifications thereof or additions thereto as are (i) consistent with the requirements under the 
Rule, (ii) required by the Purchaser of the Bonds, and (iii) acceptable to the Officers. 

7. Finding.  The City hereby finds, determines and declares that (1) the Authority is 
issuing its Bonds on behalf of the City within the meaning of Section 148(f)(4)(C)(iv) of the 
federal Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), (2) the Authority is therefore 
treated as a subordinate entity of the City for purposes of such Section, and (3) the aggregate face 
amount of the Bonds does not exceed the lesser of $5,000,000 or the amount which, when added 
to the aggregate amount of other issues issued by the Authority in 2021, is allocated to the 
Authority in paragraph 8 of this resolution. 

8. Allocation.  The City hereby allocates to the Authority a $3,280,000 portion of the 
City's $5,000,000 limitation under Section 148(f)(4)(C)(i)(IV) of the Code on the aggregate face 
amount of tax-exempt bonds (other than private activity bonds) issued by the City during the 
calendar year 2021.  Such allocation is made solely with respect to the Bonds, is irrevocable and 
is made before the issuance of the Bonds.  Said $3,280,000 allocated to the Authority bears a 
reasonable relationship to the benefits received by the City from the Bonds issued by the 
Authority, because the Bonds finance the Project to be located in, leased to, and used by the City.  



13296833v1 
 

 4 
 

The Authority shall accept this allocation by issuing its Bonds and making a statement in its 
Nonarbitrage Certificate relating to the Bonds. 

9. Aggregation.  The City and Authority will be aggregated and treated as one issuer 
for purposes of said $5,000,000 limitation, and together will not issue in 2021 more than 
$5,000,000 aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt bonds (other than private activity bonds). 

10. Modifications to Documents.  The approval hereby given to the various Bond 
Documents and Related Documents referred to above includes approval of such additional 
details therein as may be necessary and appropriate and such modifications thereof, deletions 
therefrom and additions thereto as may be necessary and appropriate and approved by the City 
Attorney and the City officials authorized herein to execute said documents.  Said City officials 
are hereby authorized to approve said changes on behalf of the City.  The execution of any 
instrument by the appropriate officer or officers of the City herein authorized shall be conclusive 
evidence of the approval of such documents in accordance with the terms hereof.  In the absence 
of the Mayor or Administrator, any of the documents authorized by this resolution to be executed 
on behalf of the City may be executed by the Acting Mayor or the Acting Administrator, 
respectively. 

11. Severability.  If any section, paragraph or provision of this resolution shall be held 
to be invalid or unenforceable for any reason, the invalidity or unenforceability of such section, 
paragraph or provision shall not affect any of the remaining provisions of this resolution. 

12. Headings.  Headings in this resolution are included for convenience of reference 
only and are not a part hereof, and shall not limit or define the meaning of any provision hereof. 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by member 
________________, and upon vote being taken thereon the following voted in favor thereof: 

and the following voted against the same: 

whereupon the resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 



13296833v1 
 

 5 
 

Adopted by the City Council of the City of Isanti, Isanti County, Minnesota, on May 18, 
2021. 

_______________________________________ 
Mayor 
 

Attest:___________________ 
 City Administrator 
 



13296833v1 
 

 6 
 

STATE OF MINNESOTA  ) 
COUNTY OF ISANTI  ) SS 
CITY OF ISANTI ) 

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting Administrator of the City of Isanti, 

Minnesota, hereby certify that I have carefully compared and attached the foregoing extract of 

minutes of a regular meeting of the City Council held in May 18, 2021, with the original thereof 

on file and of record in my office and the same is a full, true and complete transcript therefrom 

insofar as the same relates to the execution of a Ground Lease Agreement, a Lease Agreement, a 

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking and allocating small issuer rebate exception authority. 

WITNESS my hand on May 18, 2021. 

 

_______________________________________ 
City Administrator 

 



13239178v1 
 

 

This Ground Lease was recorded with the Isanti County Recorder's Office on ________, 2021, 
as document number _________. 

GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

Between 

CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA 
As Lessor 

and 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ISANTI, 
MINNESOTA 

As Lessee 

Dated as of June 1, 2021 

 
 
 
 
This Instrument Drafted By: 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP (MLI) 
2200 IDS Center 
80 South 8th Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 



13239178v1 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Page 

 

 -i-  
 

ARTICLE I DEMISE OF LAND AND WARRANTIES........................................ 1 
Section 1.01 Demise ..................................................................................... 1 
Section 1.02 Warranties ................................................................................ 1 
Section 1.03 Lessee's Warranties .................................................................. 2 

ARTICLE II TERM AND RENT ............................................................................. 2 
Section 2.01 Term ......................................................................................... 2 
Section 2.02 Rent .......................................................................................... 2 
Section 2.03 Lease ........................................................................................ 2 

ARTICLE III USE OF PREMISES; ADDITIONAL COVENANTS ....................... 2 
Section 3.01 Use ........................................................................................... 2 
Section 3.02 Quiet Enjoyment ...................................................................... 2 
Section 3.03 Assignment and Subletting ...................................................... 2 
Section 3.04 Additional Covenants............................................................... 2 
Section 3.05 Environmental Matters............................................................. 3 
Section 3.06 Release of Land........................................................................ 3 

ARTICLE IV LESSEE'S DEFAULT; REMEDIES ................................................... 3 
Section 4.01 Lessee's Default ....................................................................... 3 
Section 4.02 Lessor's Remedies .................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE V BINDING EFFECT; SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS ....................... 3 
Section 5.01 Binding Effect .......................................................................... 3 
Section 5.02 Applicable Law ........................................................................ 3 

EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND ...................................................... A-1 



13239178v1 
 

 

 

THIS GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into as of June 1, 2021 (the 
"Ground Lease"), by and between the CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA, a municipal 
corporation and political subdivision duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of 
Minnesota, as Lessor (the "Lessor") and the ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA, a public body corporate and politic and duly organized 
and existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota, as Lessee (the "Lessee"). 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

In consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto agree as 
follows: 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEMISE OF LAND AND WARRANTIES 

Section 1.01 Demise.  Subject to and upon the terms, conditions, covenants and 
undertakings hereinafter set forth, Lessor hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from 
Lessor, Lessor's interest in the real property legally described on Exhibit A attached here, located 
in Isanti County, Minnesota (hereinafter called the "Land"). 

Section 1.02 Warranties.  Lessor covenants and warrants to Lessee: 

(1) That Lessor has authority to enter into, execute and deliver this Ground Lease, 
and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Ground Lease; 

(2) That Lessor has determined that the Land can best be made suitable and 
convenient for public purposes through Lessor's entering into this Ground Lease 
and the Lease (as hereinafter defined), and the completion of the transactions 
contemplated thereby; 

(3) That the Land is not subject to any dedication, easement, right of way, reservation 
in patent, covenant, condition, restriction, lien or encumbrance which would 
prohibit or materially interfere with the construction of certain buildings 
(hereinafter called the "Improvements") on the Land, as contemplated by the 
Lease Agreement by and between Lessor and Lessee, of even date herewith 
(hereinafter called the "Lease"); 

(4) That all taxes, assessments or impositions of any kind with respect to the Land, 
except current taxes, have been paid in full; 

(5) That the Land is properly zoned for the purpose of the Improvements; and 

(6) That Lessor has authority to enter into, execute and deliver the Lease, and has 
duly authorized its execution and delivery. 



13239178v1 
 

 

2 
 

Section 1.03 Lessee's Warranties.  Lessee covenants and warrants to Lessor that Lessee 
has authority to enter into, execute and deliver this Ground Lease and the Lease, and has duly 
authorized the execution and delivery of this Ground Lease and the Lease. 

ARTICLE II 
 

TERM AND RENT 

Section 2.01 Term.  The term of this Ground Lease shall commence as of the day and 
year first above written, and shall end on December 15, 2046, subject to earlier termination as 
provided in the Lease. 

Section 2.02 Rent.  The rent shall be One Dollar ($1.00) payable in advance on the date 
hereof. 

Section 2.03 Lease.  In further consideration of the authorization, execution and 
delivery of this Ground Lease by each of the parties, the parties have entered into the Lease and 
have agreed to carry out and perform their obligations thereunder. 

ARTICLE III 
 

USE OF PREMISES; ADDITIONAL COVENANTS 

Section 3.01 Use.  Lessee shall not use or permit the use of the Land for any unlawful 
purpose. 

Section 3.02 Quiet Enjoyment.  Lessor covenants that upon Lessee's paying the rent 
reserved herein, and performing all conditions and covenants set forth in this Ground Lease and 
the Lease, Lessee shall and may peaceably have, hold and enjoy the Land for the term of this 
Ground Lease.  Lessee covenants that upon expiration of this Ground Lease, either on the date 
specified in Section 2.01 or earlier pursuant to the terms of the Lease, it shall give Lessor 
peaceable possession of the Land, together with the Improvements constructed thereon pursuant 
to the Lease. 

Section 3.03 Assignment and Subletting.  Lessee shall have the right to assign or 
mortgage its interest in this Ground Lease and Land, and to sublet the Land in accordance with 
the Lease. 

Section 3.04 Additional Covenants.  In the event that any person or entity, however 
organized (other than Lessee or any assignee of Lessee), shall be determined to hold any interest 
that in any manner affects Lessor's good and merchantable title to the Land, Lessor shall use its 
best efforts to acquire the interest in the Land so held, such acquisition to be made at Lessor's 
sole cost and expense.  Lessor hereby agrees to save and keep harmless Lessee, or any assignee 
of Lessee, from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, damages, penalties, claims, 
actions, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) of whatever kind and nature, 
imposed on, incurred by or asserted against Lessee, or any assignee of Lessee, that in any way 
relate to or arise out of the assertion of any interest affecting Lessor's good and merchantable title 



13239178v1 
 

 

3 
 

to the Land by any person or entity, however organized (other than Lessee or any assignee of 
Lessee). 

Section 3.05 Environmental Matters.  Lessor will hold Lessee harmless from and 
indemnify and defend Lessee against any claims brought by any party involving any 
environmental condition of the Land.  The term "claim" shall include remediation costs, damage 
costs, fines, penalties, forfeitures, administrative costs, consent agreements and orders, attorneys' 
fees, consultant fees and laboratory fees. 

Section 3.06 Release of Land.  Lessee shall have the right to release Land from this 
Ground Lease as provided in Section 8.7 of the Lease. 

ARTICLE IV 
 

LESSEE'S DEFAULT; REMEDIES 

Section 4.01 Lessee's Default.  The following shall be an "event of default" or a 
"default" hereunder:  if Lessee shall fail to (i) pay the rent provided herein, or (ii) observe or 
perform any of the obligations of Lessee otherwise provided herein. 

Section 4.02 Lessor's Remedies.  Upon the occurrence of an event of default by Lessee 
hereunder, which shall remain uncured for thirty days after receipt by Lessee of written notice of 
such event of default, Lessor may thereafter or any time subsequently during the existence of 
such breach or default; (i) enter into and upon the Land and repossess the same, expelling and 
removing therefrom all persons and property, and (ii) terminate this Ground Lease. 

ARTICLE V 
 

BINDING EFFECT; SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

Section 5.01 Binding Effect.  This Ground Lease shall be binding upon, and inure to the 
benefit of, the parties hereto, and their successors and assigns. 

Section 5.02 Applicable Law.  This Ground Lease shall be interpreted and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota. 



13239178v1 
 

 

4 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Ground Lease 
Agreement as of the date first above written. 

 

CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA, Lessor 

By ____________________________________ 
     Its Mayor 

By ____________________________________ 
     Its City Administrator 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ISANTI ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________________, 
2021, by Jeff Johnson and Josi Wood, the Mayor and City Administrator, respectively, of the 
City of Isanti, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota, on 
behalf of said City. 

__________________________ 
Notary Public 

Signature and notary page to Ground Lease Agreement. 



13239178v1 
 

 

5 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF 
ISANTI, MINNESOTA 
Lessee 

By ____________________________________ 
 Its President 

By  ____________________________________ 
 Its Secretary 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ISANTI ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________________, 
2021, by ________________________ and _____________________, the President and the 
Secretary, respectively, of the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota, a public body corporate and politic of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of said 
Authority. 

__________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Signature and notary page to Ground Lease Agreement. 
 



13239178v1 
 

 

A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Legal Description of Land 
 

All that part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 29, Township 
35, Range 23, described as follows: Beginning at the Southwest corner of the Northwest Quarter 
of the Southeast Quarter; thence North along the West line of said Northwest Quarter of 
Southeast Quarter a distance of 375 feet; thence South 89 degrees 57 minutes 50 seconds East 
580.8 feet; thence South 1 degree 16 minutes 15 seconds East 375 feet and to the South line of 
said Northwest Quarter of Southeast Quarter; thence West along said South line 580.8 feet, more 
or less, and to the Southwest corner of said Northwest Quarter of said Southeast Quarter, being 
the point of beginning and there to terminate.  

Together with a nonexclusive easement for ingress, egress and utility purposes over and 
across the South 295 feet of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 29, 
Township 35, Range 23 (as measured at right angles to the South line of said Northeast Quarter 
of Southeast Quarter), lying easterly of the easterly right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway 
No. 65 and westerly of a line drawn parallel with and distant 66 feet easterly of said easterly 
right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway No. 65 (as measured at right angles to said easterly 
right-of-way line).  

And also including a nonexclusive easement for ingress, egress and utility purposes over and 
across the South 66 feet of that part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
29, Township 35, Range 23, lying easterly of the East right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway 
No. 65, as measured at right angles to the South line of said Northeast Quarter of Southwest 
Quarter, Isanti County, Minnesota. 



13239179v2 
 

 

LEASE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ISANTI, 
MINNESOTA 

 
as Landlord 

and 

CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA 
as Tenant 

Dated as of June 1, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP (MLI) 
2200 IDS Center 
80 South 8th Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 



13239179v2 
 

 i 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS .................................................................... 2 
Section 1.1. Definitions............................................................................................ 2 
Section 1.2. Exhibits ................................................................................................ 6 

ARTICLE II REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES ..................... 7 
Section 2.1. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of Tenant ....................... 7 
Section 2.2. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of Landlord .................... 8 

ARTICLE III ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF PROJECT ............................ 10 
Section 3.1. Agreement to Construct the Project ................................................... 10 
Section 3.2. Agreement to Issue Bonds; Application of Bond Proceeds ............... 10 
Section 3.3. Disbursements from the Construction Fund ...................................... 12 
Section 3.4. Obligation of the Parties to Cooperate in Furnishing 

Documents to Trustee ........................................................................ 12 
Section 3.5. Establishment of Completion Date .................................................... 12 
Section 3.6. Landlord Required to Pay Project Costs in Event Construction 

Fund Insufficient ................................................................................ 12 
Section 3.7. Remedies to be Pursued Against Contractors and 

Subcontractors and Their Sureties ..................................................... 12 
Section 3.8. Investment of Construction Fund and Reserve Fund Moneys 

Permitted ............................................................................................ 13 
Section 3.9. Liens and Encumbrances ................................................................... 13 

ARTICLE IV TERM OF LEASE ......................................................................................... 15 
Section 4.1. Lease Term......................................................................................... 15 
Section 4.2. Possession and Enjoyment ................................................................. 15 
Section 4.3. Termination by Tenant ....................................................................... 15 
Section 4.4. Intent to Continue Lease Term; Appropriations and Property 

Taxes .................................................................................................. 15 
Section 4.5. Effect of Termination ......................................................................... 15 
Section 4.6. Termination of Lease Term ............................................................... 16 

ARTICLE V RENTAL PAYMENTS ................................................................................. 17 
Section 5.1. Rental Payments................................................................................. 17 
Section 5.2. Place of Payment of Rental Payments ............................................... 17 
Section 5.3. Additional Rental Payments .............................................................. 17 
Section 5.4. Rental Payments to be Unconditional ................................................ 18 
Section 5.5. Current Expense ................................................................................. 18 

ARTICLE VI INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION .................................................. 20 
Section 6.1. Liability Insurance ............................................................................. 20 
Section 6.2. Property Insurance ............................................................................. 20 
Section 6.3. Worker's Compensation Insurance .................................................... 20 
Section 6.4. Requirements For All Insurance ........................................................ 20 
Section 6.5. Indemnification; Hazardous Substance .............................................. 21 
Section 6.6. Damage to or Destruction or Condemnation of Project ..................... 22 

 



13239179v2 
 

ii 
 

ARTICLE VII OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF TENANT ....................................................... 23 
Section 7.1. Use; Permits ....................................................................................... 22 
Section 7.2. Maintenance of Project by Tenant ..................................................... 23 
Section 7.3. Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges................. 23 
Section 7.4. Advances ............................................................................................ 23 
Section 7.5. Landlord Access to Project ................................................................ 24 
Section 7.6. Transfer of Functions ......................................................................... 24 

ARTICLE VIII TITLE ............................................................................................................ 24 
Section 8.1. Title .................................................................................................... 25 
Section 8.2. Security Interest ................................................................................. 25 
Section 8.3. Liens ................................................................................................... 24 
Section 8.4. Installation of Tenant's Equipment .................................................... 25 
Section 8.5. Modification of Project ...................................................................... 26 
Section 8.6. Easements and Utility Access ............................................................ 26 
Section 8.7. Release of Unimproved Land ............................................................ 27 
Section 8.8. Covenant For the Benefit of the Bondholders ................................... 27 

ARTICLE IX PROJECT WARRANTIES ........................................................................... 28 
Section 9.1. Selection of Project ............................................................................ 28 
Section 9.2. Construction and Maintenance of Project .......................................... 28 
Section 9.3. Contractors' Warranties ...................................................................... 28 
Section 9.4. Disclaimer of Warranties ................................................................... 28 

ARTICLE X PREPAYMENT ............................................................................................. 29 
Section 10.1. When Available ................................................................................. 29 
Section 10.2. Exercise of Purchase Option .............................................................. 29 
Section 10.3. Release of Landlord's Interest ............................................................ 29 
Section 10.4. Defeasance ......................................................................................... 29 
Section 10.5. Partial Prepayment or Defeasance ..................................................... 30 
Section 10.6. Exercise of Partial Prepayment or Defeasance Option ...................... 30 
Section 10.7. Credit for Partial Prepayment or Defeasance ..................................... 30 

ARTICLE XI ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, MORTGAGING AND SELLING .......... 31 
Section 11.1. Assignment by Landlord .................................................................... 31 
Section 11.2. Assignment and Subleasing by Tenant .............................................. 31 
Section 11.3. Restriction on Mortgage or Sale of Project by Tenant ...................... 31 

ARTICLE XII EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES ................................................ 32 
Section 12.1. Events of Default Defined ................................................................. 32 
Section 12.2. Remedies on Default .......................................................................... 33 
Section 12.3. Return of Project ................................................................................ 34 
Section 12.4. No Remedy Exclusive........................................................................ 34 
Section 12.5. Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses .............................. 34 
Section 12.6. Late Charge ........................................................................................ 34 
Section 12.7. Effect of Waiver ................................................................................. 34 

ARTICLE XIII ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS ............................................................. 35 
Section 13.1. Notices ............................................................................................... 35 
Section 13.2. Financial Information......................................................................... 35 



13239179v2 
 

iii 
 

Section 13.3. Binding Effect .................................................................................... 35 
Section 13.4. Severability ........................................................................................ 35 
Section 13.5. Amendments, Changes and Modifications ........................................ 35 
Section 13.6. Captions ............................................................................................. 35 
Section 13.7. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments ................................ 35 
Section 13.8. Execution In Counterparts ................................................................. 35 
Section 13.9. Applicable Law .................................................................................. 35 

 
EXHIBIT A          DESCRIPTION OF LAND, PROJECT IMPROVEMENTS AND 

PROJECT EQUIPMENT............................................................................. A-1 
EXHIBIT B SCHEDULE OF RENTAL PAYMENTS ................................................... B-1 
EXHIBIT C DRAW REQUEST CERTIFICATE ............................................................ C-1 
 



13239179v2 
 

 

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT (the "Lease") is dated as of June 1, 2021, and is between 
the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti , Minnesota, a public body corporate 
and politic, as Landlord (the "Landlord"), whose address is City Hall, 110 1st Avenue NW, Isanti, 
Minnesota 55040-7372, and the City of Isanti, a municipal corporation and political subdivision 
of the State of Minnesota, as Tenant (the "Tenant"), whose address is City Hall, 110 1st Avenue 
NW, Isanti, Minnesota 55040-7372: 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Tenant is authorized by law to lease real and personal property as are 
needed to carry out its governmental functions; and 

WHEREAS, Tenant has determined that it is necessary for it to lease from Landlord 
under this Lease certain real and personal property (the "Project") for purposes of financing the 
Project; and 

WHEREAS, the Landlord is willing to finance the acquisition and betterment of the 
Project and to lease, or (in the case of the Land) sublease, the Project to Tenant, and the Tenant is 
willing to rent the same from Landlord, all pursuant to this Lease. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in the joint and mutual exercise of their powers, and in 
consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the parties hereto recite and agree as 
follows: 

  



13239179v2 
 

2 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND EXHIBITS 

Section 1.1. Definitions.  Each term defined in the Indenture which is used but not 
otherwise defined herein shall have the same meaning in this Lease as is prescribed for that term 
in the Indenture.  Unless the context otherwise clearly requires, the terms defined in this Section 
shall, for all purposes of this Lease, have the meanings herein specified. 

Act:  Collectively, the Landlord Powers Act and the Tenant Powers Act, as amended 
from time to time. 

Additional Rental Payments: The same as defined in Section 5.3 hereof. 

Bond Closing:  The date the Bonds are issued and delivered to the original purchaser. 

Bond Counsel:  The firm of Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP, in Minneapolis, Minnesota, 
or any other attorney or firm of attorneys nationally recognized as experienced in matters relating 
to the tax-exempt financing of projects within the City and acceptable to the Landlord and the 
Tenant. 

Bond Fund:  The Bond Fund created pursuant to Section 5.02 of the Indenture. 

Bond Resolution:  The resolution adopted by the Landlord's Board of Commissioners, its 
governing body, on May 18, 2021, authorizing issuance and sale of the Series 2021A Bonds, as 
the same may be amended, modified or supplemented by any amendments or modifications 
thereof. 

Bonds:  The Series 2021A Bonds and Additional Bonds. 

Business Day:  Any day other than a Saturday, Sunday, legal holiday or a day on which 
banking institutions in the city in which the principal corporate office of the Trustee is located 
are authorized by law or executive order to be closed. 

City:  The City of Isanti, Minnesota. 

Code:  The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

Completion Date:  The date described in Section 3.5, evidencing completion of the 
Project. 

Construction Fund:  The Construction Fund created pursuant to Section 4.02 of the 
Indenture for the purpose of accounting for proceeds of the Bonds used to pay Project Costs. 

Contractor:  Any contractor from which Landlord has ordered or will order or with which 
Tenant has contracted or will contract for the acquisition, construction and installation of any 
portion of the Project. 



13239179v2 
 

3 
 

County:  Isanti County, Minnesota. 

Date of Original Issuance:  June 16, 2021. 

Environmental Law:  The Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and 
Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq.; the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. 
§6901 et seq.; the Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. App. §1804 et seq., the 
Federal Water Pollution Control Act, 33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq., the Clean Water Act, 33 U.S.C. 
§1321 et seq. the Clean Air Act, 42 U.S.C. §7401 et seq., the Minnesota Environmental 
Response and Liability Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 115B, the Minnesota Petroleum Tank 
Release Cleanup Act, Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 115C, and any other federal, state, county, 
municipal, local or other statute, law, ordinance or regulation which may relate to or deal with 
human health or the environment, all as may be from time to time amended. 

Fiscal Year:  The fiscal year of the Tenant, commencing January 1 of a given year and 
extending through December 31 of the same year. 

Governmental Unit:  A "governmental unit" within the meaning of Section 141 of the 
Code. 

Ground Lease:  The Ground Lease Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2021, between Tenant, 
as lessor and Landlord, as lessee, whereby Tenant leases the Land to Landlord. 

Hazardous Substances:  Asbestos, ureaformaldehyde, polychlorinated biphenyls 
("PCBs"), nuclear fuel or material, chemical waste, radioactive material, explosives, known 
carcinogens, petroleum products and by-products and other dangerous, toxic or hazardous 
pollutants, contaminants, chemicals, materials or substances listed or identified in, or regulated 
by, any Environmental Law. 

Holder(s):  The registered owner(s) of Bonds on the bond register maintained by the 
Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. 

Independent Counsel:  An attorney duly admitted to the practice of law before the highest 
court of the State who is not a full-time employee of Landlord or Tenant. 

Independent Engineer:  An engineer or engineering firm or an architect or architectural 
firm qualified to practice the profession of engineering or architecture under the laws of the State 
and who is not a full-time employee of Tenant or Landlord. 

Indenture:  The Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 1, 2021, between the Landlord and 
U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, as initial Trustee thereunder, pursuant to 
which the Series 2021A Bonds are issued. 

Interest Payment Date:  For the Series 2021A Bonds, each December 15 and June 15, 
commencing June 15, 2022. 

Land:  The real property subleased to the Tenant under the Ground Lease and described 
in Exhibit A hereto. 



13239179v2 
 

4 
 

Landlord: Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti, Minnesota, a public 
body corporate and politic of the State, its successors and assigns. 

Landlord Powers Act:  Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.090 through 469.1082 and all 
powers granted to the Landlord therein. 

Landlord Representative:  The Landlord Representative as defined in the Indenture. 

Lease:  This Lease Agreement and all amendments thereto. 

Net Proceeds:  Any property insurance proceeds or condemnation award paid with 
respect to the Project, net of the expenses incurred in the collection thereof. 

Non-appropriation:  The failure of the governing body of Tenant to appropriate money 
for any Fiscal Year of Tenant sufficient for the continued performance and discharge by the 
Tenant of its obligations under this Lease (including Tenant's obligations to make Rental 
Payments hereunder); provided, that such Non-appropriation shall only be deemed to exist and 
be effective hereunder if declared in and evidenced by the passage of a resolution of the City 
Council of the Tenant specifically stating Tenant will no longer appropriate any moneys to pay 
the Rental Payments due under this Lease for a designated upcoming Fiscal Year and all 
subsequent Fiscal Years. 

Payment Date:  Any date on which a Rental Payment is required to be paid as provided in 
Section 5.1 and as shown on the attached Exhibit B. 

Permitted Encumbrances:  As of any particular time:  (i) liens for taxes and assessments 
not then delinquent, or which Tenant may, pursuant to provisions of Section 7.3, permit to 
remain unpaid, (ii) this Lease, the Ground Lease, the Indenture and amendments hereto or 
thereto, (iii) Landlord's interest in the Project, (iv) any mechanic's, laborer's, materialmen's, 
supplier's or vendor's lien or right not filed or perfected in the manner prescribed by law, and any 
such lien which Tenant may, pursuant to Article VIII, permit to remain unpaid, (v) utility, access, 
and other easements and rights-of-way, restrictions, and exceptions affecting the Land existing as 
of the date hereof, (vi) such minor defects, irregularities, encumbrances, easements, rights-of-
way, and clouds on title as normally exist with respect to property similar in character to the 
Land and as do not in the aggregate materially impair the property affected thereby for the 
purposes for which it was acquired, and (vii) building, zoning, and subdivision laws. 

Plans and Specifications:  The plans and specifications for the Project as in existence on 
the date of issuance of the Bonds and approved by the Tenant, together with any additions 
thereto or modifications thereof approved by all such parties. 

Principal Payment Date:  For the Series 2021A Bonds, each December 15, commencing 
December 15, 2022. 

Project:  The Project Improvements, the Project Equipment and the Land which are being 
leased or, as to the Land, subleased to the Tenant pursuant to this Lease and which are more fully 
described in the attached Exhibit A. 



13239179v2 
 

5 
 

Project Costs or Cost of the Project or Cost:  All costs of purchase, construction and 
installation of the Project including the following: 

(a) fees and expenses of surveyors and engineers for estimates, surveys, soil borings, 
environmental reports, and soil tests and other preliminary investigations and items necessary for 
the commencement of construction, preparation of plans, drawings and specifications and 
supervision of construction, as well as for the performance of all other duties of surveyors and 
engineers in relation to the acquisition, construction, furnishing or equipping of the Project or the 
making of this Lease; 

(b) all costs and expenses of every nature incurred in constructing and furnishing the 
Project Improvements and purchasing and installing the Project Equipment, including the actual 
cost of labor, materials, machinery, furnishings and equipment as may be payable to contractors, 
builders and materialmen in connection with the construction, furnishing and equipping the 
Project; 

(c) the cost of any insurance and performance and payment bonds maintained during 
the construction of the Project; 

(d) expenses of administration, supervision and inspection properly chargeable to the 
Project; underwriting expenses, legal fees and expenses, fees and expenses of accountants and 
other consultants, publication and printing expenses and other fees and expenses which are 
necessary or incidental and to the making of this Lease and the issuance of the Bonds or to the 
acquisition, purchase, construction, installation, furnishing and equipping of the Project; 

(e) all other items of expenses not elsewhere specified in this definition as may be 
necessary or incident to:  (i) the making of the Ground Lease and this Lease; (ii) the construction, 
installation, equipping and furnishing of the Project; and (iii) the financing thereof; 

(f) reimbursement to Tenant or Landlord or those acting for it for any of the above-
enumerated costs and expenses incurred and paid by them before or after the execution of this 
Lease (subject to the compliance, if applicable, with the "reimbursement regulations," being 
Treasury Regulations, Section 1.150-2); and 

(g) any other costs of the Project described in Section 3.3. 

Project Equipment:  All items of machinery, equipment, or other personal property 
installed or acquired or to be acquired for installation in the Project Improvements or elsewhere 
on the Land in accordance with the Plans and Specifications and paid for in whole or in part from 
the proceeds of the Bonds, and all replacements thereof and substitutions therefor made pursuant 
to Sections 6.6 or 8.5. 

Project Improvements:  The buildings, structures, improvements and fixtures located on 
or to be purchased, constructed, renovated, bettered, enlarged and otherwise improved on the 
Land in accordance with the Plans and Specifications, and all additions, alterations, 
modifications and improvements thereof made pursuant to Sections 6.6 or 8.5, to be used by the 
Tenant as an public works facility. 



13239179v2 
 

6 
 

Purchase Option Price:  The price at which the Tenant may purchase the Project as set 
forth in Article X. 

Rental Payment:  The payment due from Tenant to Landlord on each Payment Date 
during the Term of this Lease, as provided, for the Series 2021A Bonds, in Section 5.1 and 
shown on the attached Exhibit B (assuming no prepayment or acceleration of the Series 2021A 
Bonds), and exclusive of payments due under paragraph (e) of Section 5.1, and without giving 
effect to credits available under said section. 

Reserve Fund: The Reserve Fund created pursuant to section 5.03 of the Indenture. 

Reserve Requirement.   The Reserve Requirement as defined in the Indenture. 

Series 2021A Bonds:  The $3,280,000 Public Project Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 
2021A (City of Isanti, Minnesota, Lease With Option to Purchase Project), dated the Date of 
Original Issuance. 

State:  The State of Minnesota. 

State and Federal Law or Laws:  The Constitution and any law of the State and any rule 
or regulation of any agency or political subdivision of the State; and any law of the United 
States, and any rule or regulation of any federal agency. 

Tenant:  The City of Isanti, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State 
of Minnesota. 

Tenant Powers Act:  Minnesota Statutes, Section 465.71 and 469.041, as from time to 
time amended. 

Tenant Representative:  The City Representative as defined in the Indenture. 

Term or Lease Term:  The period commencing as of June 1, 2021, and ending on 
December 15, 2036, subject to earlier termination in accordance with the provisions of this 
Lease. 

Trustee:  The Trustee under the Indenture. 

Section 1.2. Exhibits. 

The following Exhibits are attached to and by reference made a part of this Lease: 

Exhibit A:  A description of the Land, Project Improvements and Project Equipment 
being leased by Tenant pursuant to this Lease. 

Exhibit B:  A schedule indicating the date and scheduled amount of each Rental Payment 
(respecting the Series 2021A Bonds) coming due during the Lease Term (assuming no optional 
prepayment or acceleration). 

Exhibit C:  Form of Draw Request.    



13239179v2 
 

7 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS, COVENANTS AND WARRANTIES 

Section 2.1. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of Tenant.  Tenant represents, 
covenants and warrants as follows: 

(a) Tenant is a municipal corporation and political subdivision duly organized and 
existing under the Constitution and laws of the State. 

(b) Tenant is authorized under the Constitution and laws of the State to execute and 
deliver this Lease and to perform all of its obligations provided hereunder and contemplated 
hereby. 

(c) The officers of Tenant executing this Lease have been duly authorized to execute 
and deliver this Lease under the terms and provisions of a resolution of Tenant's governing body, 
or by other appropriate official action. 

(d) In authorizing and executing this Lease, Tenant has complied with all open 
meeting, public bidding and other State and Federal Laws applicable to this Lease and the 
Tenant. 

(e) Tenant will not pledge, mortgage or assign this Lease, or its duties and obligations 
hereunder to any other person, firm or corporation except as provided under the terms of this 
Lease. 

(f) The Project will be used during the Term of this Lease only to carry out the 
governmental purposes of Tenant. 

(g) During the Term of this Lease, Tenant will not take any action (or suffer any 
action to be taken or circumstance to exist which is within the power of Tenant to prevent) the 
effect of which would be (1) to cause the interest on the Bonds to become subject to federal 
income taxation, including, but not limited to, permitting any entity that is not a Governmental 
Unit to use, directly or indirectly, any portion of the Project in a trade or business so as to impair 
the tax-exempt status of the Bonds, all within the meaning of Section 141 of the Code, or (2) to 
cause the Bonds to be "arbitrage bonds" within the meaning of Section 148 of the Code. 

(h) The Project will comply with all applicable land use, environmental control, 
building, subdivision, and zoning ordinances and regulations, if any, and will be constructed 
wholly within the boundaries of the Land. 

(i) The execution and delivery hereof, the compliance with the terms and conditions 
hereof, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, do not and will not 
conflict with or result in a breach of the terms, conditions, and provisions of any restriction or 
any agreement or instrument to which the Tenant is now a party or by which the Tenant is 
bound, or constitute a default under any of the foregoing. 



13239179v2 
 

8 
 

(j) There is no litigation, action, suit or proceeding pending (or to the best of Tenant's 
knowledge, threatened) before any court, administrative agency, arbitrator or governmental body 
that challenges (1) the authority of Tenant or its officers or its employees to enter into this Lease, 
the Bond Purchase Agreement, or the Ground Lease, (2) the proper authorization, approval 
and/or execution of this Lease and other documents contemplated hereby, (3) the ability of 
Tenant otherwise to perform its obligations under this Lease, the Bond Purchase Agreement or 
the Ground Lease and the transactions contemplated hereby, or (4) the issuance of the Series 
2021A Bonds by the Landlord. 

(k) The Tenant has reviewed the Indenture respecting the Series 2021A Bonds and 
hereby consents to the terms of the Indenture and agrees to be bound by and to discharge any 
obligations specifically imposed upon the Tenant pursuant to the terms of the Indenture. 

(l) The Tenant covenants, notwithstanding any termination of this Lease (whether 
arising pursuant to an Event of Default, a Non-appropriation or otherwise), that it will use its best 
efforts to assist the Landlord and/or the Trustee in re-leasing and/or selling the Project. 

(m) The Tenant certifies that this Lease is a "triple net" lease that requires the Tenant 
to pay all expenses, taxes, fees, insurance premiums, rebate payments, reserve deposits and costs 
associated with the Project and this Lease without the right of offset. 

Section 2.2. Representations, Covenants and Warranties of Landlord.  Landlord 
represents, covenants and warrants as follows: 

(a) Landlord is a public body corporate and politic and a political subdivision, duly 
organized and existing under the laws of the State and has power to enter into this Lease and by 
proper action has duly authorized the execution of this Lease. 

(b) The Project constitutes an authorized economic development project under the 
Act. 

(c) The governing body of Landlord has determined that the Project will promote the 
public interest and welfare of the State of Minnesota and the City and the people thereof through 
the provision of public facilities required for the purpose of providing various services to the 
City residents within the City. 

(d) The acquisition and construction of the Project, the issuance and sale of the Series 
2021A Bonds, the execution and delivery of this Lease and the performance of all covenants and 
agreements of the Landlord contained in this Lease have been duly authorized by the Bond 
Resolution. 

(e) Landlord has not made, done, executed or suffered and warrants that it will not 
make, do, execute or suffer any act or thing whereby its Landlord's interest in the Project shall or 
may be impaired or changed or encumbered, except as provided in the Indenture. 

(f) To finance the Cost of the Project, Landlord proposes to issue the Series 2021A 
Bonds. 



13239179v2 
 

9 
 

(g) There is no litigation pending or to the best of Landlord's knowledge threatened 
against Landlord relating to the Indenture, the Bond Purchase Agreement, the Ground Lease, the 
acquisition, equipping, installation, construction or financing of the Project or to the Series 
2021A Bonds or to this Lease or questioning the organization, powers or authority of Landlord to 
perform its obligations hereunder. 

(h) The execution and delivery of this Lease, the fulfillment of or compliance with 
the terms and conditions hereof, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby 
do not conflict with or result in a breach of the terms, conditions or provisions of any restriction 
or any agreement or instrument to which Landlord is now a party or by which Landlord is bound 
or constitute a default under any of the foregoing, or result in the creation or imposition of any 
lien, charge or encumbrance whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of Landlord, or upon 
the Project, except Permitted Encumbrances. 

 

 
  



13239179v2 
 

10 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

ACQUISITION AND CONSTRUCTION OF PROJECT 

Section 3.1. Agreement to Construct the Project.  Subject to the provisions of Section 
3.6, the Landlord shall (1) construct, equip, better, install and otherwise complete the Project, or 
causing the same to occur, and, subject to the terms and conditions of this Lease, which terms 
and conditions the Landlord determines to be necessary, desirable and proper, or (2) provide for 
and make all decisions with respect to such construction, equipping, installation and completion 
of the Project.  The Landlord hereby agrees to act and do all things, to perform all acts and 
agreements hereinabove described in this section and to bring any actions or proceedings against 
any person as the Landlord shall deem proper; and the Landlord further agrees that it will, in 
accordance with the requirements set forth in this article, cause the construction, equipping, 
installation and completion of the Project to occur.  The parties hereto agree that, as between the 
Landlord and the Tenant, the Landlord shall have the sole right of possession and use of the 
Project for the purpose of causing the construction, installation, completion, operation and 
maintenance of the Project. 

Subject to the provisions in Section 12.2, and all authority hereby conferred, are granted 
and conferred irrevocably in connection with the construction, equipping, installation, operation 
and maintenance of the Project which shall not be terminated prior thereto by act of the Landlord 
or of the Tenant.  The Tenant agrees that title to Tenant's interest in any equipment, fixtures or 
other personal property financed by the Bonds which are to be affixed to the Project to be 
acquired after issuance of Bonds shall pass to the Landlord at the time such equipment, fixtures 
or other personal property is delivered to the Project.  All warranties and guarantees of all 
contractors, subcontractors, suppliers, architects and engineers for the furnishing of labor, 
materials or equipment or supervision or design in connection with the Project Costs and any 
rights or causes of action arising from or against any of the foregoing are assigned to the 
Landlord. 

The Landlord agrees to cause the Project and all other facilities and equipment necessary 
in connection therewith to be substantially acquired, constructed and installed on or before 
______________________. 

Section 3.2. Agreement to Issue Bonds; Application of Bond Proceeds.  In order to 
provide funds for payment of Project Costs, the Landlord will issue and deliver to the initial 
purchaser thereof the Series 2021A Bonds and the Landlord will deposit the proceeds of the 
Series 2021A Bonds in the Bond Fund, the Reserve Fund, and the Construction Fund as provided 
in the Indenture. 

Section 3.3. Disbursements from the Construction Fund.  The Landlord has, in the 
Indenture, authorized and directed the Trustee to use the moneys in the Construction Fund to 
pay, or to reimburse the Landlord, for payments made, for the following costs and for the 
following purposes: 

(1) All Project Costs, including the costs of acquiring, constructing, and equipping 
the Project, including costs of labor and materials and other charges from architects, engineers, 



13239179v2 
 

11 
 

contractors, builders and material suppliers in connection with the design, planning, acquisition, 
installation and construction of the Project, and including the reasonable expenses of any 
employees of the Landlord performing any such functions (provided said employee costs are 
properly chargeable as a capital cost of the Project); 

(2) Interest accruing upon the Series 2021A Bonds prior to the Completion Date and 
not covered by proceeds of the Series 2021A Bonds and earnings thereon deposited in the Bond 
Fund, and any interest which has accrued for any interim financing obtained by the Landlord 
incident to the acquisition, installation and construction of the Project before the Series 2021A 
Bonds are delivered to the initial purchaser thereof; 

(3) The cost of any indemnity and surety bonds obtained in connection with the 
Project, the fees and expenses of the Trustee during construction, taxes and other municipal 
governmental charges levied or assessed during construction upon the Project or any property 
acquired therefor, and the premiums for insurance, if any, in connection with the Project during 
construction; 

(4) The cost of acquisition and installation of equipment for completion or operation 
of the Project; 

(5) Fees and expenses of engineers and architects for surveys and estimates and other 
preliminary investigations, preparation of plans and specifications, and supervising acquisition, 
installation and construction, as well as for the performance of all other duties of engineers and 
architects, as are specifically required in relation to the acquisition, installation and construction 
of the Project or the issuance of Bonds therefor; 

(6) Expenses of administration, supervision and inspection properly chargeable to the 
Project, any administrative fees of the Landlord, legal expenses and fees, fiscal consultant 
expenses and fees, financing charges, cost of audits and of preparing, offering and issuing the 
Bonds, and initial and transaction fees and any expenses of the Trustee, incident to the 
acquisition, installation, construction and financing of the Project; and also 

(7) Any other obligation or expense heretofore or hereafter incurred by the Landlord 
or the Tenant in connection with the acquisition, installation, equipping and construction of the 
Project. 

All moneys in the Construction Fund (including moneys earned pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 3.8) remaining after the Completion Date and payment in full of the items 
provided for in the preceding subsections (1) to (7), inclusive, of this section, then due and 
payable, shall be deposited in the Bond Fund, as provided in the Indenture, and credited against 
amounts of Rental Payments due or to become due; provided that amounts approved by the 
Landlord Representative, as to Project Costs, shall be retained by the Trustee in the Construction 
Fund for payment of Project Costs not then due and payable but reasonably foreseen. 

Each of the payments referred to in this section shall be made only upon the written order 
of the Landlord Representative as to the Project Costs; provided, that interest accruing on the 
Bonds during construction may be paid without an order of the Landlord Representative. 



13239179v2 
 

12 
 

Before any of the payments referred to in the preceding subsections of this section (other 
than (2)) may be made, the Landlord Representative, as to the Project Costs, shall certify to the 
Trustee with respect to each such payment by submitting the form of Draw Request attached 
hereto as Exhibit C:  (a) that none of the items for which the payment is proposed to be made has 
theretofore been paid from the Construction Fund and (b) that each item for which the payment 
is proposed to be made is or was necessary in connection with the Project and is or was a Project 
Cost.  In the case of any contract providing for the retention of a portion of the contract price, 
there shall be paid from the Construction Fund only the net amount remaining after deduction of 
any such portion. 

Section 3.4. Obligation of the Parties to Cooperate in Furnishing Documents to 
Trustee.  The Landlord agrees to cooperate in furnishing to the Trustee the documents referred to 
in Section 3.3 that are required to effect payments out of the Construction Fund and to cause 
such orders to be directed by the Landlord Representative, and to the Trustee as may be 
necessary to effect payments out of the Construction Fund in accordance with Section 3.3.  Such 
obligation is subject to any provision of this Lease or the Indenture requiring additional 
documentation with respect to payments and shall not extend beyond the moneys in the 
Construction Fund available for payment under the terms of the Indenture. 

Section 3.5. Establishment of Completion Date.  The Completion Date shall be 
evidenced to the Trustee by a certificate signed by the Landlord Representative stating that 
construction of the Project has been completed in accordance with the Plans and Specifications 
and all labor, services, materials and supplies used in such construction, acquisition and 
installation have been paid for. 

Section 3.6. Landlord Required to Pay Project Costs in Event Construction Fund 
Insufficient.  In the event that, after the Series 2021A Bonds have been issued, the moneys in the 
Construction Fund available for payment of the Project Costs should not be sufficient to pay all 
costs required to complete the Project in accordance with the Plans and Specifications, the 
Landlord agrees, for the benefit of the Tenant and the Holders of the Series 2021A Bonds, to 
complete the Project and the Landlord shall pay the Costs thereof directly or by causing to be 
deposited in the Construction Fund such amounts as are necessary and sufficient for payment of 
the balance of the Project Costs, and to this end Landlord shall promptly perform its obligations.  
The Tenant does not make any representation or warranty, either express or implied, that the 
moneys which will be paid into the Construction Fund and which will be available for payment 
of the Project Costs will be sufficient to pay all such Costs.  The Landlord agrees that if after 
exhaustion of the moneys of the Construction Fund the Landlord should pay any portion of the 
Project Costs pursuant to the provisions of this Section, Landlord shall not be entitled to any 
reimbursement therefor from the Tenant, the Trustee, or the Holders of any of the Series 2021A 
Bonds or be entitled to any diminution in or postponement of the amounts payable under Section 
5.1 or 5.3. 
 

Section 3.7. Remedies to be Pursued Against Contractors and Subcontractors and Their 
Sureties.  In the event of default of any Contractor or subcontractor under any contract made by 
it in connection with the Project or in the event of breach of warranty with respect to any 
materials, workmanship, or performance guaranty, the Landlord will promptly proceed, either 
separately or in conjunction with others, to exhaust the remedies of the Tenant or the Landlord 



13239179v2 
 

13 
 

against the Contractor or subcontractor so in default and against each such surety for the 
performance of such contract.  The Landlord agrees to advise the Tenant of the steps it intends to 
take in connection with any such default.  If the Landlord shall so notify the Tenant, the 
Landlord may, at its own expense and in its own name or in the name of the Tenant, prosecute or 
defend any action or proceedings or take any other action involving any such Contractor, 
subcontractor or surety which the Landlord deems reasonably necessary, and in such event the 
Tenant hereby agrees to cooperate fully with the Landlord and to take all action necessary to 
effect the substitution of the Landlord for the Tenant in any such action or proceeding.  Any 
amounts recovered by way of damages, refunds, adjustments or otherwise in connection with the 
foregoing, after deduction of expenses incurred in such recovery, prior to the Completion Date 
shall be paid into the Construction Fund or, if recovered after the Completion Date and full 
disposition of the Construction Fund in accordance with Section 3.3, shall be paid into the Bond 
Fund. 
 

Section 3.8. Investment of Construction Fund and Reserve Fund Moneys Permitted.  
Any moneys held as a part of the Construction Fund and Reserve Fund shall at the written 
request of the Landlord Representative as to the Construction Fund be invested or reinvested by 
the Trustee in Qualified Investments.  The type, amount and maturity of such investments shall 
be as specified by the Landlord Representative as to the Construction Fund.  The Trustee may 
make any and all investments permitted under this section through or from its own bond 
department or any of its affiliates.  The Landlord covenants that the portion of the Construction 
Fund representing bond proceeds shall be directed to be invested and deposited only for a 
temporary period pending the need for expenditure to pay Project Costs, and it further covenants 
that said portion representing bond proceeds shall not be directed to be invested or used in such 
manner that any of the Series 2021A Bonds would be "arbitrage bonds" for purposes of Section 
148 of the Internal Revenue Code and regulations thereunder.  The Landlord and Tenant 
acknowledge that if the Landlord shall fail to provide written investment directions such amounts 
shall be held by the Trustee uninvested and the Trustee is relying on any such written investment 
direction as to the suitability and legality of such directed investment and its compliance with the 
requirements of Section 5.05 of the Indenture. 

The Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that regulations of the Comptroller of the 
Currency grant the Landlord and Tenant the right to receive brokerage confirmations of the 
security transactions as they occur.  The Landlord and Tenant specifically waive such 
notification to the extent permitted by law and will receive periodic cash transaction statements 
which will detail all investment transactions. 

Section 3.9. Liens and Encumbrances.  The Landlord shall pay, before delinquency, all 
costs for work done or caused to be done by the Landlord which could result in any lien or 
encumbrance on the Project or any part thereof, shall keep the title to the Project and every part 
thereof free and clear of any lien or encumbrance in respect of such work, and shall, to the extent 
permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless the Tenant against any claim, loss, costs, demand 
and legal or other expense, whether in respect of any lien or otherwise, arising out of the supply 
of materials, services or labor for such work.  The Landlord shall immediately notify the Tenant 
of any lien, claim or lien or other action which affects the title to the Project or any part thereof, 
and shall cause the same to be removed within five days (or such additional time as the Tenant 
may permit in writing), failing which the Tenant may take such action as the Tenant deems 



13239179v2 
 

14 
 

necessary to remove the same and the entire costs thereof shall be immediately due and payable 
by the Landlord to the Tenant; provided, however, that the Landlord may in good faith contest 
any mechanic's lien by appropriate proceedings if (i) the contest does not involve the imminent 
threat of forfeiture, sale or disturbance of the Project or any part thereof and (ii) the Landlord 
provides such security as the Tenant or the Trustee, or both may reasonably request.  The Tenant 
shall not, without Landlord's prior written consent, which consent may be withheld in the 
Landlord's absolute discretion, encumber its interest in the Project or any part thereof. 

  



13239179v2 
 

15 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

TERM OF LEASE 

Section 4.1. Lease Term.  Landlord hereby leases the Project to Tenant, and Tenant 
hereby leases, or in the case of the Land, subleases the Project from Landlord upon the terms and 
conditions set forth in this Lease.  This Lease shall be in effect for a Lease Term commencing 
upon the date of this Lease and ending on the date the last Rental Payment is due and payable as 
shown in Exhibit B unless terminated by Tenant at the end of any Fiscal Year of Tenant 
occurring prior thereto in accordance with Section 4.3, or unless terminated as provided in 
Section 4.6. 

Section 4.2. Possession and Enjoyment.  Landlord hereby covenants to provide Tenant 
during the Term of this Lease with the quiet use and enjoyment of the Project and Tenant shall 
during the Term of this Lease peaceably and quietly have and hold and enjoy the Project, without 
suit, trouble or hindrance from Landlord, except as expressly set forth herein.  Landlord will, at 
the request of Tenant and at Tenant's cost, join in any legal action in which Tenant asserts its 
right to such possession and enjoyment to the extent Landlord lawfully may do so. 

Section 4.3. Termination by Tenant.  In the sole event of Non-appropriation, Tenant 
shall have the right to terminate this Lease, in whole but not in part, at the end of any Fiscal Year 
of Tenant, in the manner and subject to the terms specified in this section and in Sections 4.5 and 
4.6.  Tenant may effect such termination by giving Landlord and the Trustee a written notice of 
termination and by paying to Landlord any Rental Payments and any other amounts due pursuant 
to Section 4.5 which are due and have not been paid and any other amount due pursuant to 
Section 4.5 at or before the end of its then current Fiscal Year.  Tenant shall give written notice 
to the Trustee and the Landlord of any such termination not less than ninety days prior to the end 
of such Fiscal Year.  If the Landlord and the Trustee are not delivered a written notice of an 
event of Non-appropriation with a certified copy of a resolution of the City Council of the Tenant 
stating that Tenant will no longer appropriate any moneys to pay the Rental Payments due under 
this Lease, not less than ninety days prior to the end of a fiscal year then an event of Non-
appropriation is deemed not to have occurred.  In the event of termination of this Lease as 
provided in this section, Tenant shall convey to Landlord and release its interest under this Lease 
in the Project in accordance with Section 12.3 immediately after termination of this Lease. 

Section 4.4. Intent to Continue Lease Term; Appropriations and Property Taxes.  
Tenant presently intends to continue this Lease for its entire Term and to pay all Rental 
Payments.  The Tenant covenants that the chief financial official and/or other appropriate official 
of the Tenant will include in the officer's annual budget for each Fiscal Year and thereby request 
an appropriation by Tenant's City Council of an amount sufficient to meet Tenant's obligations 
under this Lease.  To provide sufficient funds to pay the Rental Payments due hereunder, subject 
to the provisions in Section 4.3, Tenant shall include in each annual budget an appropriation 
sufficient, and shall levy such taxes as may be necessary, when combined with any other 
appropriated and available funds, to make the Rental Payments. 

Section 4.5. Effect of Termination.  Upon any termination of this Lease as described in 
Section 4.3, Tenant shall not be responsible for the payment of any additional Rental Payments 



13239179v2 
 

16 
 

coming due with respect to succeeding Fiscal Years.  If Tenant does not deliver possession of the 
Project to Landlord in accordance with Section 12.3 and convey to Landlord or release its 
interest under this Lease in the Project immediately upon the termination of this Lease, the 
termination shall nevertheless be effective, but Tenant shall be responsible for the payment of 
damages in an amount equal to the amount of the Rental Payments coming due which are 
attributable to the number of days after termination of this Lease during which Tenant fails to 
take such actions and for any other loss suffered by Landlord as a result of Tenant's failure to 
take such actions as required.  Termination of this Lease for any reason shall not terminate 
Tenant's obligations under Sections 2.1, 6.5 or 6.6 or relieve Tenant from any liability for the 
nonperformance of any covenant in those sections or for any inaccuracy in the representations 
contained in Section 2.1. 

Section 4.6. Termination of Lease Term.  The Term of this Lease will terminate upon 
any termination hereof by Tenant described in Section 4.3, upon a default by Tenant and 
Landlord's election to terminate this Lease pursuant to Article XII, or upon the Tenant's exercise 
of its option to purchase the Project pursuant to Article X and Tenant's payment of the Purchase 
Option Price.  Upon Tenant's purchase of the Project, this Lease and the Ground Lease shall 
terminate and the Tenant thereupon shall become entitled to the Project AS IS, WITHOUT 
WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR 
FITNESS FOR THE USE CONTEMPLATED BY TENANT, except that the Project shall 
not be subject to any lien or encumbrance created by or arising through Landlord, other than 
Permitted Encumbrances.  To evidence the foregoing, the Landlord shall, at the request and 
expense of Tenant, execute such documents as the Tenant reasonably determines are required to 
convey and release to the Tenant, any and all of Landlord's remaining right, title and/or interest 
in and to the Project. 

  



13239179v2 
 

17 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

RENTAL PAYMENTS 

Section 5.1. Rental Payments.  Subject to Tenant's exercise of its option to purchase 
the Project or prepay in part Rental Payments pursuant to Article X, and payment of the Purchase 
Option Price, Tenant shall: 

(a) On or before the date identified on Exhibit B pay the Rental Payments as set forth 
on Exhibit B. 

(b) The Tenant shall have a credit against each Rental Payment to the extent of any 
investment earnings which are available and which are in excess of amounts otherwise required 
to pay principal of or interest on the Series 2021A Bonds or to cure any deficiency in the Reserve 
Fund. 

(c) In the event the Tenant shall have paid Rental Payments with respect to a Rental 
Payment Date, but the funds on deposit in the Bond Fund are nevertheless insufficient to pay 
such principal, premium (if any) and interest on the Bonds then due or to become due on such 
Interest Payment Date, the Tenant will forthwith pay as Rental Payments the amount of the 
deficiency 

(d) If, for any reason, the balance in the Reserve Fund is less than the Reserve 
Requirement, the Tenant shall, upon request of the Trustee made under Section 5.03(d) of the 
Indenture, immediately pay to the Trustee, for deposit in the Reserve Fund, an amount sufficient 
to restore the Reserve Fund to the Reserve Requirement.  If sums are transferred from the 
Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund under Section 5.03(c) of the Indenture, the Tenant shall make a 
semiannual Rental Payment as described in Section 5.03(d) of the Indenture. 

(e) The Tenant shall also have a credit against its Rental Payment obligations under 
this section to the extent of funds transferred from the Reserve Fund to the Bond Fund to make 
the last payments due on Outstanding Bonds, as described in Section 5.03(f) of the Indenture. 

Section 5.2. Place of Payment of Rental Payments.  The Rental Payments provided for 
in Section 5.1 shall be paid directly to the Trustee at its corporate trust office for the account of 
Tenant for deposit in the Bond Fund or Reserve Fund, as provided in the Indenture. 

Section 5.3. Additional Rental Payments.  The Tenant shall pay Additional Rental 
Payments as follows: 

(a) To the Trustee, for itself or remittance to the paying agents, promptly after being 
billed, until the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall have been fully paid or provision for 
the payment thereof shall have been made in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture, (i) 
an amount equal to the annual fee of the Trustee as trustee, for the ordinary services of the 
Trustee rendered and its ordinary expenses incurred under the Indenture during the preceding 
billing period, (ii) the fees and charges of paying agents, authenticating agents, and registrars on 
the Bonds for acting as paying agent, authenticating agent, and registrar as provided in the 
Indenture, as and when the same become due, and (iii) the fees and charges of the Trustee for 



13239179v2 
 

18 
 

necessary extraordinary services rendered by it and extraordinary expenses incurred by it under 
the Indenture, as and when the same become due, other than the fees and charges which were 
required by reason of the gross negligence or willful default of the Trustee under the Indenture; 
provided, that the Tenant may, without creating a default hereunder, contest in good faith the 
necessity for any such extraordinary services and extraordinary expenses and the reasonableness 
of any such fees, charges or expenses; and 

(b) To the Trustee or Landlord, as the case may be, upon demand, any amounts 
advanced by the Trustee for the account of the Tenant or the Landlord under the Indenture or 
advanced by the Landlord under this Lease; and 

(c) To the Treasurer of Isanti County, or other appropriate authority or official for the 
account of the Tenant and before the same become delinquent or any penalty attaches, all taxes, 
special assessments, or other governmental charges imposed on or with respect to the Project or 
any part thereof, subject to Section 7.3; and 

(d) To the Landlord, all reasonable expenses incurred by the Landlord in connection 
with the transactions contemplated hereby which are not otherwise required to be paid by the 
Tenant under the terms of this Lease; and 

(e) All other costs and expenses specifically required to be paid by the Tenant or 
Landlord under the terms of this Lease or the Indenture. 

(f) To the Landlord, upon its request or the request of the Trustee, any amount of 
arbitrage profit required to be rebated to the United States under Section 6.07 of the Indenture. 

Section 5.4. Rental Payments to be Unconditional.  Except as provided in Section 4.3, 
the obligation of Tenant to make Rental Payments required hereunder, and to perform and 
observe all other covenants and agreements of Tenant contained herein, shall be absolute and 
unconditional in all events and the obligation to make such Rental Payments shall remain 
notwithstanding any dispute between Tenant and Landlord or any other person unless the 
Landlord shall violate the Tenant's right to quiet enjoyment of the Project to such a degree that 
Tenant no longer enjoys its right of possession to the Project.  Tenant shall make all Rental 
Payments and other payments required hereunder when due and shall not withhold any Rental 
Payment or other payment pending final resolution of such dispute and Tenant shall not assert 
any right of setoff or counterclaim against its obligation to make such Rental Payments or other 
payments required under this Lease.  Tenant shall have the right pursuant to Section 7.3 to in 
good faith contest taxes, special assessments, utility or other charges in accordance with the 
provisions of Section 7.3.  However, nothing herein shall be construed to release Landlord from 
the performance of its obligations hereunder; and if Landlord should fail to perform any such 
obligation, Tenant may institute such legal action against Landlord as Tenant may deem 
necessary to compel the performance of such obligation or to recover damages therefor. 

Section 5.5. Current Expense.  The obligations of Tenant under this Lease, including 
its obligation to pay the Rental Payments due with respect to the Project, in any Fiscal Year for 
which this Lease is in effect, shall constitute a current expense of Tenant for such Fiscal Year.  
The Tenant's obligations hereunder shall be from year to year only and shall not constitute an 



13239179v2 
 

19 
 

indebtedness, liability or mandatory payment obligation of Tenant in any ensuing Fiscal Year 
beyond the then current Fiscal Year.  No provision herein shall be construed or interpreted as 
creating a general obligation or other indebtedness of the Tenant within the meaning of any 
constitutional or statutory debt limitation.  Except for the lien herein created in the Project and 
the proceeds thereof, nothing herein shall be construed to pledge or to create a lien on any taxes 
or on any other class or source of money of the Tenant, nor shall any provision herein restrict the 
future issuance of any bonds of the Tenant or obligations payable from any class or source of 
Tenant moneys. 

  



13239179v2 
 

20 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 

Section 6.1. Liability Insurance.  The Tenant shall, at its own expense, cause 
comprehensive liability and property damage insurance to be carried and maintained with respect 
to the activities to be undertaken by and on behalf of the Tenant in connection with the use of the 
Project substantially the same as insurance carried by the Tenant with respect to other 
governmental activities. 

Section 6.2. Property Insurance.  The Tenant shall cause casualty and property damage 
insurance to be carried and maintained with respect to the Project in an amount at least equal to 
the replacement value of the Project with a deductible not to exceed the deductible carried by the 
Tenant with respect to other similar governmental buildings (except that during construction of 
the Project, builders risk insurance, full value of completed structure -  all risk coverage, may be 
substituted for property insurance required for that portion of the Project).  Such coverage must 
apply exclusively to the Project and must be available to repair/rebuild the Project under all 
circumstances after the occurrence of an insured peril.  Full payment of insurance proceeds up to 
the required policy dollar limit in connection with damage to the Project shall, under no 
circumstances, be contingent on the degree of damage sustained at other facilities owned or 
leased by the Tenant.  The policy must explicitly waive any co-insurance penalty. 

Section 6.3. Worker's Compensation Insurance.  If required by State law, Tenant shall 
carry Worker's Compensation Insurance covering all employees on, in, near or about the Project, 
and upon request, shall furnish to Landlord certificates evidencing such coverage throughout the 
Term of this Lease. 

Section 6.4. Requirements For All Insurance.  All insurance policies (or riders or 
endorsements to existing policies) required by this Article shall be taken out and maintained with 
responsible insurance companies organized under the laws of one of the states of the United 
States and qualified to do business in the State and rated A by Best or in the two highest 
categories of Standard and Poor's and Moody's and shall contain a provision that the insurer shall 
not cancel or revise coverage thereunder without giving written notice to the insured parties at 
least thirty days before the cancellation or revision becomes effective.  All insurance policies or 
riders required by Sections 6.1 and 6.2 shall name Tenant, Landlord and Trustee as insured 
parties and, with respect to the property insurance, shall also name the Landlord and Trustee as 
loss payees.  During the period of completion of the Project, the requirement that Landlord and 
Trustee be named as an insured party under the liability insurance may be satisfied by having 
Landlord and Trustee named as additional insureds under the liability insurance policy carried by 
the general Contractor.  Tenant shall annually deposit with the Trustee a certificate of the Tenant 
stating that the insurance it carries for the Project is in full force and effect and complies with 
Article VI of this Lease.  Before the expiration of any such policy (or rider), Tenant shall furnish 
to Landlord evidence that the policy has been renewed or replaced by another policy conforming 
to the provisions of this Article.  The Trustee has no duty or obligations to determine the 
sufficiency of such insurance requirements. 



13239179v2 
 

21 
 

Section 6.5. Indemnification; Hazardous Substance. 

(1) Tenant assumes all risks and liabilities, whether or not covered by insurance, for 
loss or damage to the Project or any portion thereof and for injury to or death of any person or 
damage to any property, in any manner arising out of or incident to any possession, use, 
operation or condition of the Project or any portion thereof, whether such injury or death be with 
respect to agents or employees of Tenant or of third parties, and whether such property damage 
be to Tenant's property or the property of others.  To the maximum extent permitted by law, 
Tenant hereby assumes responsibility for and agrees to indemnify, protect, save and keep 
harmless Landlord and the Trustee from and against any and all liabilities, obligations, losses, 
damages, penalties, claims, actions, costs and expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees) of 
whatsoever kind and nature, imposed on, incurred by or asserted against Landlord or the Trustee 
that in any way relate to or arise out of the possession, use, operation or condition of the Project 
or the financing related thereto, unless caused by Landlord, the Trustee or their agents. 

(2) To the maximum extent permitted by law, the Tenant hereby agrees to defend, 
indemnify and hold harmless Landlord, the Trustee and their officers, employees, agents, 
successors and assigns (hereinafter collectively referred to as the "Indemnitees") from and 
against, and shall reimburse each such Indemnitees for, any and all loss, claim, liability, damage, 
judgment, penalty, injunctive relief, injury to person, property or natural resources, cost, 
expense, action or cause of action arising in connection with or as the result of any past, present 
or future existence, use, handling, storage, transportation, manufacture, release or disposal of any 
Hazardous Substance in, on or under the Land, whether foreseeable or unforeseeable, regardless 
of the source, the time of occurrence or the time of discovery (hereafter collectively referred to 
as "Loss").  The foregoing indemnification against Loss includes, without limitation, 
indemnification against all costs in law or in equity of removal, response, investigation, or 
remediation of any kind, and disposal of such Hazardous Substances, all costs of determining 
whether the Land is in compliance with, and of causing the Land to be in compliance with, all 
applicable Environmental Laws, all costs associated with claims for damages to persons, 
property, or natural resources, and the Indemnitees' reasonable attorneys' and consultants' fees, 
court costs and expenses incurred in connection with any thereof. 

(3) The obligations of Tenant to indemnify the Indemnitees shall survive satisfaction 
and payment in full of the Bonds, and termination of this Lease or the Landlord or Trustee 
reacquiring possession of the Land under the Ground Lease.  The rights of the Indemnitees 
hereunder shall be in addition to any other rights and remedies which the Indemnitees may have 
against the Land and the Tenant under this Lease or any other document or at law or in equity. 

(4) Notwithstanding anything in this Lease to the contrary, if Landlord should, after 
subleasing the Land to the Tenant as provided herein, subsequently terminate this Lease and 
reacquire possession of the Land under the Ground Lease (the date on which this event occurs 
being the "Termination Date"), the indemnifications described in this section shall not apply to 
any Loss incurred by Landlord or the Trustee as a direct result of affirmative actions of the 
Landlord or the Trustee after Landlord or the Trustee has terminated this Lease and acquired 
possession of the Land under the Ground Lease if such affirmative actions of the Landlord or the 
Trustee are the sole and direct cause of the introduction and initial release of a Hazardous 
Substance in, on or under the Land; provided, however, that the Tenant shall bear the burden of 



13239179v2 
 

22 
 

proof that the introduction and initial release of such Hazardous Substance (i) occurred 
subsequent to the Termination Date, (ii) did not occur as a result of any action of the Tenant, and 
(iii) did not occur as a result of a continuing migration or release of any Hazardous Substance 
introduced prior to the Termination Date in, on, under or near the Project. 

(5) Except as expressly provided for in this section, the indemnifications provided 
herein shall remain in full force and effect, including, without limitation, with respect to 
Hazardous Substances which are discovered or released in, on or under the Land after the 
Termination Date, and with respect to the continuing migration or release of any Hazardous 
Substance previously introduced in, on, under or near the Land.  The foregoing limitations shall 
not affect or impair any rights, remedies or claims the Landlord or the Trustee may have outside 
the scope of this indemnity, at law or in equity, with respect to the Tenant or others. 

Section 6.6. Damage to or Destruction or Condemnation of Project.  If after the 
execution of this Lease all or any part of the Project is lost, stolen, condemned, destroyed or 
damaged, or taken by condemnation, Tenant shall as soon as practicable after such event restore 
and/or replace (as in the case may be required), or cause to be restored and/or replaced, the same 
at Tenant's sole cost and expense such restoration or replacement to be of equal or greater value 
to the Project or the applicable portion thereof immediately prior to the time of the loss 
occurrence or condemnation, whereupon such restoration or replacement shall be substituted in 
this Lease by appropriate endorsement, if necessary.  By way of example but not limitation, 
restoration shall include any demolition, clearance or other clean-up or safety measures 
reasonably required in connection with any casualty, destruction or other loss of any portion of 
the Project.  The Net Proceeds payable with respect to the loss may be applied towards the costs 
of such replacement or restoration. 

  



13239179v2 
 

23 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

OTHER OBLIGATIONS OF TENANT 

Section 7.1. Use; Permits.  Tenant shall exercise due care in the construction, use, 
operation and maintenance of the Project, and shall not install, use, operate or maintain the 
Project improperly, carelessly, in violation of any State and Federal Law or for a purpose or in a 
manner contrary to that contemplated by this Lease.  Tenant shall obtain (or cause to be 
obtained) all permits and licenses necessary for the construction, operation, possession and use 
of the Project.  Tenant shall comply with all State and Federal Laws applicable to the 
construction, use, possession and operation of the Project, and if compliance with any such State 
and Federal Law requires changes or additions to be made to the Project, such changes or 
additions shall be made by Tenant at its expense. 

Section 7.2. Maintenance of Project by Tenant.  Tenant shall, at its own expense, 
maintain, preserve and keep the Project in good repair, working order and condition and shall 
from time to time make all repairs and replacements necessary to keep the Project in such 
condition.  Neither Landlord nor Trustee shall have any responsibility for any of these repairs or 
replacements. 

Section 7.3. Taxes, Other Governmental Charges and Utility Charges.  Except as 
expressly limited by this section, Tenant shall pay (or cause to be paid) all taxes and other 
charges of any kind which are at any time lawfully assessed or levied against or with respect to 
the Project, or which become due during the Term of this Lease, whether assessed against Tenant 
or Landlord.  Tenant shall also pay (or cause to be paid) when due all gas, water, steam, 
electricity, heat, power, telephone, and other charges incurred in the operation, maintenance, use, 
occupancy and upkeep of the Project, and all special assessments and charges lawfully made by 
any governmental body for public improvements that may be secured by a lien on the Project; 
provided that with respect to special assessments or other governmental charges that may 
lawfully be paid in installments Tenant shall only be required to pay (or cause to be paid) such 
installments, during the Term of this Lease as and when the same become due. 

Tenant may, at its own expense and in its own name, in good faith contest any such taxes, 
assessments, utility and other charges and shall notify the Landlord of such good faith contest 
and, in the event of any such contest, may permit the taxes, assessments, utility or other charges 
so contested to remain unpaid during the period of such contest and any appeal therefrom but 
only if (1) nonpayment of any such items will not materially endanger the interest of Landlord in 
the Project, nor subject to loss or forfeiture the Project or any part thereof, and (2) Tenant files 
with the Trustee an opinion of Independent Counsel stating in effect that neither event will occur.  
If both conditions are not satisfied Tenant shall promptly pay such taxes, assessments, utility or 
other charges or provide Landlord with full security against any loss which may result from 
nonpayment, in form satisfactory to Landlord. 

Section 7.4. Advances.  If Tenant shall fail to perform any of its obligations under this 
Article, Landlord may, but shall not be obligated to, take such action as may be necessary to cure 
such failure, including the advancement of money, and Tenant shall be obligated to repay all 
such advances on demand with interest from the date of the advance to the date of repayment.  



13239179v2 
 

24 
 

The interest rate on the advance (1) the rate of interest at which the Landlord borrowed the 
money advanced or, (2) if the Landlord did not borrow the money, the rate of four percent (4%) 
per annum. 

Section 7.5. Landlord Access to Project.  Tenant agrees that Landlord shall have the 
right at all reasonable times upon reasonable notice to examine and inspect the Project.  Tenant 
further agrees that Landlord shall have such rights of access to the Project as may be reasonably 
necessary to cause the proper maintenance of any portion of the Project in the event of failure by 
Tenant to perform its obligations hereunder. 

Section 7.6. Transfer of Functions.  The Tenant covenants that it will, at all times 
during the Term of this Lease, use the Project to the fullest extent possible in the governmental 
functions of the Tenant.  The Tenant further covenants that, to the extent it may lawfully do so 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota, and to the extent it would not obviate the Tenant's right 
to terminate this Lease at the end of any Fiscal Year, it will not transfer any governmental 
functions from the Project to any other location during the Term of this Lease and will not 
otherwise eliminate or diminish the use of the Project by the Tenant in its governmental 
functions unless the Tenant promptly replaces such governmental functions with other functions 
or programs of the Tenant which will be substituted at the Project for the transferred functions 
for the remaining Term of this Lease. 

 
  



13239179v2 
 

25 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

TITLE 

Section 8.1. Title.  During the Term of this Lease title to the Project and any and all 
repairs, replacements, substitutions and modifications to it under Sections 6.6 or 8.5 shall be in 
the Landlord.  Upon any termination of this Lease described in Section 4.3 or upon a default by 
Tenant and Landlord's election to terminate this Lease pursuant to Article XII, Tenant shall have 
no further interest in the Project under this Lease.  In such event Tenant shall execute and deliver 
to Landlord such documents as Landlord may request to evidence the termination of this Lease; 
and upon request by Landlord, Tenant shall deliver possession of the Project to Landlord, in 
accordance with Section 12.3. 

Section 8.2. Security Interest.  The Tenant hereby grants to the Landlord a security 
interest in all portions of the Project that are deemed personal property or fixtures pursuant to 
applicable law, the proceeds thereof and all repairs, replacements, substitutions and 
modifications thereto or thereof made pursuant to Section 8.5 and a security interest in the 
proceeds of all insurance policies, in order to secure Tenant's payment of all Rental Payments 
due during the Term of this Lease and the performance of all other obligations herein to be 
performed by the Tenant.  The Tenant will cause to be executed, filed and recorded all 
instruments, including financing statements and continuation statements, and will perform such 
acts as are required to establish and maintain a valid and perfected security interest in such 
portions of the Project. 

Section 8.3. Liens.  During the Term of this Lease, Tenant shall not, directly or 
indirectly, create, incur, assume or suffer to exist any mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, 
encumbrance or claim on or with respect to the Project, other than the respective rights of 
Landlord and Tenant as herein provided and Permitted Encumbrances.  Except as expressly 
provided in Section 7.3 and this Article, Tenant shall promptly, at its own expense, take such 
action as may be necessary to duly discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, charge, 
encumbrance or claim if the same shall arise at any time; provided that if any such lien for labor 
or materials is established against the Project and Tenant shall first notify Landlord of Tenant's 
intention to do so, Tenant may in good faith contest any such lien, and in such event may permit 
the lien so contested to remain undischarged and unsatisfied during the period of such contest 
and any appeal therefrom but only if (1) nonpayment of any such item will not materially 
endanger the interest of Landlord in the Project and will not subject to loss or forfeiture the 
Project or any part thereof, and (2) the Tenant files with the Landlord an opinion of Independent 
Counsel stating in effect that neither event will occur.  Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for any 
expense incurred by Landlord in order to discharge or remove any such mortgage, pledge, lien, 
charge, encumbrance or claim. 

Section 8.4. Installation of Tenant's Equipment.  Tenant may at any time and from time 
to time, in its sole discretion and at its own expense, install items of fixtures, equipment and 
other personal property in or upon the Project.  All such items shall remain the sole property of 
Tenant, in which Landlord shall have no interest, and may be modified or removed by Tenant at 
any time provided that Tenant shall repair and restore on a timely basis any and all damage to the 
Project resulting from the installation, modification or removal of any such items.  Nothing in 



13239179v2 
 

26 
 

this Lease shall prevent Tenant from purchasing items to be installed pursuant to this section 
under a conditional sale or lease-purchase contract, or subject to a vendor's lien or security 
agreement, as security for the unpaid portion of the purchase price thereof, or from entering into 
any other loan agreement secured by a lien or security interest in such property provided that no 
such lien or security interest shall attach to any part of the Project.  Landlord and the Trustee 
shall, at the request and expense of Tenant, execute such releases and other documents as Tenant 
reasonably determines is necessary to facilitate such purchase or loan and as are consistent with 
the rights of the parties under this Lease; and as a condition to executing such documents, 
Landlord and the Trustee may require and in good faith conclusively rely upon a written 
statement of Tenant that the documents comply with the provisions of this section. 

Section 8.5. Modification of Project.  Subject to Tenant's rights under Section 8.4, 
Tenant shall, at its own expense, have the right to make repairs to the Project, and to make 
repairs, replacements, substitutions and modifications to all or any of the parts thereof.  All such 
work and any part or component used or installed to make a repair or as a replacement, 
substitution or modification, shall thereafter comprise part of the Project and be subject to the 
provisions of this Lease.  Such work shall not in any way damage the Project or cause it to be 
used for purposes other than those authorized under the provisions of State and Federal Law or 
those contemplated by this Lease; and the Project, upon completion of any such work shall be of 
value which is not less than the value of the Project prior to the commencement of such work.  
Any property for which a replacement or substitution is made pursuant to this section may be 
disposed of by Tenant in such manner and on such terms as are determined by Tenant.  Landlord 
shall also at Tenant's expense execute such other releases from the provisions of this Lease for 
any replacement equipment as Tenant may reasonably request.  For purposes of executing any 
such amendment or document, Landlord and Trustee may require and in good faith conclusively 
rely upon a written statement of Tenant that such amendment or document complies with the 
provisions of this section. 

Section 8.6. Easements and Utility Access.  Tenant may, at Tenant's expense, at any 
time and from time to time request Landlord to convey an easement affecting the Land to a 
corporate utility or public body, or any other person, upon written certification by an 
Independent Engineer that in its opinion the easement is necessary or desirable to provide road or 
other access or utility service for the Project or other property and will not impair the usefulness 
of the Project for the purposes contemplated in this Lease and will not destroy the means of 
ingress therefrom and egress therefrom.  No such easement shall result in any abatement of rents 
or other sums payable by Tenant under this Lease.  Landlord will execute the easement and will 
join in the execution of a supplement to this Lease and the Ground Lease, providing for the 
subordination of this Lease and the Ground Lease to any such easement; but the subordination 
shall not become effective until the following items are filed with, and/or where applicable, 
executed by, the Landlord: 

(1) a copy of the easement (or if Section 8.7 is applicable, release) executed or to be 
executed by Landlord; 

(2) a plat or survey of the Land prepared and certified by a registered Minnesota land 
surveyor, showing the land to be subjected to the easement as described in the easement (or if 
Section 8.7 is applicable, the land to be released) and the location in relation thereto of all 



13239179v2 
 

27 
 

buildings, structures and permanently installed equipment on the land, and all other easements, 
roads, tracks and utility installations; 

(3) evidence of the authority of the officers executing the lease supplement and 
easement (or, if Section 8.7 is applicable, the release) on behalf of Landlord and Tenant, 
including a certified copy of an authorizing resolution of the governing body of Landlord and of 
Tenant; and 

(4) the certificate of the Independent Engineer. 

Any money received by Tenant for the easement shall be remitted to the Landlord and credited to 
the Bond Fund.  For purposes of executing the instruments described in this section, Landlord 
and Trustee may require and in good faith conclusively rely upon a written statement of Tenant 
that the provisions of this section have been fully satisfied. 

Section 8.7. Release of Unimproved Land.  Tenant may, at Tenant's expense, at any 
time and from time to time request Landlord to release from the provisions of this Lease and the 
Ground Lease any part of the Land on which no building, structure or permanently installed 
equipment is situated, upon written certification by an Independent Engineer stating that in their 
opinion the Land proposed to be released is not needed for the operation of the Project for the 
purposes stated in this Lease, and that the release will not impair the usefulness of the Project for 
these purposes and will not destroy the means of ingress thereto and egress therefrom.  Landlord 
will join in the execution of a supplement to this Lease providing for the release thereof, subject 
to the following conditions: 

(1) the release shall not become effective until the filing with the Landlord of the 
following items: 

(A)  the items described in paragraphs (1) to (4), inclusive, of Section 8.6; and 

(B)  an opinion of Independent Counsel stating that the above documents satisfy 
the requirements of this Section and that the release is in appropriate form for 
execution by the respective parties; and 

(2) the Tenant shall not be entitled to any abatement, reduction, or diminution of any 
rents payable under this Lease. 

Section 8.8. Covenant For the Benefit of the Bondholders.  Tenant recognizes the 
authority of the Landlord to pledge all moneys receivable under this Lease, including any 
proceeds from the sale of all or a part of the Project, as security for the payment of the principal 
of and interest and redemption premiums, if any, on the Bonds.  Each of the terms and provisions 
of this Lease is a covenant for the use and benefit of the Holders of the Bonds, so long as any 
thereof shall remain outstanding; and the Trustee shall be deemed, on behalf of the Bondholders, 
a third party beneficiary of said terms and conditions; but upon payment in full of the Bonds and 
of all fees and charges of the Trustee, all references in this Lease to the Bonds shall be 
ineffective, and no Holder of any of the Bonds shall thereafter have any rights hereunder, save 
and except those that shall have theretofore vested. 



13239179v2 
 

28 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 

PROJECT WARRANTIES 

Section 9.1. Selection of Project.  The Project and the Contractors have been and are to 
be selected by Landlord, and Tenant shall have no responsibility in connection therewith, or with 
respect to the suitability of the Project for the use intended by Landlord or any delay or failure by 
the Contractors to construct the Project for use by Tenant. 

Section 9.2. Construction and Maintenance of Project.  Landlord is obligated to 
construct, inspect or maintain the Project or any portion thereof under any circumstances, such 
actions shall not be the obligation of Tenant. 

Section 9.3. Contractors' Warranties.  For and during the Term of this Lease, all of its 
interest in all Contractors' warranties and guarantees, express or implied, issued on or applicable 
to the Project, are assigned to the Landlord and the customary services furnished in connection 
with such warranties and guarantees are to be obtained at Landlord's expense. 

Section 9.4. Disclaimer of Warranties.  THE PROJECT IS LEASED TO TENANT 
HEREUNDER AS IS, AND LANDLORD MAKES NO WARRANTY OR 
REPRESENTATION, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE VALUE, DESIGN, 
CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR 
FITNESS FOR THE USE CONTEMPLATED BY TENANT OF THE PROJECT, OR ANY 
OTHER REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT. 

  



13239179v2 
 

29 
 

ARTICLE X 
 

PREPAYMENT 

Section 10.1. When Available.  Tenant shall have the option to purchase Landlord's 
interest in the Project on December 15, 2029, and any date thereafter, for a Purchase Option 
Price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds outstanding and accrued interest to the next day 
on which they may be called for redemption, plus past due Rental Payments, and only in the 
manner provided in this Article. 

Section 10.2. Exercise of Purchase Option.  Tenant shall give notice to Landlord and 
Trustee of its intention to exercise its purchase option not less than forty-five days prior to the 
date on which the option is to be exercised and shall deposit with the Trustee on the date of 
exercise an amount equal to all Rental Payments and any other amounts then due or past due and 
the applicable Purchase Option Price.  The purchase shall be on the date on which the option is 
to be exercised at the office of Landlord. 

Section 10.3. Release of Landlord's Interest.  Upon exercise by Tenant of its option to 
purchase Landlord's interest in the Project and payment of the Purchase Option Price, this Lease 
and the Ground Lease shall terminate and Tenant thereupon shall become entitled to the Project 
AS IS, WITHOUT WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES 
OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR FITNESS 
FOR THE USE CONTEMPLATED BY TENANT, except that the Project shall not be subject to 
any lien or encumbrance created by or arising through Landlord other than Permitted 
Encumbrances.  To evidence the foregoing, Landlord and Trustee, as agent for and on behalf of 
the Bondholders, shall, at the request and expense of Tenant, execute such documents as Tenant 
reasonably determines are required to convey and release to Tenant, any and all of their 
remaining right, title and/or interest in and to the Project. 

Section 10.4. Defeasance.  Tenant shall have the option to provide for the payment of 
the Rental Payments (and, if applicable, the Purchase Option Price) by the deposit with the 
Trustee in escrow on behalf of the holders of the Bonds of cash or securities for which the full 
faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of principal and interest or 
which are guaranteed as to payment of principal and interest by the United States, in an amount 
sufficient (together with interest earnings thereon) to provide for payment of said Rental 
Payments (and, if applicable, the Purchase Option Price) prior to their respective Payment Dates 
as provided in Section 5.1 through their final maturity date, or such earlier date upon which an 
option to purchase would have been exercisable by Tenant; provided that such earlier date is 
designated by Tenant as the date on which the applicable Purchase Option Price shall be paid; 
and provided further that Tenant files with Landlord and Trustee an opinion of Bond Counsel 
stating in effect that such defeasance will not impair the tax exempt status of the Bonds.  Upon 
exercise by Tenant of this option, this Lease and the Ground Lease shall terminate and, at the 
request and expense of Tenant, Landlord and Trustee shall convey and release their interest in 
the Project as provided in Section 10.3.  For purposes of executing such release both the 
Landlord and Trustee may in good faith conclusively rely upon a report of an independent 
certified public accountant stating in effect that the sums held in escrow satisfy the payment 
requirement set forth in this section. 



13239179v2 
 

30 
 

Section 10.5. Partial Prepayment or Defeasance.  Tenant shall have the option to prepay 
on December 15, 2029, or any date thereafter a portion of any Rental Payment selected by the 
Tenant and scheduled to become due under this Lease.  The Tenant shall also have the option to 
provide for the payment or prepayment, in increments, of a portion of Rental Payments 
scheduled to become due under this Lease by depositing in escrow with the Trustee sufficient 
funds for that purpose, in the manner and subject to the conditions set forth in Section 10.4 as if 
(a) those Rental Payments to be paid or prepaid were the only Rental Payments then scheduled to 
become due under this Lease and (b) any of the Rental Payments to be prepaid were the Purchase 
Option Price. 

Section 10.6. Exercise of Partial Prepayment or Defeasance Option.  Tenant shall give 
notice to Landlord and Trustee of its intention to exercise its option to partially prepay Rental 
Payments or defease its Rental Payment obligations, in whole or part, as provided in Sections 
10.4 and 10.5.  Tenant shall give such notice not less than forty-five days prior to the date on 
which a portion of any Rental Payments are to be prepaid, in whole or part, or the Purchase 
Option Price is to be paid, and shall deposit with Trustee on the date of exercise the sum required 
to effect such prepayment or defeasance. 

Section 10.7. Credit for Partial Prepayment or Defeasance.  If Tenant partially prepays 
or defeases any Rental Payments under Section 10.5 and thereafter elects to acquire the Project 
as provided in this article, the Tenant shall be entitled to credit against the applicable Purchase 
Option Price an amount equal to a portion of the Rental Payments scheduled to come due after 
the date as of which the applicable Purchase Option Price is calculated and taken into account at 
the time such partial prepayment or defeasance occurred. 

  



13239179v2 
 

31 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 

ASSIGNMENT, SUBLEASING, MORTGAGING AND SELLING 

Section 11.1. Assignment by Landlord.  Except for Landlord's assignment of this Lease 
to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture, Landlord shall not assign this Lease, in whole or in part, 
and no such purported assignment thereof shall be effective.  The Landlord's sole obligation is to 
provide to the Tenant quiet enjoyment of the Project.  Subject to the provisions of the Indenture, 
any and all of Landlord's rights, title and/or interest in and to this Lease, the Rental Payments and 
other amounts due hereunder and the Project may only be assigned and reassigned in whole to 
the Trustee without the consent of the Tenant. 

Section 11.2. Assignment and Subleasing by Tenant.  Neither this Lease nor Tenant's 
interest in the Project may be assigned or subleased by Tenant without the written consent of 
Landlord, and the Trustee and any such assignment or sublease shall not relieve Tenant from its 
obligations hereunder, including without limitation the obligation to make the Rental Payments 
hereunder; provided that Landlord's consent to any other sublease shall not be required if (1) the 
sublease provides that the sublessee will not take any action in derogation of Tenant's obligations 
hereunder, (2) a copy of the sublease is filed with Landlord and the Trustee, (3) the term of the 
sublease coincides with the term of this Lease, and (4) either (A) the sublease is to a 
Governmental Unit or (B) an opinion of Bond Counsel is first filed with the Landlord and the 
Trustee stating in effect that the sublease will not impair the tax-exempt status of the Bonds. 

Section 11.3. Restriction on Mortgage or Sale of Project by Tenant.  Tenant will not 
sell, transfer or convey its interest in the Project or any portion thereof during the Term of this 
Lease without the written consent of Landlord. 

  



13239179v2 
 

32 
 

ARTICLE XII 
 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT AND REMEDIES 

Section 12.1. Events of Default Defined.  The following shall be "events of default" 
under this Lease and the terms "events of default" and "default" shall mean, whenever they are 
used in this Lease, with respect to the Project, any one or more of the following events: 

(i)  Failure by Tenant to pay any Rental Payment or other payment 
required to be paid under this Lease at the time specified herein and, except in the case of 
a failure to pay when due any Rental Payment, the continuation of said failure for a 
period of seven days. 

(i)  Failure by Tenant to observe and perform any covenant, condition or 
agreement on its part to be observed or performed, other than as referred to in clause (i) 
of this section, for a period of thirty days after written notice specifying such failure and 
requesting that it be remedied has been given to Tenant by Landlord, unless Landlord 
shall agree in writing to an extension of such time prior to its expiration; provided, 
however, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected within the applicable 
period, Landlord will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of such time 
if corrective action is instituted by Tenant within the applicable period and diligently 
pursued until the default is corrected. 

(i)  The filing by Tenant of a voluntary petition in bankruptcy; or failure 
by Tenant promptly to lift any execution, garnishment or attachment of such consequence 
as would impair the ability of Tenant to carry on its governmental or proprietary function; 
or adjudication of Tenant as a bankrupt; or assignment by Tenant for the benefit of 
creditors, or the entry by Tenant into an agreement of composition with creditors; or the 
approval by a court of competent jurisdiction of a petition applicable to Tenant in any 
proceedings instituted under the provisions of federal bankruptcy laws, or any similar 
acts which may hereafter be enacted. 

(i)  The vacation or abandonment by the Tenant of the Project for a period 
of ninety consecutive days. 

The provisions of this section and Section 12.2 are subject to the following limitation:  if by 
reason of force majeure Tenant is unable in whole or in part to carry out its obligations under this 
Lease with respect to the Project, other than its obligation to pay Rental Payments with respect 
thereto, which shall be paid when due notwithstanding the provisions of this paragraph, Tenant 
shall not be deemed in default during the continuance of such inability.  The term "force 
majeure" as used herein shall mean, without limitation, the following: acts of nature; strikes, 
lockouts or other labor disturbances; acts of public enemies; orders or restraints of any kind of 
the government of the United States of America or the State or their respective departments, 
agencies or officials, or any civil or military authority; insurrections; riots, landslides; 
earthquakes; fires; storms; droughts; floods; explosions; breakage or accident to machinery, 
transmission pipes or canals; or any other cause or event not reasonably within the control of 
Tenant and not resulting from its negligence.  Tenant agrees, however, to remedy with all 



13239179v2 
 

33 
 

reasonable dispatch the cause or causes preventing Tenant from carrying out its obligations 
under this Lease; provided that the settlement of strikes, lockouts and other labor disturbances 
shall be entirely within the discretion of Tenant and Tenant shall not be required to make 
settlement of strikes, lockouts and other labor disturbances by acceding to the demands of the 
opposing party or parties when such course is, in the reasonable judgment of Tenant, unfavorable 
to Tenant. 

Section 12.2. Remedies on Default.  Whenever any event of default referred to in 
Section 12.1 shall have happened and be continuing with respect to the Project, the Landlord, 
shall have the right, at its option and without any further demand or notice, to take one or any 
combination of the following remedial steps: 

(i)  Landlord, with or without terminating this Lease, may declare all 
Rental Payments due or to become due during the Term of the Lease to be immediately 
due and payable by Tenant, whereupon such Rental Payments shall be immediately due 
and payable.  If Landlord has not terminated the Lease and has not declared all Rental 
Payments immediately due and payable and if Tenant has cured the event of default and 
has paid the late charge provided in Section 12.6, if applicable, the Tenant shall be 
restored to its former position before the event of default occurred. 

(i)  Landlord, with or without terminating this Lease, may repossess the 
Project or any portion thereof by giving Tenant written notice to vacate the Project, 
whereupon Tenant shall do so in the manner provided in Section 12.3; or in the event 
Tenant fails to do so within ten days after receipt of such notice, Landlord may enter 
upon the Project and take possession of the Project and charge Tenant for costs incurred 
in repossessing such portion of the Project, including reasonable attorneys' fees.  Tenant 
hereby expressly waives any damages occasioned by such repossession. 

(i)  If the Landlord terminates this Lease and takes possession of the 
Project or any portion thereof, Landlord shall have the right to lease or sell the Landlord's 
interests in the Project or any portion thereof, subject to Tenant's fee simple title interest 
therein, in a commercially reasonable manner at public or private sale in accordance with 
applicable State laws, and the Tenant agrees to use its best efforts to assist the Landlord 
in so doing.  Landlord shall apply the proceeds of such sale to pay the following items in 
the following order; (a) all costs incurred in securing possession of the Project and 
prepayment of the Bonds; (b) all expenses incurred in completing the sale; and (c) the 
balance of any accrued Rental Payments owed by Tenant. 

(i)  Landlord may take any other remedy available at law or in equity to 
require Tenant to perform any of its obligations hereunder. 

In no event, however, shall the Tenant be liable under this Article XII for Rental Payments (or 
the equivalent thereof) in excess of the moneys appropriated by it on a yearly basis (other than 
for any additional Rental Payments due if the Tenant occupies the Project after termination of 
this Lease pursuant to Section 4.3). 



13239179v2 
 

34 
 

Section 12.3. Return of Project.  Upon the termination of this Lease prior to the payment 
of all Rental Payments in accordance with Exhibit B, Tenant, shall vacate the Project in the 
condition, repair, appearance and working order required in Section 7.2, reasonable wear and 
tear, damage by the elements and insured damage excepted in the following manner as may be 
specified by Landlord; (i) by executing such documents as Landlord reasonably deems necessary 
to transfer all of Tenant's right, title and interest under this Lease in and to the Project to 
Landlord and (ii) by paying all reasonable costs and expenses whether incurred by the Landlord 
or Trustee (including attorneys fees) with respect to such transfer of the Property; provided that 
nothing herein shall limit the rights of the City as fee owner of the Land subject to the rights of 
the Landlord under the Ground Lease.  If Tenant refuses to return the Project in the manner 
designated, Landlord may repossess the Project and charge to Tenant the costs of such 
repossession or pursue any remedy described in Section 12.2. 

Section 12.4. No Remedy Exclusive.  No remedy conferred upon or reserved to 
Landlord by this Article is intended to be exclusive and every such remedy shall be cumulative 
and shall be in addition to every other remedy given under this Lease.  No delay or omission to 
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default shall impair any such right or power or 
shall be construed to be a waiver thereof but any such right and power may be exercised from 
time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient by Landlord or the Trustee. 

Section 12.5. Agreement to Pay Attorneys' Fees and Expenses.  In the event either party 
to this Lease should default under any of the provisions hereof and the non-defaulting party or 
Trustee should employ attorneys and/or incur other expenses for the collection of moneys or for 
the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or agreement on the part of the 
defaulting party herein contained, the defaulting party agrees that it will on demand therefor pay 
to the non-defaulting party or Trustee, as the case may be, the reasonable fees and expenses of 
such attorneys and/or such other reasonable expenses so incurred by the non-defaulting party or 
Trustee. 

Section 12.6. Late Charge.  Whenever any event of default referred to in Section 12.1, 
clause (i), hereof shall have happened and be continuing with respect to the Project, Landlord 
shall have the right, at its option and without any further demand or notice, to require a late 
payment charge equal to four percent of the delinquent amount or such lesser amount as may be 
permitted by Minnesota law if four percent exceeds the applicable limit under Minnesota law, 
and Tenant shall be obligated to pay the same immediately upon receipt of Landlord's written 
invoice therefor; provided, however, that this section shall not be applicable if or to the extent 
that the application thereof would affect the validity of this Lease. 

Section 12.7. Effect of Waiver.  In the event any agreement contained in this Agreement 
should be breached by either party and thereafter waived by the other party, such waiver shall be 
limited to the particular breach so waived and shall not be deemed to waive any other breach 
hereunder. 

  



13239179v2 
 

35 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROVISIONS 

Section 13.1. Notices.  All notices, certificates, legal opinions or other communications 
hereunder shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given if personally delivered or if 
telecopied or delivered by overnight express mail, with a copy to be sent by first class U.S. mail, 
postage prepaid, to the addresses specified in Section 13.07 of the Indenture; provided that 
Landlord and Tenant, by notice given hereunder, may designate different addresses to which 
subsequent notices, certificates, legal opinions or other communications will be sent. 

Section 13.2. Financial Information.  Tenant shall annually provide Landlord with 
current financial statements and budgets, and such other financial information relating to the 
ability of Tenant to continue this Lease as may be requested by Landlord. 

Section 13.3. Binding Effect.  This Lease shall inure to the benefit of and shall be 
binding upon Landlord and Tenant and their respective successors and assigns. 

Section 13.4. Severability.  In the event any provision of this Lease shall be held invalid 
or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or 
render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

Section 13.5. Amendments, Changes and Modifications.  This Lease may be amended 
or any of its terms modified only by written document duly authorized, executed and delivered 
by Landlord and Tenant. 

Section 13.6. Captions.  The captions or headings in this Lease are for convenience only 
and in no way define, limit or describe the scope or intent of any provision, Article, Section or 
Clause of this Lease. 

Section 13.7. Further Assurances and Corrective Instruments.  Landlord and Tenant 
agree that they will, from time to time, execute, acknowledge and deliver, or cause to be 
executed, acknowledged and delivered, such supplements hereto and such further instruments as 
may reasonably be required for correcting any inadequate or incorrect description of the Project 
hereby leased or intended so to be, or for otherwise carrying out the expressed intention of this 
Lease. 

Section 13.8. Execution In Counterparts.  This Lease may be simultaneously executed in 
several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 

Section 13.9. Applicable Law.  This Lease shall be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State. 



13239179v2 
 

 S-1 
 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have respectively caused this Lease to 

be duly executed in their names and on their behalf by their duly authorized representatives. 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 
THE CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA 
Landlord 

By______________________________ 
Its President 

By______________________________ 
Its Secretary 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ISANTI ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on ____________, 2021, by 
______________________and ________________, the President and the Secretary, 
respectively, of the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti, Minnesota, a public 
body corporate and politic of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of said Authority. 

__________________________ 
Notary Public 

 
 
 

Signature and Notary page to Lease Agreement. 
  



13239179v2 
 

 S-2 
 

CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA, Tenant 

By ____________________________________ 
     Its Mayor 

By ____________________________________ 
     Its Administrator 

 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
    ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ISANTI ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on ______________, 2021, by 
Jeff Johnson  and Josi Wood, the Mayor and Administrator, respectively, of the City of Isanti, a 
municipal corporation and political subdivision of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of said City. 

__________________________ 
Notary Public 

 

 

Signature and Notary page to Lease Agreement. 



13239179v2 
 

 A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LAND, PROJECT 
IMPROVEMENTS AND PROJECT EQUIPMENT 

Part I 
Land 

 
All that part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 29, Township 

35, Range 23, described as follows: Beginning at the Southwest corner of the Northwest 
Quarter of the Southeast Quarter; thence North along the West line of said Northwest Quarter 
of Southeast Quarter a distance of 375 feet; thence South 89 degrees 57 minutes 50 seconds 
East 580.8 feet; thence South 1 degree 16 minutes 15 seconds East 375 feet and to the South 
line of said Northwest Quarter of Southeast Quarter; thence West along said South line 580.8 
feet, more or less, and to the Southwest corner of said Northwest Quarter of said Southeast 
Quarter, being the point of beginning and there to terminate.  

Together with a nonexclusive easement for ingress, egress and utility purposes over and 
across the South 295 feet of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 29, 
Township 35, Range 23 (as measured at right angles to the South line of said Northeast 
Quarter of Southeast Quarter), lying easterly of the easterly right-of-way line of State Trunk 
Highway No. 65 and westerly of a line drawn parallel with and distant 66 feet easterly of said 
easterly right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway No. 65 (as measured at right angles to said 
easterly right-of-way line).  

And also including a nonexclusive easement for ingress, egress and utility purposes over 
and across the South 66 feet of that part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of 
Section 29, Township 35, Range 23, lying easterly of the East right-of-way line of State 
Trunk Highway No. 65, as measured at right angles to the South line of said Northeast 
Quarter of Southwest Quarter, Isanti County, Minnesota. 

 
Part II 

Project Improvements 

All buildings, structures, improvements and fixtures located on or to be purchased, constructed, 
renovated, bettered, enlarged, and otherwise improved on the Land (more specifically defined in 
Section 1.1 of this Lease). 

Part III 
Project Equipment 

All items of machinery, equipment and other personal property installed or to be acquired for 
installation in the Project (more specifically defined in Section 1.1 of this Lease). 



13239179v2 
 

 B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

SCHEDULE OF RENTAL PAYMENTS 
 

Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti, Minnesota 
$3,280,000 Public Project Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A 

 
Due Date  Principal    Interest  Rental Payments 

        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        

Total  $3,280,000.00   $    $ 
 



13239179v2 
 

 C-1 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

DRAW REQUEST CERTIFICATE 

I, _________________ of the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota (the "Authority) hereby requisition from the Construction Fund created by a Indenture 
of Trust (the "Indenture"), dated as of June 1, 2021, between the Authority and U.S. Bank 
National Association, as Trustee, relating to the issuance by the Authority of $3,280,000 Public 
Project Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A (City of Isanti, Minnesota, Lease With Option to 
Purchase Project) and in accordance with Section 3.3 of the Lease Agreement dated June 1, 2021 
between the Authority and the City of Isanti, Minnesota (the "Lease"), the sums indicated in 
Exhibit A to be paid to the parties listed therein in payment and/or reimbursement for payment 
for the work described therein.  A copy of each bill setting forth each item of Project Cost to be 
paid or reimbursed (and in the case of reimbursement evidence of payment of such item of Cost) 
as herein provided is attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT: 

 (a)  each item of Project Cost for which payment or reimbursement is herein 
requested was necessary in connection with the Project and has not formed the basis for 
any previous payment from the Construction Fund; 

 (b)  with respect to all Project Cost items incurred under any construction contract 
providing for the retention of a portion of the contract price, the total amount certified for 
payment or reimbursement of such Project Costs does not exceed the net contract price 
after deducting any portion to be withheld. 

____________________________ 
Landlord Representative 



13239179v2 
 

  
 

EXHIBIT A 

Schedule of Amounts Due and Payable From Construction Fund Directly to Named Payees: 
 

Name and Address 
of Payee 

Payment 
Requested 

Work Done 
by Payee 

   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 

Schedule of Amounts Due and Payable To Authority From Construction Fund as Reimbursement 
for Payment by Authority: 
 

Name and Address 
of Payee Paid 

By City 
Reimbursement 

Requested 

Work Done 
By Payee of 

City 
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
 

 



13239183v2 
 

 

INDENTURE OF TRUST 

BETWEEN 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA, 
as Issuer 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, 
as Trustee 

Dated as of June 1, 2021 

This Instrument Drafted By: 
Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP (MLI) 
2200 IDS Center 
80 South 8th Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 



13239183v2 
 

 

  
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 PAGE 
ARTICLE I DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION ........................................................ 4 

Section 1.01 Definitions............................................................................................ 4 
Section 1.02 Additional Provisions as to Interpretation ........................................... 9 

ARTICLE II FORM, EXECUTION AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS .......................... 11 
Section 2.01 Form, Maturities and Denomination of Series 2021A Bonds............ 11 
Section 2.02 Execution of Bonds ............................................................................ 11 
Section 2.03 Authentication of Bonds .................................................................... 12 
Section 2.04 Registration, Transfers and Exchange ............................................... 12 
Section 2.05 Payment of Interest on Series 2021A Bonds; Interest Rights 

Preserved ............................................................................................ 13 
Section 2.06 Ownership of Bonds .......................................................................... 14 
Section 2.07 Replacement of Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds ........... 14 
Section 2.08 Conditions for Authentication of Series 2021A Bonds ..................... 14 
Section 2.09 Book-Entry Only System ................................................................... 15 
Section 2.10 Termination of Book-Entry Only System .......................................... 15 
Section 2.11 Issuance of Additional Bonds ............................................................ 16 

ARTICLE III REDEMPTION OF BONDS ............................................................................. 18 
Section 3.01 Redemption of Series 2021A Bonds .................................................. 18 
Section 3.02 Written Notice to Trustee ................................................................... 19 
Section 3.03 Mailing of Notice ............................................................................... 19 
Section 3.04 Deposit for Redemption ..................................................................... 19 
Section 3.05 Payment of Redeemed Bonds ............................................................ 19 
Section 3.06 Cancellation of Redeemed Bonds ...................................................... 20 
Section 3.07 Partial Redemption of Bonds ............................................................. 20 
Section 3.08 Conditional Redemption of Bonds..................................................... 21 

ARTICLE IV BOND PROCEEDS; CONSTRUCTION FUND ............................................. 22 
Section 4.01 Deposit of Series 2021A Bond Proceeds ........................................... 22 
Section 4.02 Establishment of Construction Fund .................................................. 22 
Section 4.03 Project Costs Defined ........................................................................ 22 
Section 4.04 Payments from Construction Fund .................................................... 22 
Section 4.05 Deposit and Investment of Excess Moneys ....................................... 23 
Section 4.06 Application of Balance in Construction Fund ................................... 23 

ARTICLE V DISPOSITION OF TRUST MONEYS ............................................................. 24 
Section 5.01 "Trust Moneys" Defined .................................................................... 24 
Section 5.02 Bond Fund .......................................................................................... 24 
Section 5.03 Reserve Fund ..................................................................................... 25 
Section 5.04 Investment of Funds ........................................................................... 25 
Section 5.05 Return on Investments ....................................................................... 26 
Section 5.06 Computation of Balances in Trust Fund ............................................ 27 

ARTICLE VI PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER ........................................... 28 
Section 6.01 Payment of Bonds .............................................................................. 28 



13239183v2 
 

 

 ii 
 

Section 6.02 Extensions of Payments of Bonds...................................................... 28 
Section 6.03 Authority of the Issuer ....................................................................... 28 
Section 6.04 Concerning the Lease ......................................................................... 29 
Section 6.05 To Observe All Covenants and Terms; Limitations on Issuer's 

Obligations ......................................................................................... 29 
Section 6.06 Liens ................................................................................................... 29 
Section 6.07 Rebate ................................................................................................ 29 

ARTICLE VII EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES ............................................................ 30 
Section 7.01 Events of Default ............................................................................... 30 
Section 7.02 Enforcement of Covenants and Conditions ....................................... 30 
Section 7.03 Trustee May File Proofs of Claims .................................................... 32 
Section 7.04 Application of Moneys ...................................................................... 32 
Section 7.05 Right of Trustee to Act Without Possession of Bonds ...................... 33 
Section 7.06 Control by Bondholders ..................................................................... 34 
Section 7.07 Limitation on Suits by Bondholders .................................................. 34 
Section 7.08 Waiver by Bondholders ..................................................................... 35 
Section 7.09 Remedies Cumulative, Delay Not To Constitute Waiver .................. 35 
Section 7.10 Restoration of Rights Upon Discontinuance of Proceedings ............. 35 
Section 7.11 Suits to Protect the Trust Estate and Other Property ......................... 35 

ARTICLE VIII CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE ...................................................................... 37 
Section 8.01 Acceptance of Trust and Prudent Performance Thereof .................... 37 
Section 8.02 Trustee May Rely Upon Certain Documents and Opinions .............. 38 
Section 8.03 Trustee Not Responsible for Indenture Statements, Validity ............ 39 
Section 8.04 Limits on Duties and Liabilities of Trustee ....................................... 39 
Section 8.05 Money Held in Trust .......................................................................... 39 
Section 8.06 Obligation of Trustee ......................................................................... 40 
Section 8.07 Notice to Bondholders ....................................................................... 40 
Section 8.08 Intervention in Judicial Proceedings .................................................. 40 
Section 8.09 Further Investigation by Trustee ........................................................ 40 
Section 8.10 Trustee to Retain Financial Records .................................................. 41 
Section 8.11 Compensation of Trustee ................................................................... 41 
Section 8.12 Trustee May Hold Bonds ................................................................... 41 
Section 8.13 Appointment of Trustee ..................................................................... 41 
Section 8.14 Merger of Trustee .............................................................................. 41 
Section 8.15 Resignation or Removal of Trustee ................................................... 42 
Section 8.16 Appointment of Successor Trustee .................................................... 42 
Section 8.17 Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor Trustee....................... 42 
Section 8.18 Co-Trustee.......................................................................................... 43 
Section 8.19 Appointment of Successor or Alternate Paying Agents .................... 45 

ARTICLE IX CONCERNING THE BONDHOLDERS ......................................................... 46 
Section 9.01 Execution of Instruments by Bondholders ......................................... 46 
Section 9.02 Waiver of Notice ................................................................................ 46 
Section 9.03 Determination of Bondholder Concurrence ....................................... 46 
Section 9.04 Bondholders' Meeting ........................................................................ 46 
Section 9.05 Revocation by Bondholders ............................................................... 48 



13239183v2 
 

 

 iii 
 

ARTICLE X PAYMENT, DEFEASANCE AND RELEASE ................................................ 49 
Section 10.01 Payment and Discharge of Indenture ................................................. 49 
Section 10.02 Bonds Deemed Not Outstanding After Deposits ............................... 50 
Section 10.03 Unclaimed Money to be Returned ..................................................... 50 

ARTICLE XI SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES .................................................................. 51 
Section 11.01 Purposes for Which Supplemental Indentures May be Executed ...... 51 
Section 11.02 Execution of Supplemental Indenture ................................................ 52 
Section 11.03 Rights of Trustee ................................................................................ 52 
Section 11.04 Modification of Indenture with Consent of Bondholders .................. 52 
Section 11.05 Supplemental Indentures to be Part of Indenture ............................... 53 
Section 11.06 Rights of City Unaffected .................................................................. 53 
Section 11.07 Rights of Issuer .................................................................................. 53 

ARTICLE XII AMENDMENTS TO THE LEASE OR OTHER COLLATERAL 
DOCUMENT .................................................................................................... 54 

Section 12.01 Amendments to the Lease or Ground Lease Not Requiring 
Consent of Bondholders ..................................................................... 54 

Section 12.02 Amendments to Lease or Ground Lease Requiring Consent of 
Bondholders ....................................................................................... 54 

Section 12.03 No Amendment May Reduce Rental Payments................................. 54 
Section 12.04 Rights of Issuer and City.................................................................... 54 

ARTICLE XIII MISCELLANEOUS .......................................................................................... 55 
Section 13.01 Covenants of Issuer Bind Successors and Assigns ............................ 55 
Section 13.02 Immunity of Officers ......................................................................... 55 
Section 13.03 No Benefits to Outside Parties ........................................................... 55 
Section 13.04 Separability of Indenture Provisions .................................................. 55 
Section 13.05 Execution of Indenture in Counterparts ............................................. 55 
Section 13.06 Headings Not Controlling .................................................................. 55 
Section 13.07 Notices etc., to Trustee, Issuer and City ............................................ 55 

 
EXHIBIT A - LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND .................................................................. A-1 
EXHIBIT B - FORM OF BOND ............................................................................................... B-1 
 
 
 



13239183v2 
 

 

 

T R U S T   I N D E N T U R E 

THIS TRUST INDENTURE, dated as of June 1, 2021, is by and between the Economic 
Development Authority of the City of Isanti , Minnesota, a public body corporate and politic of 
the State of Minnesota (herein sometimes called the "Issuer"), and U.S. Bank National 
Association, a national banking association having its main corporate office and principal place 
of business in St. Paul, Minnesota (herein sometimes called the "Trustee"): 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the Issuer is authorized under the laws of Minnesota, including Minnesota 
Statutes, Sections 469.090 through 469.1082, and the powers conferred on the Issuer therein 
(collectively, the "Issuer Powers Act") to issue revenue bonds in aid of certain projects; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti, Minnesota (the "City") is authorized under Minnesota 
Statutes, Section 465.71 and 469.041 as amended (the "City Powers Act"), to acquire the interest 
in real and personal property pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2021 (the 
"Lease"), and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has agreed to issue its $3,280,000 Public Project Lease Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2021A (City of Isanti, Minnesota, Lease with Option to Purchase Project), dated as 
of the Date of Original Issuance as hereinafter defined (the "Series 2021A Bonds"), the proceeds 
of which will be used to finance the cost of construction of a municipal liquor store (the 
"Project") in the City under the Issuer Powers Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has deemed it advisable to enter into this Indenture and has duly 
authorized the issuance of the Series 2021A Bonds as provided herein; and 

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2021A Bonds, together with any other required 
funds, will be used for the specific authorized purpose of providing funds to pay Project Costs; 
and 

WHEREAS, the Lease requires that, from and after the date hereof, the City make Rental 
Payments thereunder in amounts and at times sufficient to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Series 2021A Bonds, when due; and 

WHEREAS, the execution and delivery of this Indenture and the Lease and the issuance 
of the Series 2021A Bonds have been authorized by the Board of Commissioners, the governing 
body, of the Issuer pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Commissioners on May 18, 
2021 (the "Bond Resolution"); and 

WHEREAS, the Project is essential to the operations of the Issuer and the City; and 

WHEREAS, the form of the Series 2021A Bonds, is in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B; and 

WHEREAS, the Trustee hereby accepts the trust created by this Indenture and in 
evidence thereof has joined in the execution hereof; 



13239183v2 
 

 

 2 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THIS INDENTURE WITNESSETH: 

GRANTING CLAUSES 

That the Issuer in order to secure the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds issued under this Indenture according  to their tenor and effect and the performance and 
observance of each and all of the covenants and conditions herein and therein contained, and for 
and in consideration of the premises and of the purchase and acceptance of the Bonds by the 
respective purchaser or purchasers and Holders thereof, and for other good and valuable 
considerations, the receipt whereof is hereby acknowledged, has executed and delivered this 
Indenture and has granted, bargained, sold, assigned, transferred, conveyed, warranted, pledged 
and set over, and by these presents does hereby grant, bargain, sell, assign, transfer, convey, 
warrant, pledge and set over, unto the Trustee (which the Trustee does hereby accept and 
assume) and to its successor or successors in the trust hereby created and to its or their assigns 
forever: 

I. 

All of the rights, title and interests and privileges of the Issuer in, to and under the (i) 
Lease except for the rights of the Issuer under Sections 5.3(c), 6.5, 12.5 and 12.6 of the Lease, 
and (ii) the Ground Lease. 

II. 

A first lien on and pledge of (i) the moneys and investments in the Bond Fund and 
Reserve Fund covenanted to be created and maintained under this Indenture and (ii) moneys and 
investments in the Construction Fund not used to pay Project Costs. 

III. 

The option and any and all other property of every name and nature from time to time 
hereafter by delivery or by writing of any kind conveyed, assigned or transferred, or in which a 
security interest is granted, by the Issuer or the City or by anyone on behalf of them or with their 
written consent, to the Trustee, which is hereby authorized to receive any and all such property at 
any and all times and to hold and apply the same to the terms hereof, and all insurance proceeds 
and condemnation awards or other moneys represented by "Trust Moneys" (as defined in Section 
5.01). 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD all and singular the said property hereby conveyed and 
assigned, or agreed or intended so to be, to the Trustee, its successor or successors in trust and its 
and their assigns, FOREVER. 

IN TRUST NEVERTHELESS, upon the terms and trust herein set forth, for the equal 
and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all Holders of the Bonds issued or to be 
issued under and secured by this Indenture, without preference, priority or distinction as to lien 
or otherwise of any of the Bonds over any of the others. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 3 
 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that if the Issuer, its successors or assigns, shall well and truly 
pay or cause to be paid the principal of the Bonds and the premium (if any) and interest due or to 
become due thereon, at the times and in the manner mentioned in the Bonds, according to the 
true intent and meaning thereof, or shall provide, as permitted hereby, for the payment thereof by 
depositing with the Trustee sums sufficient to pay the entire amount due or to become due 
thereon, and shall well and truly keep, perform and observe all the covenants and conditions 
pursuant to the terms of this Indenture to be kept, performed and observed by it and shall pay to 
the Trustee all sums of money due or to become due to it in accordance with the terms and 
provisions hereof; then upon such final payment this Indenture and the rights hereby granted, 
including the estate, right and interest of the Trust Estate (as herein defined) shall cease, 
determine and be void; otherwise, this Indenture to be and remain in full force and effect. 

THIS INDENTURE FURTHER WITNESSETH, and it is expressly declared that, all 
Bonds issued and secured hereunder are to be issued, authenticated and delivered and all 
property hereby assigned or pledged is to be dealt with and disposed of under, upon and subject 
to the terms, conditions, stipulations, covenants, agreements, trusts, uses and purposes as 
hereinafter expressed, and the Issuer does hereby agree and covenant with the Trustee and with 
the respective Holders from time to time, of the Bonds, as follows: 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 4 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION 

Section 1.01  Definitions.  Unless the context otherwise requires, the terms defined in this 
article and in the recitals and succeeding articles of this Indenture shall, for all purposes of this 
Indenture and of any indenture supplemental hereto, have the meanings herein specified; and any 
term defined in the Lease which is used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning 
in this Indenture as is prescribed for that term in the Lease. 

Act:  collectively the Issuer Powers Act and the City Powers Act, as amended from time 
to time. 

Additional Bonds:  any additional bonds issued pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
Section 2.11. 

Additional Rental Payments:  rent payable for the purposes provided for in Section 5.3 of 
the Lease. 

Beneficial Owner:  means the person for which a DTC Participant holds an interest in the 
Bonds as shown on the books and records of the DTC Participant. 

Board:  the Board of Commissioners, the governing body, of the Issuer. 

Bond Counsel:  means Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP or any other attorney or firm of 
attorneys nationally recognized as experienced in matters relating to the tax-exempt financing of 
projects within the City and acceptable to the City and the Issuer. 

Bond Fund:  the Bond Fund created under Section 5.02. 

Bond Register:  the register maintained by the Trustee pursuant to Section 2.04. 

Bond Resolution:  the resolution adopted by the Board on May 18, 2021, authorizing the 
issuance and sale of the Series 2021A Bonds, as the same may be amended, modified or 
supplemented. 

Bonds:  the Series 2021A Bonds and any Additional Bonds. 

Cede & Co.: means, initially, Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC and any successor or 
subsequent such nominee designated by DTC respecting DTC's functions as book-entry 
depository for the Bonds. 

Certificate:  a certification in writing required or permitted by the provisions of the Lease 
or the Indenture, signed and delivered to the Trustee or other proper person or persons. 

Certified Resolution:  a copy of a resolution of the Board, certified by the Issuer's 
Secretary or other appropriate official to have been duly adopted by the Board and to be in full 
force and effect on the date of such certification. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 5 
 

City:  the City of Isanti, Minnesota, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of 
the State of Minnesota. 

City Powers Act:  Minnesota Statutes, Sections 465.71 and 469.041, as from time to time 
amended. 

City Representative:  the City Administrator, or any other person at any time designated 
in writing by the City to act in such capacity as evidenced by a written certificate furnished to the 
Issuer and the Trustee containing the specimen signature of such person and signed for the City 
by the Mayor. 

Co-Trustee:  Any co-trustee as permitted pursuant to Section 8.18. 

Collateral Document:  collectively, the Lease, the Ground Lease and any other security 
instruments now or hereafter given to the Trustee by the Issuer or the City to secure the Bonds. 

Completion Date:  the date certified as provided in Section 3.5 of the Lease. 

Construction Fund:  the Construction Fund created under Section 4.02. 

Construction Period:  the period between the beginning of construction of the Project or 
the date on which the Series 2021A Bonds are first delivered to the purchaser thereof, whichever 
is earlier, and the Completion Date. 

Date of Original Issuance:  June 16, 2021. 

Default:  a default by the Issuer in the performance or observance of any of the 
covenants, agreements or conditions on its part contained in this Indenture, exclusive of any 
notice or period of grace required to constitute a default an "Event of Default" as described in 
Section 7.01. 

DTC: means Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited purpose trust 
company organized under the laws of the State of New York, or any successor book-entry 
securities depository for the Bonds appointed pursuant to Section 2.09. 

DTC Participant: means those broker-dealers, banks and other financial institutions from 
time to time for which DTC holds Bonds or securities as depository. 

Event of Default:  an Event of Default described in Section 7.01 which has not been 
cured. 

Financial Newspaper:  The Isanti-Chicago County Star or any other newspaper or journal 
of general circulation in the English language in Isanti, Minnesota. 

Fiscal Year:  the fiscal year of the City, currently being the 12-month period commencing 
on January 1 in each year and ending on December 31, of the same year. 

Funds:  the Bond Fund, the Reserve Fund, and the Construction Fund. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 6 
 

Government Obligations:  direct obligations of the United States of America or 
obligations the full and timely payment of the principal of and any interest on which is 
unconditionally guaranteed by the United States of America. 

Ground Lease: the Ground Lease Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2021 between the City 
as lessor, and the Issuer as lessee, whereby the City leases the Land to the Issuer. 

Holder, Bondholder or Owner:  the person or persons in whose name any Bond shall be 
registered. 

Indenture:  this Indenture of Trust, and any amendments or supplements hereto. 

Independent:  any person who is not an officer or a full-time employee of the Issuer or 
the City. 

Independent Counsel:  an Independent attorney duly admitted to practice law before the 
highest court of any state. 

Independent Engineer:  an Independent engineer or engineering firm or an Independent 
architect or architectural firm qualified to practice the profession of engineering or architecture 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota. 

Interest Payment Date:  for the Series 2021A Bonds, each December 15 and June 15 
commencing June 15, 2022. 

Internal Revenue Code:  the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended from time to 
time. 

Issuer:  the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti , Minnesota. 

Issuer Powers Act:  Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.090 to 469.1082 and all powers 
referenced therein as from time to time amended. 

Issuer Representative:  the President or the Secretary of the Issuer and any other person 
or persons at the time designated to act on behalf of the Issuer by written certificate furnished to 
the Trustee, containing the specimen signature of such person and signed on behalf of the Issuer 
by its President or Secretary. 

Land:  the real property leased to the Issuer under the Ground Lease and described in 
Exhibit A hereto. 

Lease:  the Lease Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2021, by and between the Issuer, as 
Landlord, and the City, as Tenant. 

Opinion of Counsel:  a written opinion of counsel (who need not be Independent Counsel 
unless so specified) appointed by the Issuer or City. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 7 
 

Outstanding:  used as of any particular time with reference to Bonds, means (subject to 
the provisions of Section 9.03 pertaining to Bonds held by the Issuer or the City) all Bonds 
theretofore authenticated and delivered by the Trustee under the Indenture except:  (i) Bonds 
theretofore cancelled by the Trustee or surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation; (ii) Bonds for 
the payment or redemption of which funds or direct obligations of or obligations fully guaranteed 
by the United States of America in the necessary amount shall have theretofore been deposited 
with the Trustee (whether upon or prior to the maturity or the redemption date of such Bonds), 
provided that if such Bonds are to be redeemed prior to the maturity thereof, notice of such 
redemption shall have been given pursuant to Article III, or provision satisfactory to the Trustee 
shall have been made for the giving of such notice, all as provided in Article X; and (iii) Bonds 
in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been authenticated and delivered by 
the Trustee pursuant to the terms of Section 2.07 pertaining to replacement of Bonds. 

Project Costs:  the costs defined in the Lease. 

Purchaser:  Northland Securities, Inc., Minneapolis, Minnesota. 

Qualified Investments:  obligations in which the Issuer is authorized by law to invest, 
subject to the further limitation that they also constitute one of the following: 

A. governmental bonds, notes, bills, mortgages (excluding high-risk 
mortgage-backed securities), and other securities, which are direct obligations or are 
guaranteed or insured issues of the United States, its agencies, its instrumentalities, or 
organizations created by an act of Congress; 

B. any security which is a general obligation of any state or local government 
with taxing powers which is rated "A" or better by a national bond rating service;  

C. any security which is a revenue obligation of any state or local 
government with taxing powers which is rated "AA" or better by a national bond rating 
service; 

D. a general obligation of the Minnesota housing finance agency which is a 
moral obligation of the state of Minnesota and is rated "A" or better by a national bond 
rating agency; 

E. commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian 
subsidiaries that is rated in the highest quality category by at least two nationally 
recognized rating agencies and matures in 270 days or less; 

F. time deposits that are fully insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation or bankers acceptances of United States banks;  

G. agreements or contracts for guaranteed investment contracts if issued or 
guaranteed by United States commercial banks, domestic branches of foreign banks, 
United States insurance companies, or their Canadian subsidiaries, the credit quality of 
short- and long-term unsecured debt of the issuer's or guarantor's of which must be rated 
in one of the two highest categories by a nationally recognized rating agency; and should 



13239183v2 
 

 

 8 
 

the issuer's or guarantor's credit quality be downgraded below "A", the government entity 
must have withdrawal rights; 

H. agreements or contracts for shares of a Minnesota joint powers investment 
trust whose investments are restricted to securities described in Minnesota Statutes, 
Sections 118A.04 and 118A.05;  

I. agreements or contracts for units of a short-term investment fund 
established and administered pursuant to Regulation 9 of the Office of the Comptroller of 
the Currency, in which investments are restricted to securities described in Minnesota 
Statutes, Sections 118A.04 and 118A.05;  

J. agreements or contracts for shares of an investment company which is 
registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and which holds itself out 
as a money market fund meeting the conditions of Rule 2a-7 of the Securities and 
Exchange Commission and is rated in one of the two highest rating categories for money 
market funds by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization; or  

K. agreements or contracts for shares of an investment company which is 
registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940, and whose shares are 
registered under the Federal Securities Act of 1933, as long as the investment company's 
fund receives the highest credit rating and is rated in one of the two highest risk rating 
categories by at least one nationally recognized statistical rating organization and is 
invested in financial instruments with a final maturity no longer than 13 months. 

Ratings of Qualified Investments referred to herein shall be determined at the time of 
purchase of such Qualified Investments and the Trustee shall have not duty or obligation to 
monitor the ratings of Qualified Investments  after the initial purchase of such Qualified 
Investments including at the time of reinvestment of earnings thereof. 

Rebate Expert:  Bond Counsel or any other person experienced in matters relating to 
compliance with the rebate requirements under Section 148(f) of the Code, selected by the 
Issuer. 

Rebate Fund: any "Rebate Fund" created by the Trustee under Section 6.07. 

Regular Record Date:  the meaning given that term in Section 2.05. 

Rental Payments:  rental payments payable by the City under Article V of the Lease. 

Representation Letter:  means such letter of representations to DTC or other 
documentation required by DTC as a condition to its acting as book-entry depository for the 
Bonds together with any replacement thereof or amendment or supplement thereto (and 
including any structured procedures or policies referenced therein or applicable thereto) 
respecting the procedures and other matters relating to DTC's role as book-entry depository for 
the Bonds. 

Reserve Fund: the Reserve Fund created under Section 5.03. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 9 
 

Reserve Requirement:  the amount(s) required pursuant to Section 5.03 as the Reserve 
Requirement to secure payment of the Series 2021A Bonds. 

Responsible Officer:  means, when used with respect to the Trustee, any officer within 
the corporate trust department of the Trustee, including any vice president, assistant vice 
president, assistant secretary, assistant treasurer, trust officer or any other officer of the Trustee 
who customarily performs functions similar to those performed by the persons who at the time 
shall be such officers, respectively, or to whom any corporate trust matter is referred because of 
such person's knowledge of and familiarity with the particular subject and who shall have direct 
responsibility for the administration of this Indenture. 

Series 2021A Bonds:  the $3,280,000 Public Project Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A 
(City of Isanti, Minnesota, Lease with Option to Purchase Project), dated the Date of Original 
Issuance, of the Issuer authorized by this Indenture and the Bond Resolution and described in 
Section 2.01. 

Special Record Date:  has the meaning set forth in Section 2.05. 

Trustee:  U.S. Bank National Association, St. Paul, Minnesota, or the successor thereto at 
the time serving as such trustee under this Indenture. 

Trust Funds:  the funds established under this Indenture, other than the Rebate Fund. 

Trust Estate:  the property and funds described in the granting clauses of this Indenture, 
including the Trust Funds. 

Section 1.02  Additional Provisions as to Interpretation.  All references herein to 
"articles", "sections" and other subdivisions are to the corresponding articles, sections or 
subdivisions of this Indenture; and the words "herein", "hereof", "hereunder" and other words of 
similar import refer to this Indenture as a whole and not to any particular Article, Section or 
subdivision hereof.  The terms defined in this article shall include the plural as well as the 
singular. 

Whenever in this Indenture it is provided or permitted that there be deposited with or held 
in trust by the Trustee money or funds in the necessary amount to pay or redeem any Bonds, the 
amount so to be deposited or held shall be the principal amount of such Bonds and all unpaid 
interest thereon to maturity, except that in the case of Bonds which are to be redeemed prior to 
maturity and in respect of which there shall have been furnished to the Trustee proof satisfactory 
to it that notice of such redemption on a specified redemption date has been duly given or 
provision satisfactory to the Trustee shall be made for such notice, the amount so to be deposited 
or held shall be the principal amount of such Bonds and interest thereon to the redemption date, 
together with the redemption premium, if any. 

Any terms defined in the Lease but not defined herein shall have the same meaning 
herein unless the context hereof clearly requires otherwise. 

This Indenture is governed by and shall be construed in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Minnesota. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 10 
 

IT IS THE SPECIFIC PURPOSE AND INTENT OF THIS INDENTURE, AND ANY 
OTHERS ANCILLARY HERETO, THAT THE ISSUER SHALL UNDERGO NO EXPENSE 
OF WHATEVER NATURE, KIND OR VARIETY.  THE TRUSTEE AND THE ISSUER 
(AND THE CITY) DO SPECIFICALLY AGREE THAT THE CITY SHALL PAY ANY AND 
ALL EXPENSES AND FEES OF THE TRUSTEE RELATING DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY 
TO THE PROJECT IN ANY FASHION WHATEVER.  IN THE EVENT ANY CONFLICT OF 
LANGUAGE SHALL BE NOW OR SUBSEQUENTLY DETERMINED, THIS PROVISION 
SHALL IN ALL RESPECTS GOVERN THE FISCAL RESPONSIBILITIES OF BOTH THE 
ISSUER AND THE CITY. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 11 
 

ARTICLE II 
 

FORM, EXECUTION AND REGISTRATION OF BONDS 

Section 2.01  Form, Maturities and Denomination of Series 2021A Bonds.  The Series 
2021A Bonds shall be designated "Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota, $3,280,000 Public Project Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A (City of Isanti, 
Minnesota, Lease With Option to Purchase Project)".  The form of the Series 2021A Bonds shall 
be substantially in the form set forth in Exhibit B.  The Series 2021A Bonds shall be in printed 
form in the denomination of $5,000, or any integral multiple thereof, initially numbered R-1 and 
upwards or in such other manner as the Trustee may determine, and shall be dated the Date of 
Original Issuance.  The Series 2021A Bonds issued in exchange for or transfer of other Series 
2021A Bonds shall bear interest from the date to which interest has been paid on the Series 
2021A Bonds being surrendered for exchange on transfer.  The Series 2021A Bonds shall bear 
interest payable semiannually on December 15 and June 15 of each year, commencing June 15, 
2022 (each and “Interest Payment Date”).  The principal or redemption price (if applicable) of the 
Series 2021A Bonds shall be payable to the Holder upon presentation and surrender at the office 
of the Trustee, except as otherwise provided in Section 2.09.  The Series 2021A Bonds shall be 
payable in such coin or currency of the United States of America as may at the time be legal 
tender for the payment of public and private debts, and interest on Series 2021A Bonds shall be 
paid by check or draft mailed to the Holder at the Holder's address.  The Regular Record Date for 
the payment of interest on the Series 2021A Bonds payable on any Interest Payment Date shall be 
the first day (whether or not a Business Day) of the calendar month of such Interest Payment 
Date.  The Series 2021A Bonds shall be in the aggregate principal amount of $3,280,000, shall 
mature on December 15 in the years and amounts and shall bear interest at the rates per annum, 
according to years of maturity, as follows: 

Year Amount Interest Rate Year Amount Interest Rate 
      

2022 $                % 2030 $                % 
2023   2031   
2024   2032   
2025   2033   
2026   2034   
2027   2035   
2028   2036   
2029       

      
Section 2.02  Execution of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the Issuer 

by the manual or facsimile signatures of the President and Secretary of the Issuer, and each Bond 
shall be authenticated by the manually executed signature of a Responsible Officer of the Trustee, 
which is hereby designated and appointed as authenticating agent, paying agent, registrar, and 
transfer agent for the Bonds.  The official seal of the Issuer shall be omitted from the Bonds, as 
permitted by law.  In the event that any of the officers who shall have signed any of the Bonds 
shall cease to be officers of the Issuer before the Bonds shall have been authenticated or delivered 
by the Trustee, issued by the Issuer, or transferred or exchanged, such Bonds may nevertheless be 
authenticated, delivered, and issued, and upon such authentication, shall be binding upon the 



13239183v2 
 

 

 12 
 

Issuer as though those officers who signed and sealed (if not omitted) the same had continued to 
be such officers of the Issuer; and, also, any Bond may be (but shall not be required to be) signed 
on behalf of the Issuer by such person who, at the actual date of execution of such Bond, shall be 
the proper officer of the Issuer, notwithstanding that on the date of such Bond such person shall 
not have been such an officer of the Issuer.  Upon the execution and delivery of this Indenture, the 
Issuer shall execute and deliver the Series 2021A Bonds to the Trustee for authentication. 

Section 2.03  Authentication of Bonds.  No Bond shall be valid or obligatory for any 
purpose or shall be entitled to any right or benefit hereunder unless a Responsible Officer of the 
Trustee shall manually endorse and execute on such Bond a certificate of authentication 
substantially in the form of the Trustee's certificate set forth in Exhibit B hereto.  Such Trustee's 
certificate upon any Bond executed on behalf of the Issuer shall be conclusive evidence that the 
Bond so authenticated has been duly issued under this Indenture and that the Holder thereof is 
entitled to the benefits of this Indenture. 

No Bonds shall be authenticated by the Trustee except in accordance with this article. 

The Trustee shall not be required to authenticate any Bond or Bonds unless provided with 
the documents referred to in Section 2.08. 

Section 2.04  Registration, Transfers and Exchange.  As long as any of the Bonds issued 
hereunder shall remain outstanding, the Trustee shall, on behalf of the Issuer, maintain and keep 
at the office of the Trustee, acting in its capacity as paying  agent and registrar for Bonds, records 
for the payment of the principal of and interest on such Bonds, as in this Indenture provided, and 
for the registration and transfer of such Bonds, and shall also keep at said office of the Trustee 
books for such registration and transfer.   

Upon surrender for transfer of any fully registered Bond at the office of the Trustee with 
a written instrument of transfer or authorization for exchange, in form and with guaranty of 
signature satisfactory to the Trustee, duly executed by the Holder or the Holder's duly authorized 
attorney, and upon payment of any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with 
respect to such transfer, the Issuer shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver, in 
the name of the designated transferee or transferees, one or more fully registered Bonds of the 
same series, of any authorized denominations and of a like aggregate principal amount, interest 
rate and maturity; provided that until termination of the book-entry only system pursuant to 
Section 2.10, the Bonds may only be registered in the name of DTC or its nominee.  The 
execution by the Issuer of any Bond of any denomination shall constitute full and due 
authorization of such denomination and the Trustee shall thereby be authorized to authenticate 
and deliver such Bond. 

Except as the right of exchange may be limited as to Bonds of any series, fully registered 
Bonds, upon surrender thereof at the office of the Trustee, may, at the option of the Holder 
thereof, be exchanged for an equal aggregate principal amount of fully registered Bonds of the 
same series, maturity and interest rate of any authorized denominations. 

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging Bonds or transferring fully registered 
Bonds is exercised, the Issuer shall execute and the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver Bonds 



13239183v2 
 

 

 13 
 

in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture.  For every such exchange or transfer of 
Bonds, whether temporary or definitive, the Issuer or the Trustee may make a charge sufficient 
to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to 
such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall be paid by the person requesting such 
exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the exercise of the privilege of making such 
exchange or transfer.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture, the cost of 
preparing each new Bond upon each exchange or transfer, and any other expenses of the Issuer 
or the Trustee incurred in connection therewith (except any applicable tax, fee or other 
governmental charge) shall be paid by the City pursuant to the Lease.  The Issuer and the Trustee 
shall not be obligated to make any such exchange or transfer of Bonds during the fifteen days 
next preceding the date of the first publication or the mailing (if there is no publication) of notice 
of redemption in the case of a proposed redemption of Bonds.  The Issuer and Trustee shall not 
be required to make any transfer or exchange of any Bonds called for redemption. 

Transfers are subject to the requirements of the Depository as long as the Bonds are held 
in Book-Entry Form. Neither the Trustee nor any agent shall have any responsibility or liability 
for any actions taken or not taken by the Depository. 

Section 2.05  Payment of Interest on Series 2021A Bonds; Interest Rights Preserved.  
Interest on the Bonds which is payable on any Interest Payment Date shall be paid to the person in 
whose name that Bond is registered at the close of business on the first day (whether or not a 
Business Day) of the month of said Interest Payment Date (the "Regular Record Date"). 

Any interest on a Bond which is payable, but which is not punctually paid or duly 
provided for, on any Interest Payment Date ("Defaulted Interest") shall forthwith cease to be 
payable to the Holder thereof as of the relevant Regular Record Date and shall instead be paid by 
the Issuer as provided below: 

The Issuer may elect to make payment of any Defaulted Interest on Bonds to the persons 
in whose names such Bonds are registered at the close of business on a Special Record Date for 
the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be fixed in the following manner.  The Issuer 
shall notify the Trustee in writing of the amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be paid on 
each Bond and the date of the proposed payment (which date shall be such as will enable the 
Trustee to comply with the next sentence hereof), and at the same time the Issuer shall deposit 
with the Trustee an amount of money equal to the aggregate amount proposed to be paid in 
respect of such Defaulted Interest or shall make arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee for such 
deposit prior to the date of the proposed payment, such money when deposited to be held in trust 
for the benefit of the persons entitled to such Defaulted Interest as in this Section provided and 
not otherwise to be deemed part of the Trust Estate.  Thereupon the Trustee shall fix a Special 
Record Date for the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which shall be not more than fifteen or 
less than ten days prior to the date of the proposed payment and not less than ten days after the 
receipt by the Trustee of the notice of the proposed payment.  The Trustee shall promptly notify 
the Issuer of such Special Record Date and, in the name of the Issuer, shall cause notice of the 
proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor to be mailed, 
first class postage prepaid, to each Holder of a Bond affected thereby at the Holder's address, as 
it appears in the registration books, not less than ten days prior to such Special Record Date.  
Notice of the proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest and the Special Record Date therefor 



13239183v2 
 

 

 14 
 

having been mailed as aforesaid, such Defaulted Interest shall be paid to the persons in whose 
names the affected Bonds are registered on such Special Record Date. 

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this section, each Bond delivered under this 
Indenture upon transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of any other Bond shall carry all the 
rights to interest accrued and unpaid, and to accrue, which were carried by such other Bond and 
each such Bond shall bear interest from such date, and neither gain nor loss in interest shall result 
from such transfer, exchange or substitution. 

Section 2.06  Ownership of Bonds.  The Issuer and the Trustee and their respective 
successors may deem and treat the person in whose name any Bond shall be registered as the 
absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and neither the Issuer nor the Trustee shall be affected by 
any notice to the contrary.  Payment of or on account of the principal of and interest on any such 
Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of the registered owner thereof (subject to the 
provisions hereof respecting the Regular Record Date and, if applicable, any Special Record 
Date), but such registration may be changed as above provided. 

Section 2.07  Replacement of Mutilated, Destroyed, Stolen or Lost Bonds.  In case any 
Outstanding Bond shall become mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, the Issuer shall execute and 
the Trustee shall authenticate and deliver in exchange therefor or replacement thereof a new Bond 
of like tenor, number and amount as the Bond so mutilated, destroyed, stolen or lost, upon 
surrender of such Bond, if mutilated, or in lieu of and substitution for the Bond destroyed, stolen 
or lost, upon filing with the Trustee evidence satisfactory to the Trustee that such Bond has been 
destroyed, stolen or lost and proof of ownership thereof, and upon furnishing the Trustee and the 
Issuer with indemnity satisfactory to it and paying such reasonable expenses as the Trustee and 
the Issuer may incur in connection therewith.  In the event any such Bond shall have matured, 
instead of issuing a new Bond, the Issuer may pay the same without surrender thereof. 

Section 2.08  Conditions for Authentication of Series 2021A Bonds.  The Trustee shall not 
authenticate and deliver the Series 2021A Bonds unless there shall have been delivered to the 
Trustee the following: 

(a) A certified copy of the Bond Resolution authorizing the issuance of the Series 
2021A Bonds and the execution and delivery by the Issuer of this Indenture, the Lease and the 
Ground Lease. 

(b) Executed counterparts of this Indenture, the Lease, the Continuing Disclosure 
Undertaking and the Ground Lease. 

(c) A certified copy of the resolution of the City Council of the City authorizing the 
execution and delivery of the Lease and the Ground Lease, and approving the terms of this 
Indenture. 

(d) The manually signed approving opinion of Taft Stettinius & Hollister LLP, 
Minneapolis, Minnesota, as Bond Counsel for the Issuer, concerning the validity and legality of 
the Series 2021A Bonds and exemption of interest thereon from federal income taxation under 
the Internal Revenue Code and exemption from State of Minnesota income taxation under 
Minnesota Statutes. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 15 
 

(e) Such further certifications, documents and Opinions of Counsel as the Issuer, the 
Purchaser, or Bond Counsel may require, the satisfaction of such requirements to be conclusively 
evidenced by the delivery of the opinion of Bond Counsel referred to in paragraph (d) above. 

Section 2.09  Book-Entry Only System.  DTC will act as securities depository for the 
Bonds.  The Bonds shall be issued in the form of a separate single fully registered bond for each 
separate maturity of the Bonds.  Upon initial issuance the ownership of the Bonds shall be 
registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., as the nominee of DTC. 

With respect to Bonds registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of DTC, neither the Issuer, the Borrower nor the Trustee shall have any responsibility 
or obligation to any DTC Participant or to any Beneficial Owner.  Without limiting the 
immediately preceding sentence, neither the Issuer, nor the Trustee shall have any responsibility 
or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or any DTC 
Participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any DTC 
Participant, any Beneficial Owner or any other person, other than DTC, of any notice with 
respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, (iii) the payment to any DTC 
Participant, any Beneficial Owner or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount with 
respect to the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds, or (iv) the failure of DTC 
to provide any information or notification on behalf of any DTC Participant or Beneficial Owner. 

The Issuer and the Trustee may treat as and deem DTC to be the absolute owner of each 
Bond for the purpose of payment of the principal of and premium and interest on such Bond, for 
the purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the 
purpose of registering transfers with respect to such Bonds, and for all other purposes 
whatsoever (except for the giving of certain Bondholder consents).  The Trustee shall pay all 
principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the 
Bondholders as shown on the Bond Register, and all such payments shall be valid and effective 
to fully satisfy and discharge the Issuer's obligations with respect to the principal of and 
premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. 

Upon delivery by DTC to the Trustee of written notice to the effect that DTC has 
determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., and subject to the transfer 
provisions in Section 2.04, references to "Cede & Co." in this section shall refer to such new 
nominee of DTC. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Indenture to the contrary (including without 
limitation surrender of Bonds, registration thereof, and authorized denominations), as long as the 
Bonds are in book-entry form, full effect shall be given to the Representation Letter and the 
procedures and practices of DTC thereunder. 

Section 2.10  Termination of Book-Entry Only System.  DTC may determine to 
discontinue providing its services with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving written notice 
to the Issuer and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under applicable law.  The 
Issuer may terminate the services of DTC with respect to the Bonds if it determines that DTC is 
no longer able to carry out its functions as security depository as contemplated herein. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 16 
 

Upon the termination of the services of DTC as provided in the preceding paragraph, the 
Issuer shall take all reasonable and diligent steps as may be necessary to find an alternate book-
entry depository, but if (and only if) no such substitute securities depository willing to undertake 
the functions of DTC hereunder can be found which, in the opinion of the Issuer, is willing and 
able to undertake such functions upon reasonable or customary terms, then the Bonds shall no 
longer be restricted to being registered in the Bond Register in the name of Cede & Co., as 
nominee of DTC, but may be registered in whatever name or names the Bondholders shall 
designate at that time, in accordance with Section 2.04.  To the extent that the Beneficial Owners 
are designated as the transferee by the Bondholders, in accordance with Section 2.04 the Bonds 
will be delivered in appropriate form, content and authorized denomination to the Beneficial 
Owners. 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture to the contrary, so long as any 
Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to 
the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to 
such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the Representation 
Letter. 

Section 2.11  Issuance of Additional Bonds. After the delivery of the Series 2021A Bonds, 
the Issuer and the Tenant may from time to time, upon the conditions stated in this section, agree 
upon and approve the issuance and delivery of Additional Bonds for completing, improving, 
expanding or modifying the Project, including the refunding of any Bonds, payable equally and 
ratably from the revenues of the Project pledged and appropriated hereunder with the Bonds, but 
bearing such date or dates and interest rate or rates and with such maturities and redemption dates 
and premiums as may be agreed upon.  Every series of such Additional Bonds shall be authorized 
by an amendment to the Lease and a supplement to this Indenture, establishing the terms thereof, 
providing for any additional facilities to be financed by the Additional Bonds as part of the 
Project, and providing for Additional Rental Payments sufficient to pay the interest when due for 
such Additional Bonds, and to pay and redeem all such Additional Bonds at or before maturity as 
provided in such supplement to this Indenture.  Each series of Additional Bonds shall be 
executed, authenticated and delivered as provided in this Article Two upon filing with the Issuer 
original executed counterparts of the supplement to the Indenture and the amendment to the 
Lease, together with such additional certificates, opinions and other documents described in 
Section 2.08 as Bond Counsel determines to be applicable.  No such Additional Bonds, however, 
shall be issued unless the following conditions are met: 

(a) The Lease shall be in effect, and no “event of default”, as such term is defined in 
the Lease, shall exist thereunder; and 

(b) The Issuer shall have been furnished an opinion of Bond Counsel to the effect that 
the issuance of the Additional Bonds will not impair the tax exempt status of the interest on the 
Bonds; and 

(c) There shall have been furnished to the Issuer a supplement to the Lease providing 
for additional Rental Payments sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Additional 
Bonds when due; and 



13239183v2 
 

 

 17 
 

(d) There shall have been furnished to the Issuer a certificate of a Tenant 
Representative to the effect that the proceeds of the Additional Bonds, together with any 
additional funds supplied or to be supplied by the Tenant will be sufficient to complete the cost 
of the improvement, expansion or modification of the Project or the cost of the refunding, as the 
case may be; and 

(e) Funds are deposited in the Reserve Fund to bring the sums on deposit in the 
Reserve Fund to the Reserve Requirement. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 18 
 

ARTICLE III 
 

REDEMPTION OF BONDS 

Section 3.01  Redemption of Series 2021A Bonds.   

(a) Optional Redemption.  The Series 2021A Bonds maturing on December 15, 2030, 
and thereafter, are subject to prior redemption at the option of the Issuer, upon direction of the 
City, on December 15, 2029, and on any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to par plus 
accrued interest to date of redemption.  Redemption may be in whole or in part, and if in part, the 
Issuer shall determine the amount of Bonds of each maturity to be prepaid; and if only part of the 
Bonds having a common maturity date are called for prepayment, the Bonds of that maturity 
shall be chosen by lot by the Trustee. 

(b) Mandatory Redemption.  Bonds maturing on December 15, 20  and 20___, 
(the "Term Bonds") shall be redeemed by lot on December 15 in the following years and 
principal amounts, at their principal amount, without any premium, plus accrued interest thereon 
to such redemption date (after any credits are made as provided below): 

Mandatory Redemption Schedule 
 

December 15, 20____ Term Bond (inclusive) 
 

Year Principal Amount 
  
 $               
  
            (maturity)  
  

 
Mandatory Redemption Schedule 

 
December 15, 20____ Term Bond (inclusive) 

Year Principal Amount 
  
 $               
  
            (maturity)  
  

or, if less than such amount is then outstanding, an amount equal to the aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds then outstanding. 

The Issuer may, at its option to be exercised on or before the thirtieth day next preceding 
any date specified in the Mandatory Redemption Schedule above, deliver to the Bond Registrar 
written notice, which shall (i) specify a principal amount of such Term Bonds previously 
redeemed (otherwise than pursuant to the above Mandatory Redemption Schedule) or purchased 



13239183v2 
 

 

 19 
 

and cancelled by the Bond Registrar and not theretofore applied as a credit against any 
redemption of Bonds pursuant to the above Mandatory Redemption Schedule, and (ii) instruct 
the Bond Registrar to apply the principal amount of such Term Bonds so delivered or previously 
redeemed or purchased and cancelled for credit against the principal installments to be prepaid 
pursuant to the Mandatory Redemption Schedule and selected by the Issuer.  Each such Term 
Bond so delivered or previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled shall be credited by the 
Bond Registrar against the principal installments to be prepaid pursuant to the Mandatory 
Redemption Schedule and selected by the Issuer. 

(c) Calamity Redemption.  All Bonds, in whole but not in part, are subject to 
redemption and prior payment at the option of the Issuer, at the principal amount thereof plus 
accrued interest on any date in the event of damage to or destruction of the Project or any part 
thereof to the extent provided in Section 6.6 of the Lease. 

(d) Notice of Redemption.  Notice of any such redemption shall be mailed as 
provided in Sections 3.02 and 3.03.  On or prior to the date fixed for redemption, funds shall be 
deposited with the Trustee sufficient to pay the Bonds called and accrued interest thereon.  Upon 
the happening of the above conditions, any Bonds thus called shall not bear interest after the call 
date, and except for the purpose of payment by application of the funds so deposited, shall no 
longer be protected by the Indenture. 

Section 3.02  Written Notice to Trustee.  If the Bonds are to be redeemed pursuant to 
Section 3.01, and notice of an election to redeem Bonds shall have been given by the Issuer to the 
Trustee, at least forty-five to sixty days prior to the redemption date, the Trustee shall prepare a 
notice in the name of the Issuer describing the outstanding Bonds to be redeemed, the date of 
redemption, the redemption price and such additional information as the Trustee or the Issuer 
shall deem appropriate. 

Section 3.03  Mailing of Notice.  Notice of redemption shall be mailed by the Trustee, not 
less than thirty days and not more than sixty days before the redemption date, by first class mail to 
the Holders of all Bonds which are to be redeemed, at their last addresses appearing upon the 
Bond Register. 

Section 3.04  Deposit for Redemption.  On or prior to the date fixed for redemption, there 
shall be deposited with the Trustee in cash an aggregate amount which shall be sufficient to pay 
the redemption price on the Bonds to be redeemed, and interest thereon to the redemption date; 
and there shall be deposited, or arrangements shall be made with the Trustee to deposit, with the 
Trustee a sum sufficient to pay the proper expenses and charges of the Trustee in connection with 
such redemption.  Upon deposit with the Trustee of the aggregate amount of such redemption 
price and interest pursuant to this section, such moneys shall be set aside by the Trustee and held 
by it for the account of the respective Holders of the Bonds being redeemed. 

Section 3.05  Payment of Redeemed Bonds.  After notice of redemption shall have been 
given as provided in Section 3.03, the Bonds specified in such notice shall become due and 
payable on the redemption date.  Payment of the redemption price thereof shall be made to or 
upon order of the Holder, upon the surrender of the Bonds.  Any installment of interest maturing 
on or prior to the redemption date shall be payable to the Holders of Bonds registered as such on 



13239183v2 
 

 

 20 
 

the relevant Regular Record Dates according to the terms of such Bonds and the provisions of 
Section 2.05, and the notice of redemption herein provided for may so state.  If redemption 
moneys are available for the payment of all of the Bonds duly called for redemption on the 
redemption date, the Bonds so called shall cease to draw interest after the redemption date, and 
such Bonds shall not be deemed to be Outstanding hereunder for any purpose, except that the 
Holders thereof, on presentation, as herein provided, shall be entitled to receive payment of the 
redemption price thereof from the moneys set aside by the Trustee as aforesaid. 

Section 3.06  Cancellation of Redeemed Bonds.  All Bonds so redeemed, shall forthwith 
be cancelled and destroyed by the Trustee in accordance with the customary practices of the 
Trustee and applicable record retention requirements; and no further Bonds shall be executed or 
authenticated or issued hereunder in exchange or substitution therefor. 

Section 3.07  Partial Redemption of Bonds.  If less than all of the Bonds of a particular 
maturity at the time Outstanding are to be called for prior redemption, the amount of Bonds or 
portions thereof of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected by the Issuer at the direction of 
the City, provided that within any particular maturity, the Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected 
by the Trustee by lot.  The Trustee shall call for redemption in accordance with the foregoing 
provisions as many Bonds or portions thereof as will, as nearly as practicable, exhaust the moneys 
available therefor.  Particular Bonds or portions thereof shall be redeemed only in integral 
multiples of principal amount of $5,000. 

In the case of Bonds of denominations greater than $5,000, if less than all of such Bonds 
of a given stated maturity then Outstanding are to be called for redemption, then for all purposes 
in connection with redemption each $5,000 of principal amount of such Bonds shall be treated as 
though it were a separate Bond of the denomination of $5,000 bearing one of the numbers borne 
by such Bond.  If it is determined that one or more, but not all of the $5,000 units of principal 
amount represented by any such Bond is to be called for redemption, then upon notice of 
intention to redeem such $5,000 unit or units, the Holder of such Bond shall surrender such Bond 
to the Trustee (1) for payment of the redemption price (including the redemption premium, if 
any, and interest to date fixed for redemption) of the $5,000 unit or units of principal amount 
called for redemption and (2) exchange for a new Bond or Bonds of the aggregate principal 
amount of the unredeemed balance of the principal amount of such Bond, which shall be 
executed, authenticated and delivered to the Holder thereof without charge therefor.  If the 
Holder of any such Bond of a denomination greater than $5,000 shall fail to present such Bond to 
the Trustee for payment and exchange as aforesaid, such Bond shall nevertheless become due 
and payable on the date fixed for redemption to the extent of the $5,000 unit or units of principal 
amount called for redemption (and to that extent only).  Interest shall cease to accrue on the 
portion of the principal amount of such Bond represented by such $5,000 unit or units of 
principal amount on and after the date fixed for redemption, provided that funds sufficient for the 
payment of the redemption price shall have been deposited with the Trustee and shall be 
available for the redemption of said $5,000 unit or units on the date fixed for redemption, and in 
such event, such Bond shall not be entitled to the benefit or security of this Indenture to the 
extent of the portion of its principal amount (and accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for 
redemption and applicable premium, if any) represented by such $5,000 unit or units of principal 
amount. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 21 
 

Section 3.08  Conditional Redemption of Bonds.  Notwithstanding any provisions in this 
article to the contrary, the Issuer may condition redemption of Bonds on receipt of sufficient 
monies no later than the Business Day next preceding the redemption date.  This condition shall 
be stated in the notice of redemption, and if for any reason the monies are not received by such 
Business Day, the redemption shall be automatically cancelled, interest shall continue to accrue 
and be entitled to the benefits of this Indenture on and after the date on which the Bonds were to 
be redeemed and the Trustee shall promptly mail notice of said cancellation by first class mail to 
the Holders of all Bonds which were to be redeemed, at their last address appearing upon the 
Bond Register, and return to the Holders any Bonds surrendered by them for redemption. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 22 
 

ARTICLE IV 
 

BOND PROCEEDS; CONSTRUCTION FUND 

Section 4.01  Deposit of Series 2021A Bond Proceeds.  The Issuer shall deposit, or shall 
direct the Purchaser to deposit, the net proceeds of the sale of the Series 2021A Bonds: 

(a) with the Trustee to the credit of the Bond Fund from the net proceeds of the sale 
of the Series 2021A Bonds, the sum of $_________________; and 

(b) with the Trustee to the credit of the Reserve Fund from the net proceeds of the 
sale of the Series 2021A Bonds, the sum of $___________________; and 

(c) with the Trustee to the credit of the Construction Fund the sum of 
$_____________, being the balance of the net proceeds of the Series 2021A Bonds. 

Section 4.02  Establishment of Construction Fund.  The Issuer hereby establishes a trust 
account with the Trustee designated the Construction Fund and there shall be deposited with the 
Trustee to the credit of the Construction Fund those proceeds of the Series 2021A Bonds 
described in Section 4.01(c).  As provided in Section 4.05, Construction Period income and profit 
from the investment of moneys in the Construction Fund shall be credited to the Construction 
Fund.  The Issuer has no obligation hereunder or under the Act to deposit any moneys in the 
Construction Fund or apply moneys to Project Costs except proceeds of Bonds or funds made 
available therefor by the City. 

The moneys in the Construction Fund shall be held in trust by the Trustee and applied to 
the payment of the Project Costs in accordance with and subject to the provisions of this article 
and the applicable provisions of the Lease, and pending such application shall be subject to a lien 
and charge in favor of the Holders of the Bonds issued and Outstanding under this Indenture and 
shall be held for the further security of such Holders until paid out as herein provided.  In the 
event the moneys in the Bond Fund or Reserve Fund shall be insufficient on any Interest 
Payment Date to pay principal of, premium (if any) or interest on the Bonds due on such date, 
the Trustee shall use any moneys then on deposit to the credit of the Construction Fund, to the 
extent needed, to pay such principal, premium and interest. 

Section 4.03  Project Costs Defined.  For the purposes of this article, the Project Costs 
shall include, without intending thereby to limit or restrict any proper definition of such cost 
under any applicable laws or sound accounting practice, the Project Costs as defined in the Lease 
and as further described in Section 3.3 of the Lease. 

Section 4.04  Payments from Construction Fund.  Payments shall be made by the Trustee 
from the Construction Fund to the Issuer or its order, as the case may be, upon receipt of the 
statements set forth in Section 3.3 of the Lease and the Draw Request Certificate attached to the 
Lease as Exhibit C, which may be submitted by fax or email in a PDF format.  All payments 
made from the Construction Fund shall be presumed by the Trustee to be made for the purposes 
certified in said statement, and the Trustee shall not be required to see to the application of any 
payments made from the Construction Fund.  Such written requests shall be submitted no more 
often than twice a month. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 23 
 

None of the funds in the Construction Fund shall be used for any purposes other than the 
payment or reimbursement of Project Costs and, if authorized hereby and applicable, the 
payment of principal of, premium (if any) on and interest on the Bonds. 

The Trustee shall not be bound to make an investigation into the facts or matters stated in 
any Draw Request Certificate of the Issuer.  The Trustee shall not be responsible for determining 
whether the funds on hand in the Construction Fund are sufficient to complete the Project.  The 
Trustee shall not be responsible to collect lien waivers. 

Section 4.05  Deposit and Investment of Excess Moneys.  The Trustee shall invest the 
moneys on deposit in the Construction Fund, at the written direction of the Issuer, in Qualified 
Investments.  In the absence of written direction delivered to the Trustee from the Issuer, the 
Trustee shall hold such amounts uninvested without liability of interest.  The Trustee shall, from 
time to time, if required to make payments pursuant to a Draw Request Certificate at the direction 
of the Issuer, cause any such investments to be sold or otherwise be converted into cash, 
whereupon the proceeds derived from such sale or conversion shall be deposited into the 
Construction Fund.  Any interest or profit derived from investments shall be credited to the 
Construction Fund, for application thereunder. The Trustee shall have no liability whatsoever for 
any loss, fee, tax or other charge incurred in connection with any investment, reinvestment, sale 
or liquidation of an investment hereunder.  Investments permitted under this section may be 
purchased from the Trustee or from any of its affiliates.  The Issuer shall not direct any portion of 
the Construction Fund representing proceeds of the Bonds to be invested or used in such manner 
that any of the Bonds would be "arbitrage bonds" under Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code 
and regulations thereunder; provided that the Trustee has no duty to monitor the yield on any 
directed investment or any obligation to limit the yield on any investment the Issuer directs the 
Trustee to make.  Neither the Trustee nor the Issuer shall be liable for any loss resulting from any 
such investment, nor from failure to preserve rights against endorsers or other prior parties to 
instruments evidencing any such investment. 

The Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely on the written investment direction of 
the Issuer as to the legality and the suitability of such directed investments. The Trustee shall 
have no responsibility whatsoever to determine whether any investments made pursuant to this 
Indenture are or continue to be Qualified Investments. 

Section 4.06  Application of Balance in Construction Fund.  When a Certificate of the 
Issuer Representative prepared pursuant to Section 3.5 of the Lease shall have been furnished to 
the Trustee, any balance in the Construction Fund (after reserving such amount as the Issuer 
Representative shall deem necessary for the payment of any remaining amounts due or to become 
due for Project Costs, and after returning to the Issuer any contingent funds which may have been 
deposited by the Issuer into the Construction Fund as additional funds to finance the total Project 
Costs and found to be unnecessary for such purpose) shall be deposited in the Bond Fund and 
shall be credited against the next Rental Payments due under the Lease. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 24 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

DISPOSITION OF TRUST MONEYS 

Section 5.01  "Trust Moneys" Defined.  All moneys received by the Trustee, 

(a) upon the release of property from the lien of this Indenture, or 

(b) as compensation for, or proceeds of sale of, any part of the Trust Estate taken by 
eminent domain or purchased by, or sold pursuant to an order of, a governmental authority or 
otherwise disposed of, or 

(c) as proceeds of insurance upon any part of the Trust Estate, or 

(d) as elsewhere herein provided to be held and applied under this article, or required 
to be paid to the Trustee and whose disposition is not elsewhere herein otherwise specifically 
provided for, including, but not limited to the investment income of all Trust Funds and accounts 
held by the Trustee under this Indenture (other than the Rebate Fund), or 

(e) as proceeds from the sale of the Series 2021A Bonds, or 

(f) as Rental Payments, or as otherwise payable under the Lease, 

(all such moneys being herein sometimes called "Trust Moneys") shall be held by the Trustee as 
a part of the Trust Estate, and, upon the exercise by the Trustee of any remedy specified in 
Article VIII, such Trust Moneys shall be applied in accordance with Section 7.04, except to the 
extent that the Trustee is holding in trust, moneys and/or Government Obligations for the 
payment of any Bonds which are no longer deemed to be Outstanding under the provisions of 
Article X, which moneys and/or Government Obligations shall be applied only as provided in 
Article X.  Prior to the exercise of any such remedy, all or any part of the Trust Moneys shall be 
held, invested, withdrawn, paid or applied by the Trustee, from time to time, as provided in this 
article and in Article X. 

Section 5.02  Bond Fund.  The Issuer hereby establishes with the Trustee and shall 
maintain, so long as any of the Bonds are Outstanding, with the Trustee a separate trust account to 
be designated "Public Project Lease Revenue Bond Fund" (the "Bond Fund") into which the 
following deposits shall be made: 

(a) All payments by the City as Rental Payments under Section 5.1 of the Lease. 

(b) All other moneys received by the Trustee from the City when accompanied by 
directions of the City that such moneys are to be paid into the Bond Fund or used for purposes 
for which moneys in the Bond Fund may be used.  If the City so directs, such monies shall be 
credited against Rental Payments due or to become due. 

(c) All other moneys required to be deposited in the Bond Fund pursuant to any 
provision of this Indenture or the Lease. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 25 
 

The moneys and investments in the Bond Fund are irrevocably pledged to and shall be 
used by the Trustee, from time to time, to the extent required, for the payment of principal of, 
and interest on the Bonds, as and when such principal and interest shall become due and payable. 

Section 5.03  Reserve Fund.   

(a) The Issuer hereby establishes with the Trustee a separate trust account to be 
designated “Public Project Lease Revenue Bond Reserve Fund” (the “Reserve Fund”), into 
which $_________ of proceeds of the Series 2021A Bonds shall be deposited. 

(b) The Reserve Fund shall be maintained at the "Reserve Requirement" which is 
defined as the lesser of (i) ten percent of the principal amount of the Bonds, (ii) one hundred 
twenty five percent of the average annual debt service requirements of the Bonds, or (iii) the 
maximum annual debt service on the Bonds.  The Reserve Requirement shall be $__________ 
for the Series 2021A Bonds.  The Trustee shall calculate the balance in the Reserve Fund on an 
annual basis as provided in section 5.06, and upon making such calculation the Trustee shall 
transfer to the Bond Fund any sums held in the Reserve Fund in excess of the Reserve 
Requirement. 

(c) Subject to the provisions of section 7.04, amounts on hand in the Reserve Fund 
shall be transferred by the trustee to the Bond Fund if, on any Interest Payment Date, the amount 
then on hand in the Bond Fund is not sufficient to pay the principal, if any, and interest then due 
on the Bonds. 

(d) If on any date the amount in the Reserve Fund is less than the Reserve 
Requirement, as a result of either (i) a revaluation in accordance with Section 5.06, or (ii) a 
transfer of sums to the Bond Fund under subsection (c) above; the Trustee shall notify the Issuer 
of the amount of such deficiency and request that the Issuer immediately deposit from legally 
available funds an amount equal to the amount of such deficiency. 

(e) Earnings on sums in the Reserve Fund shall, upon receipt, be credited to the Bond 
Fund, if and to the extent that, after giving effect to the transfer, the Reserve Fund Requirement 
is maintained.  Investments should be valued at fair market value and marked to market at least 
twice per year.  Investments may not have maturities extending beyond ten years. 

(f) At such time, if any, as the amounts on hand in the Reserve Fund equal or exceed 
the total amount of principal, interest and premium (if any) remaining to be paid on all 
Outstanding Bonds, the Trustee shall transfer such amounts from the Reserve Fund to the Bond 
Fund and use the same for such debt service purposes, as and when due. 

(g) If any rebate of arbitrage is required under Section 6.07 and Issuer fails to satisfy 
that requirement, Trustee may disburse funds from the Reserve Fund for that purpose. 

 
Section 5.04  Investment of Funds.  Any moneys held as a part of the Construction Fund, 

Bond Fund or Reserve Fund shall be invested or reinvested by the Trustee upon the written 
request and direction of the Issuer Representative in any Qualified Investment, subject to the 
restrictions for investment of money held in the Reserve Fund set forth in Section 5.03 (e).  In the 



13239183v2 
 

 

 26 
 

absence of written direction delivered to the Trustee from the Issuer, the Trustee shall hold such 
amounts uninvested.  The type, amount and maturity of Qualified Investments shall conform to 
the instructions, if any, in the request of the Issuer Representative.  Investments permitted under 
this section may be purchased from the Trustee or from any of its affiliates.  Obligations so 
purchased shall be deemed at all times to be a part of the Construction Fund or Bond Fund, or 
Reserve Fund, as applicable, but may from time to time be sold or otherwise converted into cash 
for application thereunder, whereupon the proceeds derived from such sale or conversion shall be 
credited to the Construction Fund, or Bond Fund or Reserve Fund, as the case may be.  Any 
interest accruing on and any profit realized from such investment shall be credited to the Bond 
Fund from which the investment has been made (except as otherwise provided in Section 5.03(f)).  
The Trustee shall redeem or sell, at the best price obtainable, any obligations so purchased, 
whenever it shall be necessary to do so in order to provide moneys to meet any payment from the 
Trust Fund.  Neither the Trustee nor the Issuer shall be liable for any loss, fee, tax or other charge 
incurred in connection with any such investment, nor from failure to preserve rights against 
endorsers or other prior parties to instruments evidencing any such investment 

Monies credited to any account or fund maintained hereunder, including the Construction 
Fund, which are uninvested pending disbursement or receipt of proper investment directions or 
as directed herein, may be deposited to and held in a non-interest bearing demand deposit 
account established with the Commercial Banking Department of the Trustee or with any bank 
affiliated with the Trustee, without the pledge of securities to or other collateralization of such 
deposit accounts. 

The Trustee shall be entitled to conclusively rely on the written investment direction of 
the City as to the legality and the suitability of such directed investment and such written 
direction shall be deemed to be a certification that such directed investments constitute Qualified 
Investments. The Trustee shall have no responsibility whatsoever to determine whether any 
investments made pursuant to this Indenture are or continue to be Qualified Investments. The 
Issuer acknowledges that regulations of the Comptroller of the Currency grant the Issuer the right 
to receive brokerage confirmations of the security transactions as they occur.  The Issuer 
specifically waives such notification to the extent permitted by law and will receive periodic cash 
transaction statements that will detail all investment transactions. 

Section 5.05  Return on Investments.   

(a) In directing investments pursuant to Section 3.8 of the Lease and this Indenture, 
the Issuer Representative will not instruct the Trustee to use  the proceeds of the Bonds or other 
sums pledged to the payment of the Bonds, directly or indirectly, to acquire any securities or 
obligations the acquisition of which would cause any of the Bonds to be an "arbitrage bond" as 
defined in Section 148 of the Code, and for this purpose the Issuer, in order to restrict yield on 
investments, may direct investment in SLGS.  The Trustee has no duty to monitor the yield on 
any directed investment or any obligation to limit the yield on any investment the Issuer directs 
the Trustee to make. The Trustee shall be fully protected in relying on the written direction of the 
Issuer with respect to whether the acquisition of any securities or obligations would have the 
effect prohibited by this section. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 27 
 

(b) The Issuer acknowledges that it will not direct the Trustee to invest moneys in any 
Trust Funds which would cause the Bonds to be "federally guaranteed" within the meaning of 
Section 149(b) of the Code.  If at any time the moneys in all Trust Funds exceed, (i) amounts 
invested for an initial temporary period until the moneys are needed for the purpose for which 
the Bonds were issued, (ii) investments of a bona fide debt service fund, and (iii) investments of 
a reserve which meet the requirement of Section 148(d)(1) of the Code, then moneys in excess of 
such amounts shall be invested at the direction of the Issuer pursuant to Section 3.8 of the Lease 
in Qualified Investments consisting of (A) bonds issued by the United States Treasury, (B) other 
investments permitted under regulations, or (C) obligations which are (a) not issued by, or 
guaranteed by, or insured by, the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof or (b) 
not federally insured deposits or accounts, all within the meaning of Section 149(b) of the Code.  
The Trustee shall be fully protected in relying on the written investment directions of the Issuer 
and shall only make investments as so directed. 

Section 5.06  Computation of Balances in Trust Fund.  In computing the assets of any 
Trust Fund established hereunder, investments and accrued but unpaid interest thereon shall be 
deemed a part thereof, and such investments, other than in the Reserve Fund, shall be valued at 
par value, or at the redemption price thereof, if then redeemable at the option of the holder.  
Investments held in the Reserve Fund shall be valued at market value which shall be calculated 
annually as of June 15, commencing June 15, 2022. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 28 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE ISSUER 

The Issuer covenants and agrees, so long as the Bonds shall be Outstanding and subject to 
the limitations on its obligations herein set forth, that: 

Section 6.01  Payment of Bonds.  The Issuer will faithfully perform at all times any and 
all covenants, undertakings, stipulations and provisions contained in this Indenture and the Bond 
Resolution and in each and every Bond executed, authenticated and delivered hereunder; will pay 
or cause to be paid, from payments of Rental Payments by the City and other amounts received in 
respect of the Project or available under this Indenture, the principal of, premium (if any) on and 
interest on every Bond issued hereunder on the dates, at the places and in the manner prescribed 
in the Bonds in any coin or currency which, on the respective dates of payment of such principal 
and interest, is legal tender for the payment of public and private debts; and other than as 
provided in Section 3.04, will cause such amounts received to be deposited with the Trustee 
fifteen days prior to the due date of each installment of principal and interest and prior to the 
maturity of any Bond in amounts sufficient to pay such installment, to the end that the Trustee 
may cause to be placed in any other bank the payment specified herein and in the Bonds, on time, 
money required for payment of principal and interest; provided, however, that the principal of and 
interest on any Bond is not and shall not be deemed to represent a debt or pledge the full faith or 
credit of the Issuer or the City or grant to the Holder of any Bond any right to have the Issuer or 
the City levy any taxes or appropriate any funds to the payment of principal of or interest on the 
Bonds, such payment to be made solely and only out of the moneys received pursuant to the 
Lease and this Indenture, including the funds and accounts established and maintained with the 
Trustee pursuant to the requirements of this Indenture and appropriated to the payment of the 
Bonds by the Indenture. 

Section 6.02  Extensions of Payments of Bonds.  The Issuer shall not directly or indirectly 
extend or assent to the extension of the maturity of any of the Bonds, or the time of payment of 
any claims for interest by the purchase or refunding of such Bonds or claims for interest or by any 
other arrangement; and in case the maturity of any of the Bonds, or the time for payment of any 
such claims for interest shall be extended, such Bonds or claims for interest shall not be entitled in 
case of any Default hereunder to the benefit of the Indenture or to any payment out of any assets 
of the Issuer or the funds (except funds held in trust by the Trustee for the payment of particular 
Bonds or claims for interest pursuant to this Indenture) held by the Trustee except subject to the 
prior payment of the principal of all Bonds issued and Outstanding hereunder, the maturity of 
which Bonds or principal installments has not been extended, and of such portion of the accrued 
interest on the Bonds as shall not be represented by such extended claims for interest.  Nothing in 
this section shall, however, be deemed to limit the right of the Issuer to fund or refund at one time 
all of such Bonds and claims for interest. 

Section 6.03  Authority of the Issuer.  The Issuer is duly authorized under the Constitution 
and laws of the State of Minnesota to issue the Bonds, to finance the acquisition and betterment of 
the Project, to execute this Indenture and assign and pledge to the Trustee the Trust Estate, 
including the Project and the Rental Payments, and to make the covenants as herein provided. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 29 
 

Section 6.04  Concerning the Lease.  The Issuer will cause and permit the Trustee to take 
such action as may be necessary or advisable to enforce the covenants, terms and conditions of 
the Lease if such action shall, in the Trustee's discretion and upon consultation with counsel as 
provided in Section 8.02 hereof, be deemed to be in the best interest of the Bondholders.  The 
Issuer shall do or cause to be done all things on its part to be performed under the Lease so that 
the obligations of the City thereunder shall not be impaired or excused. 

Section 6.05  To Observe All Covenants and Terms; Limitations on Issuer's Obligations.  
The Issuer will not issue or permit to be issued any Bonds hereunder in any manner other than in 
accordance with the provisions of this Indenture and the agreements in that behalf herein 
contained, and will not suffer or permit any Default to occur under the Indenture, but will 
faithfully observe and perform all the conditions, covenants and requirements hereof.  Under the 
Act, and it is expressly agreed that, the Issuer has no obligation to levy taxes for, or make any 
advance or payment or incur any expense or liability from its general funds in performing, any of 
the conditions, covenants or requirements of the Bonds or this Indenture or from any funds other 
than revenues and income received pursuant to the Lease or moneys in the funds and accounts 
provided for herein. 

Section 6.06  Liens.  Other than conveyances allowed by the provisions of Sections 8.6 
and 8.7  of the Lease, the Issuer agrees it will not mortgage, sell or otherwise encumber its 
interests in the Project during the term of the Lease, except as such liens may constitute Permitted 
Encumbrances (as defined in the Lease). 

Section 6.07  Rebate.  The Issuer shall comply with requirements necessary under the 
Code to establish and maintain the exclusion from gross income under Section 103 of the Code of 
the interest on the Bonds, including without limitation (i) requirements relating to temporary 
periods for investments, (ii) limitations on amounts invested at a yield greater than the yield on 
the Bonds, and (iii) the rebate of excess investment earnings to the United States if the Bonds 
(together with other obligations reasonably expected to be issued and outstanding at one time in 
this calendar year) exceed the small issuer exception amount of $5,000,000.  For purposes of 
qualifying the Bonds for the small issuer exception to the federal arbitrage rebate requirements, 
the Issuer hereby finds, determines and declares that (i) pursuant to Section 148(f)(4)(D)(iv) of 
the Code and a certain resolution adopted by the City of Isanti City Council allocating to the 
Issuer $3,280,000 of the City's $5,000,000 "small issuer" amount for calendar year 2021, the 
Bonds are treated as issued by a governmental unit with general taxing powers, (ii) the Bonds are 
not private activity bonds, (iii) ninety-five percent (95%) or more of the net proceeds of the Bonds 
are to be used for local governmental activities and essential public purposes and functions of the 
Issuer (or of a governmental unit the jurisdiction of which is entirely within the jurisdiction of the 
Issuer), and (iv) the aggregate face amount of all tax-exempt obligations (other than private 
activity bonds) issued by the Issuer (and all entities subordinate to, or treated as one issuer with, 
the Issuer) during the 2021 calendar year is not reasonably expected to exceed $5,000,000, all 
within the meaning of Section 148(f)(4)(D) of the Code. 

 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 30 
 

ARTICLE VII 
 

EVENTS OF DEFAULT; REMEDIES 

Section 7.01  Events of Default.  Each of the following events is hereby defined as, and is 
declared to be and to constitute, an "Event of Default" (whatever the reason for such Event of 
Default and whether it shall be voluntary or involuntary or be effected by operation of law or 
pursuant to any decree or order of any court or any order, rule or regulation of any administrative 
or governmental body): 

(a) if payment of the principal of any of the Bonds, when the same shall become due 
and payable, whether at maturity or by proceedings for redemption (by redemption, declaration 
or otherwise), shall not be made; or 

(b) if payment of any interest on the Bonds when the same shall become due and 
payable (in which case interest shall be payable to the extent permitted by law on any overdue 
installments of interest, in each case at the interest rate borne by the Bonds in respect of which 
such interest is overdue) shall not be made; or 

(c) if the Issuer should default in the performance, or breach, any covenant or 
warranty of the Issuer contained in this Indenture (other than a covenant or warranty a default in 
whose performance or whose breach is elsewhere in this section specifically dealt with), and 
continuance of such default or breach (i) for a period of thirty days after there has been given, by 
registered or certified mail, to the Issuer by the Trustee, or to the Issuer and the Trustee by the 
Holder or Holders of at least twenty-five percent in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
then Outstanding, a written notice specifying such default or breach and requiring it to be 
remedied provided that if such default cannot be cured within such thirty (30) day period through 
the exercise of diligence but can be wholly cured, the failure of the Issuer to remedy such default 
within such thirty (30) day period shall not constitute an event of default hereunder if the Issuer 
shall immediately upon receipt of such notice commence with due diligence and dispatch the 
curing of such default and, having so commenced the curing of such default, shall thereafter 
prosecute and complete the same with due diligence and dispatch and provides the Trustee with a 
certification to that effect; or 

(d) if an event of default shall occur under Section 12.1 of the Lease; or 

(e) if any Non-appropriation should occur under the Lease. 

Section 7.02  Enforcement of Covenants and Conditions.  Upon the occurrence and 
continuation of an event of default (which has not been cured or waived), the Trustee shall 
exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by this Indenture and use the same degree of 
care and skill in their exercise as a prudent person would exercise and use in the circumstances in 
the conduct of their own affairs. The Trustee shall not be liable for any action taken or omitted by 
it in the performance of its duties under this Indenture except for its own negligence or willful 
misconduct. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee may, and shall upon the written 
request of the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Outstanding Bonds, by 



13239183v2 
 

 

 31 
 

written notice to the Issuer, declare the principal of the Bonds to be immediately due and 
payable, whereupon that portion of the principal of the Bonds thereby coming due and the 
interest thereon accrued to the date of payment shall, without further action, become and be 
immediately due and payable, notwithstanding anything in this Indenture or in the Bonds to the 
contrary. 

At any time after such a declaration of acceleration has been made, but before the Trustee 
has exercised any other remedy specified herein or in the Lease, the Holders of a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, by written notice to the Issuer and the 
Trustee, may rescind and annul such declaration and its consequences if: 

(a) there has been paid to or deposited with the Trustee by or for the account of the 
Issuer, or provision satisfactory to the Trustee has been made for the payment of, a sum 
sufficient to pay 

(1) all overdue installments of interest on all Bonds, 

(2) the principal of (and premium, if any, on) any Bonds which have 
become due otherwise than by such declaration of acceleration and interest 
thereon at the rate borne by the Bonds, 

(3) to the extent that payment of such interest is lawful, interest upon 
overdue installments of interest at the rate borne by the Bonds, and 

(4) all sums paid or advanced by the Trustee hereunder and the 
reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of the Trustee, 
its agents and counsel; and 

(b) all Events of Default, other than the non-payment of the principal of Bonds which 
have become due solely by such acceleration, have been cured or waived as provided herein. 

No such rescission shall affect any subsequent default or impair any right consequent thereon. 

Upon the happening and continuance of an Event of Default, in addition to the 
acceleration of the Bonds, the Trustee may (subject to the provisions of Section 8.06 hereof), and 
shall upon the written request by registered or certified mail to the Trustee of the Holders of a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of outstanding Bonds: 

(c) proceed to protect and enforce its rights by a suit or suits in equity or at law, either 
for the specific performance of any covenant or agreement contained herein or in the Lease or 
the Bonds, or in aid of the execution of any power herein or therein granted, or for the 
enforcement of any other appropriate legal or equitable remedy; 

(d) with respect to the Project Equipment, exercise any remedies available to a 
secured party under the Uniform Commercial Code as then in effect in the State of Minnesota; 

(e) exercise any remedies available to the Trustee under the Lease or any other 
Collateral Document. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 32 
 

In the event of a sale under this Lease, whether by virtue of judicial proceedings or 
advertisement or otherwise, the Trust Estate may, at the option of the Trustee, be sold as one 
parcel and as an entirety or in such parcels, manner and order as the Trustee in its sole discretion 
may elect. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Trustee need not proceed upon any such written 
request of the Bondholders, as aforesaid, unless such Bondholders shall have offered to the 
Trustee security and indemnity satisfactory to it against the costs, expenses and liabilities to be 
incurred therein or thereby. 

Section 7.03  Trustee May File Proofs of Claims.  In case of the pendency of any 
receivership, insolvency, liquidation, bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement, adjustment, 
composition or other judicial proceeding relative to the Issuer or the City or the property of the 
Issuer or the City, the Trustee (irrespective of whether the principal of the Bonds shall then be due 
and payable as therein expressed or by declaration or otherwise and irrespective of whether the 
Trustee shall have made any demand on the Issuer and/or the City for the payment of overdue 
principal or interest) shall be entitled and empowered, by intervention in such proceeding or 
otherwise, 

(a) to file and prove a claim for the whole amount of principal, premium, if any, and 
interest owing and unpaid in respect of the Bonds then Outstanding and to file such other papers 
or documents as may be necessary or advisable in order to have the claims of the Trustee 
(including any claim for the reasonable compensation, expenses, disbursements and advances of 
the Trustee, its agents and counsel) and of the Bondholders allowed in such judicial proceedings, 
and 

(b) to collect and receive any moneys or other property payable or deliverable on any 
such claims and to distribute the same; 

and any receiver, assignee, trustee, liquidator, sequestrator or other similar official in any such 
judicial proceeding is hereby authorized by each Bondholder to make such payments to the 
Trustee, and, in the event that the Trustee shall consent to the making of such payments directly 
to the Bondholders, to pay to the Trustee any amount due to it for the reasonable compensation, 
expenses, disbursements, and advances of the Trustee, its agents and counsel. 

Section 7.04  Application of Moneys.  All moneys received by the Trustee pursuant to any 
right given or action taken under the provisions of this Indenture or any Collateral Document, 
shall, after payment of the cost and expenses of the proceedings resulting in the collection of such 
moneys, including any proceedings undertaken by the Issuer, and of the fees, expenses, liabilities 
and advances incurred or made by the Trustee or Issuer, and after such funds shall have been 
applied as may be specifically required pursuant to this Indenture or any Collateral Document 
(e.g., to the restoration and replacement of any portion of the Project following casualty thereto or 
other loss thereof, as described in Section 6.6 of the Lease), and after payment of all taxes, 
assessments or liens prior to the lien of this Indenture (including reasonable fees and 
disbursements of the Trustee), except any taxes, assessments or liens subject to which any sale or 
other disposition of the Trust Estate or part thereof shall have been made, be deposited in the 



13239183v2 
 

 

 33 
 

Bond Fund, and all moneys in the Bond Fund maintained with the Trustee shall be applied as 
follows: 

(a) Unless the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due and payable, all such 
moneys shall be applied: 

First:  To the payment to the Bondholders entitled thereto of all installments of interest 
then due on the Bonds, in the order of the maturity of the installments of such interest, and, if the 
amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full any particular installment, then to the 
payment ratably, according to the amounts due on such installment, to the Bondholders entitled 
thereto, without any discrimination or privilege; and 

Second:  To the payment to the Bondholders entitled thereto of the unpaid principal of 
any of the Bonds which shall have become due (other than Bonds called for redemption for the 
payment of which moneys are held pursuant to the provisions of this Indenture), in the order of 
their due dates, and, if the amount available shall not be sufficient to pay in full Bonds due on 
any particular date, then to the payment ratably, according to the amount of principal due on such 
date, to the Bondholders entitled thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

(b) If the principal of all the Bonds shall have become due, all such moneys shall be 
applied to the payment of the principal and interest then due and unpaid upon the Bonds, without 
preference or priority of principal over interest or of interest over principal, or of any installment 
of interest over any other installment of interest, or of any Bond over any other Bond, ratably, 
according to the amounts due respectively for principal and interest, to the Bondholders entitled 
thereto without any discrimination or privilege. 

Whenever moneys are to be applied by the Trustee pursuant to the provisions of this 
section, such moneys shall be applied by it at such times, and from time to time, and upon such 
advice as the Trustee shall determine, having due regard to the amount of such moneys available 
for application and the likelihood of additional moneys becoming available for such application 
in the future.  Whenever the Trustee shall apply such funds, it shall fix the date (which shall be 
an Interest Payment Date unless it shall deem another date more suitable) upon which such 
application is to be made and upon such date interest on the amounts of principal to be paid on 
such dates shall cease to accrue.  The Trustee shall give such notice as it may deem appropriate 
of the deposit with it of any such moneys and of the fixing of any such date, and shall not be 
required to make payment to the Holder of any Bond until such Bond shall be presented to the 
Trustee for appropriate endorsement or for cancellation if fully paid. 

Whenever all Bonds and interest thereon have been paid under the provisions of this 
section and all expenses and charges of the Trustee have been paid, any balance remaining shall 
be paid to the persons entitled to receive the same; if no other person shall be entitled thereto, 
then the balance shall be paid to the City. 

Section 7.05  Right of Trustee to Act Without Possession of Bonds.  All rights of action 
(including the right to file proof of claim) under this Indenture, the Lease, or under any of the 
Bonds, may be enforced by the Trustee without the possession of any of the Bonds or the 
production thereof in any trial or other proceeding relating thereto, and any such suit or 



13239183v2 
 

 

 34 
 

proceeding instituted by the Trustee shall be brought in its name as Trustee, without the necessity 
of joining as plaintiffs or defendants any Holders of the Bonds hereby secured, and any recovery 
of judgment shall be for the equal benefit of the Holders of the Outstanding Bonds, subject to the 
provisions of Section 6.02 with respect to extended Bonds and claims for interest. 

Section 7.06  Control by Bondholders.  The Holders of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding shall have the right, during the continuance of an 
Event of Default, 

(a) to require the Trustee to proceed to enforce this Indenture or any Collateral 
Document, either by judicial proceedings for the enforcement of the payment of the Bonds or the 
foreclosure of this Indenture or the enforcement of any other remedy; and 

(b) to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred upon the Trustee hereunder, 
or under any Collateral Document; provided that 

(1) such direction shall not be in conflict with any rule of law or with 
this Indenture, 

(2) the Trustee shall not determine that the action so directed would be 
unjustly prejudicial to the Holders not taking part in such direction, 

(3) the Trustee may take any other action deemed proper by the 
Trustee which is not inconsistent with such direction, and 

(4) the Trustee shall be indemnified as provided in Section 8.06. 

Section 7.07  Limitation on Suits by Bondholders.  No Holder of any Bond shall have any 
right to institute any suit, action or proceeding in equity or at law for the enforcement of this 
Indenture or for the execution of any trust hereof or for any other remedy hereunder, unless a 
Default has occurred of which a Responsible Officer has been notified; nor unless also such 
Default shall have become an Event of Default and the Holders of not less than a majority in 
aggregate principal amount of Bonds Outstanding hereunder shall have made written request to 
the Trustee and shall have offered it reasonable opportunity either to proceed to exercise the 
powers hereinbefore granted or to institute such action, suit or proceeding in its own name; nor 
unless also they shall have offered to the Trustee indemnity as provided hereinafter; and such 
notification, request and offer of indemnity are hereby declared in every such case to be 
conditions precedent to the execution of the powers and trusts of this Indenture, and to any action 
or cause of action for enforcement or for any other remedy hereunder; it being understood and 
intended that no one or more Holders of the Bonds shall have any right in any manner whatsoever 
to affect, disturb, or prejudice the lien of this Indenture by the Holder's action or to enforce any 
right hereunder except in the manner herein provided, and that all proceedings at law or in equity 
shall be instituted, had and maintained in the manner herein provided and for the equal benefit of 
the Holders of all Bonds outstanding hereunder.  Nothing in this Indenture contained shall, 
however, affect or impair the right of any Bondholder, which is absolute and unconditional, to 
enforce and bring suit for the payment of the principal of and interest on any Bond at and after the 
maturity thereof or to pay the principal of and interest on each of the Bonds issued hereunder to 



13239183v2 
 

 

 35 
 

the respective Holders thereof at the time and place in said Bonds expressed, in accordance with 
the terms of the Bonds. 

Section 7.08  Waiver by Bondholders.  The Trustee, upon the written request of the 
Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time Outstanding 
hereunder, shall waive any Default hereunder and its consequences, except a Default in the 
payment of the principal of the Bonds at the date of maturity specified therein; provided, 
however, that a Default in the payment of interest on the Bonds shall not be waived unless, prior 
to such waiver, all arrears of interest and all expenses of the Trustee shall have been paid or shall 
have been provided for by deposit with the Trustee of a sum sufficient to pay the same.  In case of 
any such waiver, the Issuer, the Trustee and the Holders of the Bonds shall be restored to their 
former positions and rights hereunder respectively.  No such waiver shall extend to any 
subsequent or other Default or impair any right consequent thereon. 

Section 7.09  Remedies Cumulative, Delay Not To Constitute Waiver.  No remedy by the 
terms of this Indenture or the Lease, conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee (or to the 
Bondholders) is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such remedy 
shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given hereunder or now or 
hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

No delay or omission to exercise any right or power accruing upon any Default or Event 
of Default shall impair any such right or power or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such 
Default or Event of Default or acquiescence therein, and every such right and power may be 
exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 

No waiver of any Default or Event of Default hereunder, whether by the Trustee or by the 
Bondholders, shall extend to or shall affect any subsequent Default or Event of Default or shall 
impair any rights or remedies consequent thereon. 

Section 7.10  Restoration of Rights Upon Discontinuance of Proceedings.  In case the 
Trustee or Bondholders shall have proceeded to enforce any right under this Indenture and such 
proceedings shall have been discontinued or abandoned for any reason, or shall have been 
determined adversely to the Trustee or Bondholders, then and in every such case the Issuer, the 
City, the Trustee and the Bondholders shall be restored to their former positions and rights 
hereunder with respect to the Trust Estate, and all rights, remedies and powers of the Trustee and 
the Bondholders shall continue as if no such proceedings had been taken. 

Section 7.11  Suits to Protect the Trust Estate and Other Property.  Subject to Section 8.06, 
the Trustee shall have the power, but shall not be required, to institute and to maintain such 
proceedings as it may deem expedient to prevent any impairment of the Trust Estate by any acts 
which may be unlawful or in violation of this Indenture, the Lease or any other Collateral 
Document, and such suits and proceedings as the Trustee may deem expedient to protect its 
interests and the interests of the Bondholders in the Trust Estate and in the issues, profits, 
revenues and other income arising therefrom, including power to institute and maintain 
proceedings to restrain the enforcement of or compliance with any governmental enactment, rule 
or order that may be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, if the enforcement of, or compliance 



13239183v2 
 

 

 36 
 

with, such enactment, rule or order would impair the security hereunder or thereunder or be 
prejudicial to the interest of the Bondholders or the Trustee. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 37 
 

ARTICLE VIII 
 

CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE 

Section 8.01  Acceptance of Trust and Prudent Performance Thereof.  The Trustee 
undertakes to perform such duties and only such duties as are specifically set forth in this 
Indenture  and no duties shall be implied.  The Trustee shall, during the existence of any Event of 
Default which has not been cured, exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by this 
Indenture, and use the same degree of care and skill in their exercise, as a prudent person would 
exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of their own affairs. 

The Trustee shall not be required to take notice or be deemed to have notice of any 
Default hereunder, except Default in the deposits or payments specified herein, unless the a 
Responsible Officer of the Trustee shall be specifically notified in writing of such Default by the 
City, by the Issuer or by the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of Bonds 
Outstanding hereunder, and all notices or other instruments required by this Indenture to be 
delivered to the Trustee must, in order to be effective, be delivered at the designated corporate 
trust office of the Trustee, and in the absence of such notice so delivered, the Trustee may 
conclusively assume that there is no Default, except as aforesaid. 

No provision of this Indenture shall be construed to relieve the Trustee from liability for 
its own negligent action, its own negligent failure to act, or its own willful misconduct, except 
that 

(a) prior to such an Event of Default hereunder, and after the curing of all such 
Events of Default which may have occurred: 

(1) the duties and obligations of the Trustee shall be determined solely by the 
express provisions of this Indenture, and the Trustee shall not be liable except for the 
performance of such duties and obligations as are specifically set forth in this Indenture, 
and no implied covenants or obligations shall be read into this Indenture against the 
Trustee, and 

(2) in the absence of bad faith on the part of the Trustee, the Trustee may 
conclusively rely, as to the truth of the statements and to the correctness of the opinions 
expressed therein, and shall be protected in acting, upon any certificate or opinion 
furnished to the Trustee conforming to the requirements of this Indenture; but in the case 
of any such certificate or opinion which by any provision hereof is specifically required 
to be furnished to the Trustee, the Trustee shall be under a duty to examine the same to 
determine whether or not it conforms in form to the requirements of this Indenture; and 

(b) at all times, regardless of whether or not any such Event of Default shall exist: 

(1) the Trustee shall not be liable for any error of judgment made in good faith 
by a Responsible Officer or Officers of the Trustee unless it shall be proved that the 
Trustee was negligent in ascertaining the pertinent facts, and 



13239183v2 
 

 

 38 
 

(2) the Trustee shall not be liable with respect to any action taken or omitted 
to be taken by it in good faith in accordance with the direction of the Holders of not less 
than a majority in aggregate principal amount of all the Bonds at the time outstanding 
relating to the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy 
available to the Trustee, or exercising  any trust or power conferred upon the Trustee 
under this Indenture. 

None of the provisions contained in this Indenture shall require the Trustee to expend or 
risk its own funds or otherwise to incur individual financial liability in the performance of any of 
its duties or in the exercise of any of its rights or powers, if it shall have reasonable grounds for 
believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such risk or liability is not 
reasonably assured to it. 

Section 8.02  Trustee May Rely Upon Certain Documents and Opinions.  Except as 
otherwise provided in Section 8.01: 

(a) the Trustee may rely and shall be protected in acting upon any resolution, 
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, report, notice, request, consent, order, bond or other 
paper or document believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the 
proper party or parties and  the Trustee shall be under no duty to make any investigation or 
inquiry into any statements contained or matters referred to in any such instrument; 

(b) any request, direction, election, order, certification or demand of the Issuer or the 
City shall be sufficiently evidenced by an instrument signed by an Issuer Representative or a 
City Representative, as the case may be (unless otherwise in this Indenture specifically 
prescribed), and any resolution of the Issuer may be evidenced to the Trustee by a Certified 
Resolution; 

(c) the Trustee may consult with counsel (who may be counsel for the Issuer or the 
City) and the advice or opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and 
protection in respect of any action taken or suffered by it hereunder in good faith and in 
accordance with the opinion of such counsel; and 

(d) whenever, in the administration of the trusts of this Indenture, the Trustee shall 
deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering 
any action hereunder, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be herein specifically 
prescribed) may, in the absence of negligence or bad faith on the part of the Trustee, be deemed 
to be conclusively proved and established by a Certificate of the Issuer and such Certificate of 
the Issuer shall, in the absence of negligence or bad faith on the part of the Trustee, be full 
warrant to the Trustee for any action taken or suffered by it under the provisions of this Indenture 
upon the faith thereof 

(e) The Trustee shall have the right to accept and act upon instructions or directions 
pursuant to this Indenture sent in the form of a manually signed document by unsecured e-mail, 
facsimile transmission or other similar unsecured electronic methods, provided, however, that the 
Issuer shall provide to the Trustee an incumbency certificate listing designated persons with the 
authority to provide such instructions and containing specimen signatures of such designated 



13239183v2 
 

 

 39 
 

persons, which incumbency certificate shall be amended whenever a person is to be added or 
deleted from the listing.  If the Issuer elects to give the Trustee e-mail or facsimile instructions 
(or instructions by a similar electronic method) and the Trustee in its discretion elects to act upon 
such instructions, the Trustee's understanding of such instructions shall be deemed controlling.  
The Trustee shall not be liable for any losses, costs or expenses arising directly or indirectly from 
the trustee's reliance upon and compliance with such instructions notwithstanding that such 
instructions conflict or are inconsistent with a subsequent written instruction.  The Issuer agrees 
to assume all risks arising out of the use of such electronic methods to submit instructions and 
directions to the Trustee, including, without limitation, the risk of the Trustee acting on 
unauthorized instructions, and the risk of interception and misuse by third parties. 

Section 8.03  Trustee Not Responsible for Indenture Statements, Validity.  The Trustee 
shall not be responsible for any recital or statement herein, or in the Bonds (except in respect of 
the certificate of the Trustee endorsed on such Bonds), or for the validity of the execution by the 
Issuer of this Indenture or the validity or execution of the Lease or the Bond Resolution, or of any 
supplemental instrument, or for the sufficiency of the security of the Bonds issued hereunder or 
intended to be secured hereby, or for the value of or title to any of the Trust Estate, or otherwise 
as to the maintenance or the security hereof; and the Trustee shall not be bound to ascertain or 
inquire as to the performance or observance of any covenant, condition or agreement on the part 
of the Issuer or the City except as herein set forth, but the Trustee may require of the Issuer and 
the City full information and advice as to the performance of the covenants, conditions and 
agreements aforesaid and of the condition of the physical property included in the Trust Estate.  
The Trustee shall not be accountable for the use of any Bonds authenticated or delivered 
hereunder. 

The Trustee shall not be responsible for and makes not representation as to the legality, 
effectiveness or sufficiency of any security document or for the creation, perfection, priority or 
protection of any lien securing the bonds. The Trustee shall not be responsible for filing any 
financing or continuation statement or recording any documents or instruments in any public 
office at any time or otherwise for perfecting or maintaining the perfection of any lien or security 
interest in the trust estate it being understood that the Issuer shall be obligated to make such 
filings on behalf of the Trustee. 

 
Section 8.04  Limits on Duties and Liabilities of Trustee.  The permissive right of the 

Trustee to do things enumerated in this Indenture shall not be construed as a duty of the Trustee 
and the Trustee shall be answerable only for its own negligence or willful misconduct.  The 
Trustee shall not be required to give any bond or surety in respect of the execution of the said 
trusts and powers or otherwise in respect of the premises. 

In no event shall the Trustee be liable for incidental, special, indirect, consequential or 
punitive damages or penalties (including but not limited to lost profits), even if the Trustee has 
been advised of the likelihood of such damages or penalty regardless of the form of action. 
 

Section 8.05  Money Held in Trust.  Money held by the Trustee hereunder is held in trust 
but need not be segregated from other funds except to the extent required by law.  The Trustee 
shall be under no liability for interest on any money received by it hereunder except as 
specifically provided herein. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 40 
 

Section 8.06  Obligation of Trustee.  The permissive right of the Trustee to do things 
enumerated in this Indenture shall not be construed as a duty. The Trustee shall be under no 
obligation to institute any suit, exercise the option, or to take any proceeding under this Indenture, 
or to enter any appearance or in any way defend in any suit in which it may be defendant, or to 
take any steps in the execution of the trusts hereby created or in the enforcement of any rights and 
powers hereunder, until it shall be indemnified to its satisfaction against any and all costs and 
expenses, outlays and counsel fees and other anticipated disbursements and against all liability 
except to the extent determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been caused solely by 
its own gross negligence or willful misconduct ; the Trustee may, nevertheless, begin suit, or 
appear in and defend suit, or do anything else in its judgment proper to be done by it as such 
Trustee, without indemnity, and in such case the Trustee shall be reimbursed for all costs and 
expenses, outlays and counsel fees and other reasonable disbursements properly incurred in 
connection therewith.  If the Issuer shall fail to make such reimbursement from funds provided by 
the City, the Trustee may reimburse itself from any moneys in its possession under the provisions 
of this Indenture (other than moneys used to discharge Bonds under Article X) and shall be 
entitled to a preference therefor over any of the Bonds or claims for interest Outstanding 
hereunder. 

Section 8.07  Notice to Bondholders.  The Trustee shall give to the Holders of the Bonds 
whose names and addresses are known to it written notice of all Defaults known to the Trustee by 
virtue of actual knowledge of a Responsible Officer, within thirty days after the occurrence of an 
Event of Default unless such Default shall have been cured before the giving of such notice; 
provided that, except in the case of Default in the payment of principal and interest on any of the 
Bonds; and further provided that no such notice shall be given unless and until any such Default 
becomes an Event of Default. 

Section 8.08  Intervention in Judicial Proceedings.  In any judicial proceeding to which the 
Issuer or the City is a party and which in the opinion of the Trustee has a substantial bearing on 
the interest of owners of Bonds issued hereunder, the Trustee may intervene on behalf of 
Bondholders and shall do so if requested in writing by the owners of at least fifty-one percent in 
the aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding hereunder.  The rights and obligations of the 
Trustee under this Section are subject to the approval of the court having jurisdiction in the 
premises. 

Section 8.09  Further Investigation by Trustee.  The resolutions, opinions, certificates and 
other instruments provided for in this Indenture may be accepted by the Trustee as conclusive 
evidence of the facts and conclusions stated therein and shall be in full warrant, protection and 
authority to the Trustee for its actions hereunder; but the Trustee may, in its unrestricted 
discretion, and shall, if requested in writing so to do by the Holders of not less than fifty-one 
percent in aggregate principal amount of Bonds Outstanding hereunder, cause to be made such 
independent investigation as it may see fit, and in that event may decline to release any property, 
or pay over cash, or take other action unless satisfied by such investigation of the truth and 
accuracy of the matters so investigated.  The expense of such investigation shall be paid by the 
Issuer from funds provided by the City, or, if paid by the Trustee, shall be repaid to it with interest 
at the lesser of seven percent per annum or the maximum rate permitted by law, by the Issuer 
from funds provided by the City or from the Trust Estate. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 41 
 

Section 8.10  Trustee to Retain Financial Records.  The Trustee shall retain all financial 
statements furnished by the Issuer or the City in accordance with this Indenture so long as any of 
the Bonds shall be Outstanding.  The Trustee shall have no duty to review or analyze any such 
financial records.  The Trustee shall not be deemed to have notice of any information contained 
therein or event of default which may be disclosed in any manner therein. 

Section 8.11  Compensation of Trustee.  All advances, counsel fees and other expenses 
reasonably made or incurred by the Trustee in and about the execution of the trust hereby created 
and reasonable compensation to the Trustee for its services in the premises shall be paid by the 
Issuer, from funds provided by the City.  The compensation of the Trustee shall not be limited to 
or by any provision of law in regard to the compensation of trustees of an express trust.  If not 
paid by the Issuer from funds provided by the City, the Trustee shall have a first lien on moneys 
in its possession (other than money used to discharge Bonds under Article X), with right of 
payment prior to payment on account of interest or principal of any Bond issued hereunder, for 
reasonable compensation, expenses, advances and counsel fees incurred in and about the 
execution of the trusts hereby created and exercise and performance of the powers and duties of 
the Trustee hereunder and the cost and expense incurred in defending against any liability in the 
premises of any character whatsoever (unless such liability is adjudicated to have resulted from 
the gross negligence or willful default of the Trustee). 

Section 8.12  Trustee May Hold Bonds.  The Trustee and its officers and directors may 
acquire and hold, or become the pledgee of, Bonds and otherwise deal with the Issuer or the City 
in the same manner and to the same extent and with like effect as though it were not Trustee 
hereunder. 

Section 8.13  Appointment of Trustee.  There shall at all times be a trustee hereunder 
which shall be an association or corporation organized and doing business under the laws of the 
United States or any State thereof, authorized under such laws to exercise corporate trust powers, 
having a combined capital and surplus of at least $50,000,000, and subject to supervision or 
examination by Federal or State authority.  If such association or corporation publishes reports of 
condition at least annually, pursuant to law or to the requirements of any supervising or 
examining authority above referred to, then for the purposes of this section the combined capital 
and surplus of such association or corporation shall be deemed to be its combined capital and 
surplus as set forth in its most recent report of condition so published.  In case at any time the 
Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of this section, and another 
association or corporation is eligible, the Trustee shall resign immediately in the manner and with 
the effect specified in Section 8.16. 

Section 8.14  Merger of Trustee.  Any corporation or association into which the Trustee 
may be converted or merged, or with which it may be consolidated, or to which it may sell or 
transfer its trust business and assets as a whole or substantially as a whole, or any corporation or 
association, resulting from any such conversion, sale, merger, consolidation or transfer to which it 
is a party, ipso facto, shall be and become successor trustee hereunder and vested with all of the 
title to the Trust Estate and all the trusts, powers, discretions, immunities, privileges and all other 
matters as was its predecessor, without the execution or filing of any instrument or any further 
act, deed or conveyance on the part of any of the parties hereto, anything herein to the contrary 
notwithstanding. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 42 
 

Section 8.15  Resignation or Removal of Trustee.  The Trustee may resign and be 
discharged from the trusts created by this Indenture by giving to the Issuer thirty days' notice in 
writing, and to the Bondholders thirty days' notice by first class mail at its, her or his address as 
set forth on the registration books of such resignation, specifying a date when such resignation 
shall take effect.  Such resignation shall take effect on the day specified in such notice, unless 
previously a successor trustee shall have been appointed by the Bondholders as hereinafter 
provided, in which event such resignation shall take effect immediately on the appointment of 
such successor trustee. 

Any Trustee hereunder may be removed at any time upon thirty days’ notice and by an 
instrument or instruments in writing, appointing a successor to the Trustee so removed, filed with 
the Trustee and executed by the Issuer or the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds hereby secured and then Outstanding. 

Section 8.16  Appointment of Successor Trustee.  In case at any time the Trustee shall 
resign or shall be removed or otherwise shall become incapable of acting, or shall be adjudged as 
bankrupt or insolvent, or if a receiver of the Trustee or of its property shall be appointed, or if a 
public supervisory office shall take charge or control of the Trustee or of its property or affairs, a 
vacancy shall forthwith and ipso facto be created in the office of such Trustee hereunder, and a 
successor may be appointed, by the Issuer or the Holders of a majority in aggregate principal 
amount of the said Bonds hereby secured and then Outstanding, by an instrument or instruments 
in writing filed with the Trustee and executed by the Issuer or such Bondholders, notification 
thereof being given to the Issuer, but in the event the Trustee is removed by the Bondholders, 
until a new Trustee shall be appointed by the Bondholders as herein authorized, the Issuer may, 
subject to the provisions hereof, appoint a Trustee to fill such vacancy.  After any such 
appointment by the Issuer, the Trustee so appointed shall cause notice of its appointment to be 
mailed within thirty days of such appointment to the registered Holders of the Bonds, but any new 
Trustee so appointed by the Issuer shall immediately and without further act be superseded by a 
Trustee appointed in the manner above provided by the Holders of a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds whenever such appointment by the Bondholders shall be made. 

If, in a proper case, no appointment of a successor Trustee shall be made pursuant to the 
foregoing provisions of this section within forty-five (45) days after a vacancy shall have 
occurred in the office of Trustee, the Holder of any Bond hereby secured or any retiring Trustee 
may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor trustee.  Said court may 
thereupon, after such notice, if any, as such court may deem proper and prescribe, appoint a 
successor trustee.  Every such Trustee appointed pursuant to the provisions of this section shall 
be a trust company or bank having trust powers and having a reported capital and surplus not less 
than $50,000,000, if there be such an institution willing, qualified and able to accept the trust 
upon reasonable or customary terms. 

Section 8.17  Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor Trustee.  Every successor 
Trustee appointed hereunder shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to its predecessor and also to 
the Issuer an instrument in writing accepting such appointment hereunder, and thereupon such 
successor, without any further act, deed or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all the 
estates, properties, rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations of its predecessor; but such 
predecessor shall, nevertheless, on the written request of the Issuer or of its successor execute and 



13239183v2 
 

 

 43 
 

deliver an instrument transferring to such successor all the estate, properties, rights, powers and 
trusts of such predecessor hereunder, and every predecessor Trustee shall deliver all securities and 
moneys held by it as Trustee hereunder to its successor.  Should any assignment, conveyance or 
instrument in writing from the Issuer be required by any successor Trustee for more fully and 
certainly vesting in such successor trustee the estates, rights, powers and duties hereby vested or 
intended to be vested in the predecessor Trustee, any and all such assignments, conveyances and 
instruments in writing shall, on request, be executed, acknowledged and delivered by the Issuer.  
The resignation of any Trustee and the instrument or instruments removing any Trustee and 
appointing a successor hereunder, together with all assignments, conveyances and other 
instruments provided for in this article shall, at the expense of the City, be forthwith filed and/or 
recorded by the successor Trustee in each recording office where the Indenture shall have been 
filed and/or recorded. 

Section 8.18  Co-Trustee.   

(a) At any time or times, for the purpose of meeting any legal requirements of any 
jurisdiction in which any part of the Trust Estate may at the time be located, the Issuer and the 
Trustee shall have power to appoint one or more persons approved by the Trustee either to act as 
Co-Trustee or Co-Trustees, jointly with the Trustee of all or any part of the Trust Estate, or to act 
as separate Trustee or separate Trustees of all or any part of the Trust Estate, and to vest in such 
person or persons, in such capacity, such title to the Trust Estate or any part thereof, and such 
rights, powers, duties, trusts or obligations as the Issuer and the Trustee may consider necessary 
or desirable, subject to the remaining provisions of this section. 

(b) Upon the request of the Trustee or of the Holders of at least twenty-five percent in 
aggregate principal amount of Bonds outstanding hereunder, the Issuer shall for such purpose 
join with the Trustee in the execution, delivery and performance of all instruments and 
agreements necessary or proper to appoint the Co-Trustee.  If the Issuer shall not have joined in 
such appointment within fifteen days after the receipt by it of a request so to do, or in case an 
Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing, the Trustee alone shall have power to 
make such appointment. 

(c) The Issuer shall execute, acknowledge and deliver all such instruments as may be 
required by any such Co-Trustee or separate trustee for more fully confirming such title, rights, 
powers, trusts, duties and obligations to such Co-Trustee or separate Trustee. 

(d) Every Co-Trustee appointed hereunder shall act subject to the following 
conditions and provisions, namely: 

(1) The Bonds shall be authenticated and delivered and all rights, powers, 
trusts, duties and obligations by this Indenture conferred upon the Trustee in respect of 
the custody, control or management of moneys, papers, securities and other personal 
property shall be exercised, solely by the Trustee. 

(2) All rights, powers, trusts, duties and obligations conferred or imposed 
upon the Trustee hereunder shall be conferred or imposed upon and exercised or 
performed by the Trustee, or by the Trustee and Co-Trustee or by a separate Trustee or 



13239183v2 
 

 

 44 
 

separate Trustees jointly, if so provided in any instrument appointing such Co-Trustee or 
separate Trustee or Trustees, except to the extent that, under the law of any jurisdiction in 
which any particular act or acts are to be performed, the Trustee shall be incompetent or 
unqualified to perform such act or acts or incompetent to bring suit to enforce the Lease, 
in which event such act or acts shall be performed by the Co-Trustee or separate Trustee 
or Trustees. 

(3) Any request in writing by the Trustee to any Co-Trustee or separate 
Trustee to take or to refrain from taking any action hereunder shall be sufficient warrant 
for the taking, or the refraining from taking, of such action by the Co-Trustee or separate 
Trustee. 

(4) Any Co-Trustee or separate Trustee may delegate to the Trustee the 
exercise of any right, power, trust, duty or obligation, discretionary or otherwise. 

(5) The Trustee at any time, by an instrument in writing, with the concurrence 
of the Issuer, may accept the resignation of or remove any Co-Trustee or separate Trustee 
appointed under this section and in case an Event of Default shall have occurred and be 
continuing, the Trustee shall have power to accept the resignation of, or remove, any such 
Co-Trustee or separate Trustee without the concurrence of the Issuer.  Upon the request 
of the Trustee, the Issuer shall join with the Trustee in the execution, delivery and 
performance of all instruments and agreements necessary or proper to effectuate such 
resignation or removal. 

(6) No Trustee hereunder shall be personally liable by reason of any act or 
omission of any other Trustee hereunder. 

(7) Any demand, request, direction, appointment, removal, notice, consent, 
waiver or other action in writing delivered to the Trustee shall be deemed to have been 
delivered to each such Co-Trustee or separate Trustee. 

(8) Any moneys, papers, securities or other items of personal property 
received by any such Co-Trustee or separate Trustee hereunder shall forthwith, so far as 
may be permitted by law, be turned over to the Trustee. 

(e) Upon the acceptance in writing of such appointment by any Co-Trustee or any 
separate Trustee, the Co-Trustee or separate Trustee shall be vested with such title to the Trust 
Estate or any part thereof, and with such rights, powers, duties and obligations, as shall be 
specified in any instrument of appointment jointly with the Trustee (except insofar as local law 
makes it necessary for any such Co-Trustee or separate Trustee to act alone) subject to all the 
terms of this Indenture.  Every such acceptance shall be filed with the Trustee.  Any Co-Trustee 
or separate Trustee may, at any time by an instrument in writing, constitute the Trustee, such Co-
Trustee's or separate Trustee's attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power and authority to do all 
acts and things and to exercise all discretion on such Co-Trustee's or separate Trustee's behalf 
and in such Co-Trustee's or separate Trustee's name. 

(f) In case any Co-Trustee or separate Trustee shall die, become incapable of acting, 
resign or be removed, the title to the Trust Estate, and all rights, powers, trusts, duties and 



13239183v2 
 

 

 45 
 

obligations of said Co-Trustee or separate Trustee shall, so far as permitted by law, vest in and 
be exercised by the Trustee unless and until a successor Co-Trustee or separate Trustee shall be 
appointed in the manner herein provided. 

Section 8.19  Appointment of Successor or Alternate Paying Agents.  In the event the 
initial Trustee shall also have been appointed paying agent for the Bonds, a successor Trustee 
shall become successor paying agent with respect to such Bonds unless otherwise provided in the 
instrument appointing such successor Trustee.  If any paying agent other than the initial Trustee 
shall resign or become incapable of acting, or shall be removed under a supplemental indenture 
entered into pursuant to the terms hereof, the Trustee may appoint a successor paying agent which 
is a bank or trust company qualified to act as paying agent under the Act and which is willing to 
accept the office on reasonable and customary terms approved by an Authorized Issuer 
Representative.  The Trustee may appoint successor paying agents.  "Paying Agent" as used in 
this section refers to the bank or trust company named in the form of Bond provided for the 
Bonds in Exhibit B hereto, where principal of and interest on Bonds may be paid. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 46 
 

ARTICLE IX 
 

CONCERNING THE BONDHOLDERS 

Section 9.01  Execution of Instruments by Bondholders.  Any request, direction, consent 
or other instrument in writing required by this Indenture to be signed or executed by Bondholders 
may be in any number of concurrent instruments of similar tenor and may be signed or executed 
by such Bondholders in person or by agent duly appointed by an instrument in writing.  Proof of 
the execution of any such instrument and of the ownership of Bonds shall be sufficient for any 
purpose of this Indenture and shall be conclusive in favor of the Trustee with regard to any action 
taken by it under such instrument if made in the following manner: 

(a) The fact and date of the execution by any person of any such instrument may be 
proved by the certificate of any officer in any jurisdiction who, by the laws thereof, has power to 
take acknowledgments of deeds to be recorded within such jurisdiction, to the effect that the 
person signing such instrument acknowledged to him or her the execution thereof, or by an 
affidavit of a witness to such execution. 

(b) The ownership of Bonds shall be proved by the registration books kept under the 
provisions of this Indenture. 

Nothing contained in this article shall be construed as limiting the Trustee to the proof 
above specified, it being intended that the Trustee may accept any other evidence of the matters 
herein stated which to it may seem sufficient. 

Section 9.02  Waiver of Notice.  Any notice or other communication required by this 
Indenture to be given by delivery, publication or otherwise to the Bondholders or any one or more 
thereof may be waived, at any time before such notice or communication is so required to be 
given, in writing mailed or delivered to the Trustee by the Holder or Holders of all of the Bonds 
entitled to such notice or communication. 

Section 9.03  Determination of Bondholder Concurrence.  In determining whether the 
Holders of the requisite aggregate principal amount of Bonds have concurred in any demand, 
request, direction, consent or waiver under this Indenture, Bonds which are owned by the Issuer 
or the City shall be disregarded and deemed not to be Outstanding for the purpose of any such 
determination; provided, that for the purpose of determining whether the Trustee shall be 
protected in relying on any such demand, request, direction, consent or waiver only Bonds which 
the Trustee actually knows to be so owned shall be disregarded.  Bonds so owned which have 
been pledged in good faith may be regarded as Outstanding for the purposes of this Section if the 
pledgee shall establish to the satisfaction of the Trustee the pledgee's right to vote such Bonds and 
that the pledgee is not a person directly or indirectly controlling or controlled by or under 
common control with the Issuer or the City.  In case of a dispute as to such right, any decision by 
the Trustee taken upon the advice of counsel shall be full protection to the Trustee. 

Section 9.04  Bondholders' Meeting.  A meeting of the Bondholders may be called at any 
time and from time to time for any of the following purposes: 



13239183v2 
 

 

 47 
 

(a) to give any notice to the Issuer, the City, or the Trustee, or to give any direction to 
the Trustee, or to make any request of the Trustee, or to consent to the waiving of any default 
hereunder and its consequences, or to take any other action authorized to be taken by 
Bondholders pursuant to any of the provisions of Article VII; 

(b) to remove the Trustee or appoint a successor Trustee pursuant to the provisions of 
Article VIII; 

(c) subject to Article XI, to consent to the execution of an indenture or indentures 
supplemental hereto; 

(d) subject to Article XII, to consent to any amendment of the Lease or to any 
instrument supplemental to the Lease; or 

(e) to take any other action authorized to be taken by or on behalf of the Holders of 
any percentage of the Outstanding Bonds under any other provisions of this Indenture or under 
applicable law. 

Any Bondholders' meeting  may be called and held as follows: 

(a) A meeting of Bondholders may be held at such place within the City or in the city 
where the Trustee has its principal office as the Trustee or, in case of its failure to act, the City or 
Bondholders calling the meeting shall prescribe. 

(b) Notice of every meeting of Bondholders, setting forth the time and place of such 
meeting and in general terms the action proposed to be taken at such meeting, shall be mailed, 
postage prepaid, not less than twenty nor more than one hundred eighty days prior to the date 
fixed for the meeting, to each owner of Bonds.  Any failure of the Trustee to mail such notice, or 
any defect therein shall not, however, in any way impair or affect the validity of any such 
meeting. 

(c) In case at any time the Issuer, pursuant to a Certified Resolution, or the Holders of 
at least ten percent in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding, shall have 
requested the Trustee to call a meeting of the Bondholders, by written request setting forth in 
reasonable detail the action proposed to be taken at the meeting, and the Trustee shall not have 
given the notice of such meeting within twenty days after receipt of such request, then the Issuer 
or the Holders of Bonds in the amount above specified may call such meeting to take any action 
authorized in this Section by giving notice thereof as provided in paragraph (b) of this section. 

(d) Only a Holder of one or more Bonds or a person appointed as proxy by an 
instrument in writing of such Holder shall be entitled to vote at or to participate with their 
counsel and the representatives of the Trustee or the Issuer in such meeting.  Each Holder shall 
be entitled to one vote for each $5,000 in principal amount of Outstanding Bonds held. 

(e) The Trustee or, in case of its failure to act, the Issuer or Bondholders calling or 
requesting the meeting, may make such reasonable regulations as it may deem advisable for any 
meeting of Bondholders in regard to proof of the holding of Bonds and of the appointment of 
proxies and in regard to the appointment and duties of inspectors of votes, the submission and 



13239183v2 
 

 

 48 
 

examination of proxies, certificates and other evidence of the right to vote, determination of 
presiding and recording officers, and such other matters concerning the conduct of the meeting 
as it shall deem appropriate. 

(f) At any meeting of Bondholders, the presence of persons owning  Bonds in an 
aggregate principal amount sufficient under the appropriate provision of this Indenture to take 
action upon the business for the transaction of which such meeting was called shall constitute a 
quorum.  Any meeting of Bondholders duly called pursuant to this section may be adjourned 
from time to time by vote of the Holders (or proxies for the Holders) of a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds represented at the meeting and entitled to vote, whether or not a 
quorum shall be present; and the meeting may be held as so adjourned without further notice. 

(g) The vote upon any resolution submitted to any meeting of Bondholders shall be 
by written ballots on which shall be subscribed the signatures of the Holders of Bonds or of their 
representatives by proxy and the serial number or numbers of the Bonds held or represented by 
them.  The president of the meeting shall appoint two inspectors of votes who shall count all 
votes cast at the meeting for or against any resolution and who shall make and file with the 
secretary of the meeting their verified written reports in duplicate of all votes cast at the meeting.  
A record, at least in duplicate, of the proceedings of each meeting of Bondholders shall be 
prepared by the secretary of the meeting and there shall be attached to said record the original 
reports of the inspectors of votes on any vote by ballot taken thereat and affidavits by one or 
more persons having knowledge of the facts setting forth a copy of the notice of the meeting and 
showing that said notice was mailed as provided in paragraph (b).  Each copy shall be signed and 
verified by the affidavits of the president and secretary of the meeting and one such copy shall be 
delivered to the Issuer and the City and another to the Trustee to be preserved by the Trustee, the 
latter to have attached thereto the ballots voted at the meeting.  Any record so signed and verified 
shall be conclusive evidence of the matters therein stated. 

Section 9.05  Revocation by Bondholders.  At any time prior to (but not after) the 
evidencing to the Trustee of the taking of any action by the Holders of the percentage in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds specified in this Indenture in connection with such action, any 
Holder of a Bond may, by filing written notice with the Trustee at its principal office, revoke any 
consent given by such Holder or the predecessor Holder of such Bond.  Except as aforesaid, any 
such consent given by the Holder of any Bond shall be conclusive and binding upon such Holder 
and upon all future Holders and owners of such Bond and of any Bond issued in exchange 
therefor or in lieu thereof, irrespective of whether or not any notation in regard thereto is made 
upon such Bond.  Any action taken by the Holders of the percentage in aggregate principal 
amount of the Bonds specified in this Indenture in connection with such action shall be 
conclusively binding upon the Issuer, the City, the Trustee and the Holders of all the Outstanding 
Bonds. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 49 
 

ARTICLE X 
 

PAYMENT, DEFEASANCE AND RELEASE 

Section 10.01  Payment and Discharge of Indenture.  If the Issuer, its successors or 
assigns, shall: 

(a) pay or cause to be paid the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the 
Bonds at the time and in the manner stipulated therein and herein, or 

(b) provide for the payment of principal and premium, if any, of the Bonds and 
interest thereon by depositing with the Trustee at or at any time before maturity amounts 
sufficient either in cash or in direct obligations of or obligations the principal of and interest on 
which is fully guaranteed by the United States of America the principal and interest on which 
when due and payable (or redeemable at the option of the Holder thereof) and without 
consideration of any reinvestment thereof shall be sufficient to pay the entire amount due or to 
become due thereon for principal and premium, if any, and interest to maturity of all the Bonds 
Outstanding, or 

(c) deliver to the Trustee (1) proof satisfactory to the Trustee that notice of 
redemption of all of the Outstanding callable Bonds not surrendered or to be surrendered to it for 
cancellation has been given or waived as provided in Article III, or that arrangements 
satisfactory to the Trustee have been made insuring that such notice will be given or waived, or 
(2) a written instrument executed by the Issuer under its official seal (if required by law) and 
expressed to be irrevocable, authorizing the Trustee to give such notice for and on behalf of the 
Issuer, or (3) file with the Trustee a waiver of such notice of redemption signed by the Holders of 
all of such Outstanding Bonds, and in any such case, deposit with the Trustee before the date on 
which such Bonds are to be redeemed, as provided in Article III, the entire amount of the 
redemption price, including accrued interest, and premium, if any, either in cash or direct 
obligations of or obligations the principal of and interest on which is fully guaranteed by the 
United States of America (which do not permit the redemption thereof at the option of the issuer) 
in such aggregate face amount, bearing interest at such rates and maturing at such dates as shall 
be sufficient to provide for the payment of such redemption price on the date such Bonds are to 
be redeemed, and on such prior dates when principal of and interest on the Outstanding callable 
Bonds is due and payable, or 

(d) surrender to the Trustee for cancellation all Bonds for which payment is not so 
provided, and shall also pay all other sums due and payable hereunder by the Issuer, then and in 
that case, the Trustee shall deliver to the Issuer or the City such release from the lien of the 
Indenture as the Issuer or City may reasonably request, and all the Trust Estate shall revert to the 
Issuer and the City as their interests may appear, and the entire estate, right, title and interest of 
the Trustee and of the owners of the Bonds shall thereupon cease, determine and become void 
and the Trustee in such case, upon the cancellation of all Bonds for the payment of which cash or 
securities shall not have been deposited in accordance with the provisions of this Indenture, shall, 
upon receipt of a written request of the Issuer and of a Certificate of the Issuer and an Opinion of 
Counsel as to compliance with conditions precedent, and at City's cost and expense, execute to 
the Issuer, or its order, proper instruments acknowledging satisfaction of this Indenture and 



13239183v2 
 

 

 50 
 

surrender to the Issuer and the City, as their interests appear, all cash and deposited securities, if 
any (other than cash or securities for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon), which shall 
then be held hereunder as a part of the Trust Estate. 

In case of any discharge of the lien of the Indenture pursuant to paragraphs (b) or (c) 
there shall be submitted to the Trustee an Opinion of Counsel, which opinion may be based upon 
a ruling or rulings of the Internal Revenue Service, to the effect that the interest on the Bonds 
being discharged will not be subject to federal income taxation under Section 103 of the Internal 
Revenue Code, notwithstanding the discharge of the Indenture. 

Some but not all Outstanding Bonds may be discharged by any of the methods set forth in 
clauses (a), (b), (c) or (d) as if such Bonds constituted the entire series of Outstanding Bonds. 

Section 10.02  Bonds Deemed Not Outstanding After Deposits.  When there shall have 
been deposited at any time with the Trustee in trust for the purpose of discharging the Bonds as 
provided in Section 10.01, cash or direct obligations of or obligations fully guaranteed by the 
United States of America the principal and interest on which shall be sufficient to pay the 
principal of any Bonds (and premium, if any) when the same become due, either at maturity or 
otherwise, or at the date fixed for the redemption thereof and to pay all interest with respect 
thereto at the due dates for such interest or to the date fixed for redemption, for the use and benefit 
of the Holders thereof, then upon such deposit all Bonds shall cease to be entitled to any lien, 
benefit or security of this Indenture except the right to receive the funds so deposited, and Bonds 
shall be deemed not to be Outstanding hereunder; and it shall be the duty of the Trustee to hold 
the cash and securities so deposited for the benefit of the Holders of the Bonds, and from and after 
such date, redemption date or maturity, interest on Bonds thereof called for redemption shall 
cease to accrue. 

Section 10.03  Unclaimed Money to be Returned.  Any moneys deposited with the Trustee 
pursuant to the terms of this Indenture, for the payment or redemption of Bonds which remain 
unclaimed by the Holders of the Bonds for a period of two years and eleven months after the due 
date or the date fixed for redemption of the same, as the case may be, shall, upon the written 
request of the City, and if the Issuer or any successor to the obligations of the Issuer under the 
Indenture and the Bonds shall not at the time, to the knowledge of the Trustee, be in default with 
respect to any of the terms and conditions contained in the Indenture or in the Bonds, be paid to 
the City, and the Holders of the Bonds shall thereafter look only to the City for payment and then 
only to the extent of the amounts so received without interest thereon; provided, however, that 
within thirty days prior to the expiration of said period, the Trustee, before being required to make 
any such repayment, may, at the expense of the City, cause to be published in a suitable Financial 
Newspaper, a notice that after a date named therein said moneys will be returned to the City. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 51 
 

ARTICLE XI 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES 

Section 11.01  Purposes for Which Supplemental Indentures May be Executed.  The 
Issuer, upon resolution, and the Trustee from time to time and at any time, subject to the 
conditions and restrictions in this Indenture contained, may enter into such indentures 
supplemental hereto as may, or shall by them, be deemed necessary or desirable without notice to 
or the consent of any Bondholder for any one or more of the following purposes: 

(a) To correct or amplify the description of the Trust Estate, or to assign, convey, 
pledge or transfer and set over unto the Trustee, subject to such liens or other encumbrances as 
shall be therein specifically described, additional property or properties for the equal and 
proportional benefit and security of the Holders and owners of all Bonds at any time issued and 
Outstanding under this Indenture; 

(b) To add to the covenants and agreements of the Issuer in this Indenture contained 
other covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed, or to surrender any right or power 
reserved to or conferred upon the Issuer or to or upon any successor; 

(c) To evidence the succession or successive successions of any other department, 
agency, body or corporation to the Issuer and the assumption by such successor of the covenants, 
agreements and obligations of the Issuer in the Bonds hereby secured and in this Indenture and in 
any and every supplemental indenture contained or the succession, removal or appointment of 
any trustee or paying agent hereunder; 

(d) To cure any ambiguity or to correct or supplement any provision contained herein 
or in any supplemental indenture which may be defective or inconsistent with any other 
provision contained herein or in any supplemental indenture, or to make such other provisions in 
regard to matters or questions arising under this Indenture or any supplemental indenture as the 
Issuer may deem necessary or desirable and which shall not be inconsistent with the provisions 
of this Indenture or any supplemental indenture and which shall not impair the security of the 
same; 

(e) To modify, eliminate and/or add to the provisions of this Indenture to such extent 
as shall be necessary to effect the qualification of this Indenture under the Trust Indenture Act of 
1939, as then amended, or under any similar Federal statute hereafter enacted, and to add to this 
Indenture such other provisions as may be expressly permitted by said Trust Indenture Act of 
1939, excluding, however, the provisions referred to in Section 316(a)(2) of said Trust Indenture 
Act of 1939; 

(f) To make any other change which in the good faith judgment of the Trustee is not 
materially prejudicial to the Holders of any Bonds affected thereby; 

(g) To permit the issuance of Additional Bonds as provided in Section 2.11; 

(h) To revise the legal description of the Land in connection with an easement, utility 
access, or release of unimproved Land permitted under Sections 8.6 and 8.7 of the Lease. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 52 
 

The Trustee may conclusively rely on an opinion of Bond Counsel or Independent 
Counsel regarding whether a supplemental indenture under this Section 11.01 is permissible 
hereunder or does not materially prejudice the Holders of the Bonds. 

Section 11.02  Execution of Supplemental Indenture.  The Trustee is authorized to join 
with the Issuer in the execution of any such supplemental indenture, to make the further 
agreements and stipulations which may be therein contained, and accept the conveyance, transfer 
and assignment of any property thereunder, but the Trustee shall not be obligated to enter into any 
such supplemental indenture which affects its rights, duties or immunities under this Indenture. 

Section 11.03  Rights of Trustee.  In executing any amendment or supplemental indenture, 
the Trustee shall receive and will be fully protected in conclusively relying upon a certificate and 
an opinion of counsel stating that the execution of such amendment of supplemental indenture is 
authorized and permitted by this Indenture and is the legal, valid and binding obligation of the 
Issuer enforceable against it in accordance with its terms.   The Trustee may, but shall not be 
obligated to, enter into any such supplemental indenture which affects the trustee's own rights, 
duties or immunities under this indenture or otherwise. 

Section 11.04  Modification of Indenture with Consent of Bondholders.  Subject to the 
terms and provisions contained in this section and in Section 11.01, the Holders of not less than a 
majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then Outstanding shall have the right, from 
time to time, to consent to and approve the execution by the Issuer and the Trustee of such 
indenture or indentures supplemental hereto as shall be deemed necessary or desirable by the 
Issuer for the purpose of modifying, altering, amending, adding to or rescinding in any particular, 
any of the terms or provisions contained in this Indenture or in any supplemental indenture; 
provided, however, that, notwithstanding any other provision of this Indenture, nothing herein 
contained shall permit or be construed as permitting, without the consent of the Holders of all 
Outstanding Bonds, (a) an extension of the maturity of any Bond issued hereunder, or (b) a 
reduction in the principal amount of any Bond or the redemption premium or the rate of interest 
thereon, or (c) other than Additional Bonds authorized under Section 2.11 hereof, the creation of a 
lien upon or a pledge of revenues ranking prior to or on a parity with the lien or pledge created by 
this Indenture, or (d) a preference or priority of any Bond or Bonds over any other Bond or 
Bonds, or (e) a reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required to consent to 
supplemental indentures or amendments to the Lease or any other Collateral Document, or (f) a 
reduction in the aggregate principal amount of the Bonds required to waive an Event of Default. 

Whenever the Issuer shall deliver to the Trustee a resolution of Bondholders adopted at a 
Bondholders' meeting approved by, or an instrument or instruments purporting to be executed 
by, the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds then 
Outstanding, which resolution or instrument or instruments shall refer to the proposed 
supplemental indenture and shall specifically consent to and approve the execution thereof, 
thereupon, the Issuer and the Trustee may execute such supplemental indenture without liability 
or responsibility to any Holder of any Bond, whether or not such Holder shall have consented 
thereto. 

If the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds 
Outstanding at the time of the execution of such supplemental indenture shall have consented to 



13239183v2 
 

 

 53 
 

and approved the execution thereof as herein provided, no Holder of any Bond shall have any 
right to object to the execution of such supplemental indenture, or to object to any of the terms 
and provisions contained therein or the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the 
propriety of the execution thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Trustee or the Issuer from 
executing the same or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

Section 11.05  Supplemental Indentures to be Part of Indenture.  Any supplemental 
indenture executed in accordance with any of the provisions of this article shall thereafter form a 
part of this Indenture; and all the terms and conditions contained in any such supplemental 
indenture as to any provisions authorized to be contained therein shall be and be deemed to be 
part of the terms and conditions of this Indenture for any and all purposes, and the respective 
rights, duties and obligations under this Indenture of the Issuer, the Trustee and all Holders of 
Bonds then Outstanding shall thereafter be determined, exercised and enforced hereunder, subject 
in all respects to such modifications and amendments.  If deemed necessary or desirable by the 
Trustee, reference to any such supplemental indenture or any of such terms or conditions thereof 
may be set forth in reasonable and customary manner in the text of the Bonds or in a legend 
stamped on the Bonds. 

Section 11.06  Rights of City Unaffected.  Anything herein to the contrary 
notwithstanding, a supplemental indenture under this article which adversely affects the rights of 
the City under the Lease, so long as the Lease is in effect, shall not become effective unless and 
until the City consents to the execution and delivery of such supplemental indenture.  The Trustee 
shall cause notice of the proposed execution and delivery of any such supplemental indenture to 
the execution and delivery of which the City has not already consented, together with a copy of 
the proposed supplemental indenture, to be mailed to the City at least thirty days prior to the 
proposed date of execution and delivery of any such supplemental indenture. 

Section 11.07  Rights of Issuer.  The Issuer has no duty or obligation to consent to any 
supplemental indenture or other instrument amending the terms hereof and may, at the expense of 
the City, request and receive an opinion of such counsel as the Issuer may select in connection 
with any matter relating to a proposed amendment to this Indenture. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 54 
 

ARTICLE XII 
 

AMENDMENTS TO THE LEASE OR OTHER COLLATERAL DOCUMENT 

Section 12.01  Amendments to the Lease or Ground Lease Not Requiring Consent of 
Bondholders.  The Issuer and the Trustee may, without the consent of or notice to the 
Bondholders, consent to any amendment, change or modification of the Lease or other Collateral 
Document as may be required (i) by the provisions of the Collateral Document and this Indenture, 
(ii) in connection with the financing of any additions or expansions of the Project so long as such 
amendments do not affect the obligation of the City to make Rental Payments, as they become 
due and payable thereunder or otherwise materially adversely affect the rights of the existing 
Bondholders, (iii) for the purpose of curing any ambiguity or formal defect or omission, (iv) for 
the issuance of Additional Bonds as provided in Section 2.11, (v) to revise the legal description of 
the Land in connection with an easement, utility access, or release of unimproved Land permitted 
under Sections 8.6 and 8.7 of the Lease or (vi) in connection with any other change therein which, 
in the good faith judgment of the Trustee, is not to the material prejudice of the Holders of the 
Bonds.  The Trustee may rely on an opinion of Bond Counsel or Independent Counsel regarding 
whether an amendment to the Lease or other Collateral Documents under this Section 12.01 is 
permissible hereunder or does not materially prejudice the Holders of the Bonds. 

Section 12.02  Amendments to Lease or Ground Lease Requiring Consent of 
Bondholders.  Except for the amendments, changes or modifications as provided in Section 12.01, 
neither the Issuer nor the Trustee shall consent to any other amendment, change or modification 
of the Lease or any other Collateral Document without the written approval or consent of the 
Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds at the time 
Outstanding given and procured as in this section provided, however, that no such amendment, 
change or modification shall ever affect the obligation of the City to make payments of Rental 
Payments as they become due and payable.  If the Holders of not less than a majority in aggregate 
principal amount of the Bonds Outstanding hereunder at the time of the execution of any such 
amendment, change or modification shall have consented to and approved the execution thereof 
as herein provided, no Holder of any Bond shall have any right to object to any of the terms and 
provisions contained therein, or in the operation thereof, or in any manner to question the 
propriety of the execution thereof, or to enjoin or restrain the Trustee, the Issuer or the City from 
executing the same or from taking any action pursuant to the provisions thereof. 

Section 12.03  No Amendment May Reduce Rental Payments.  Under no circumstances 
shall any amendment to the Lease reduce the Rental Payments thereunder without the consent of 
the Holders of all the Bonds Outstanding. 

Section 12.04  Rights of Issuer and City.  The Issuer has no duty or obligation to consent 
to any proposed amendment to the Lease and may, at the expense of the City request and receive 
an opinion of such counsel as the Issuer may select in connection with any matter relating to a 
proposed amendment to the Lease.  Any consents required of the City hereunder shall be of no 
further force and effect if the Lease is not in full force and effect. 

  



13239183v2 
 

 

 55 
 

ARTICLE XIII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 13.01  Covenants of Issuer Bind Successors and Assigns.  All the covenants, 
stipulations, promises and agreements in this Indenture contained, by or in behalf of the Issuer, 
shall bind and inure to the benefit of its successors and assigns, whether so expressed or not. 

Section 13.02  Immunity of Officers.  No recourse for the payment of any part of the 
principal of or interest on any Bond or for the satisfaction of any liability arising from, founded 
upon or existing by reason of the issue, purchase or ownership of the Bonds shall be had against 
any officer, member or agent of the Issuer or its Board, the City or its governing body, as such, all 
such liability being hereby expressly released and waived as a condition of and as a part of the 
consideration for the execution of this Indenture and the issuance of the Bonds. 

Section 13.03  No Benefits to Outside Parties.  Nothing in this Indenture, express or 
implied, is intended or shall be construed to confer upon or to give to any person or corporation, 
other than the City, the parties hereto and the Holders of the Bonds issued hereunder, any right, 
remedy or claim under or by reason of this Indenture or covenant, condition or stipulation thereof; 
and the covenants, stipulations and agreements in this Indenture contained are and shall be for 
sole and exclusive benefit of the City, the parties hereto, their successors and assigns, and the 
Holders of the Bonds. 

Section 13.04  Separability of Indenture Provisions.  In case any one or more of the 
provisions contained in this Indenture or in the Bonds shall for any reason be held to be invalid, 
illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shall not 
affect any other provisions of this Indenture, but this Indenture shall be construed as if such 
invalid or illegal or unenforceable provision had never been contained herein. 

Section 13.05  Execution of Indenture in Counterparts.  This Indenture may be 
simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which, when so executed, shall be 
deemed to be an original, and such counterparts shall together constitute one and the same 
instrument.  The exchange of copies of this Indenture and of signature pages by facsimile or PDF 
transmission shall constitute effective execution and delivery of this Indenture as to the parties 
hereto and may be used in lieu of the original Indenture and signature pages for all purposes. 

Section 13.06  Headings Not Controlling.  The headings of the several Articles and 
Sections hereof are inserted for the convenience of reference only and shall not control or affect 
the meaning or construction of any of the provisions hereof. 

Section 13.07  Notices etc., to Trustee, Issuer and City.  Any request, demand, 
authorization, direction, notice, consent of Bondholders or other document provided or permitted 
by this Indenture shall be sufficient for any purpose under this Indenture or the Lease when 
personally delivered, delivered by overnight express mail, or mailed by first class mail, postage 
prepaid, or by electronic means which produces receipt of transmission (except as otherwise 
provided in this Indenture) at the following addresses (or such other address as may be provided 



13239183v2 
 

 

 56 
 

by any party by notice), or telecopied, to be followed immediately by first class mail, and shall be 
deemed to be effective upon receipt: 

To the Issuer: Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti    
 110 1st Ave NW 
 Isanti, Minnesota  55040-7372 

To the Trustee: U.S. Bank National Association 
 60 Livingston Avenue 
 St. Paul, Minnesota 55107 
 Attn:  Corporate Trust Department 

To the City: City of Isanti 
 110 1st Ave NW 
 Isanti, Minnesota  55040-7372 



13239183v2 
 

 

  S-1 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Issuer has caused this Indenture to be executed in its 
name by its President and Secretary, and the Trustee, to evidence its acceptance of the trust 
hereby created, has caused this Indenture to be executed in its name by authorized officer(s) of 
the Trustee, all as of the day and year first above written. 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
OF THE CITY OF ISANTI , MINNESOTA 

By ____________________________________ 
      President 

By ____________________________________ 
      Secretary 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF ISANTI ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on ___________________, 
2021, by _______________________ and _______________, the President and the Secretary, 
respectively, of the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti , Minnesota, a public 
body corporate and politic of the State of Minnesota, on behalf of said Authority. 

 
 
_______________________________________ 
Notary Public 

Signature and Notary page to Indenture of Trust 



13239183v2 
 

 

 S-2 
 

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
Trustee 

By ____________________________________ 
      Its Vice President 

STATE OF MINNESOTA ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF RAMSEY ) 

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me on ___________________, 
2021, by  __________________, of U.S. Bank National Association, on behalf of said 
Association. 

 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Notary Public 

Signature and Notary page to Indenture of Trust 



13239183v2 
 

 

 A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
 

All that part of the Northwest Quarter of the Southeast Quarter of Section 29, Township 
35, Range 23, described as follows: Beginning at the Southwest corner of the Northwest Quarter 
of the Southeast Quarter; thence North along the West line of said Northwest Quarter of 
Southeast Quarter a distance of 375 feet; thence South 89 degrees 57 minutes 50 seconds East 
580.8 feet; thence South 1 degree 16 minutes 15 seconds East 375 feet and to the South line of 
said Northwest Quarter of Southeast Quarter; thence West along said South line 580.8 feet, more 
or less, and to the Southwest corner of said Northwest Quarter of said Southeast Quarter, being 
the point of beginning and there to terminate.  

Together with a nonexclusive easement for ingress, egress and utility purposes over and 
across the South 295 feet of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 29, 
Township 35, Range 23 (as measured at right angles to the South line of said Northeast Quarter 
of Southeast Quarter), lying easterly of the easterly right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway 
No. 65 and westerly of a line drawn parallel with and distant 66 feet easterly of said easterly 
right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway No. 65 (as measured at right angles to said easterly 
right-of-way line).  

And also including a nonexclusive easement for ingress, egress and utility purposes over and 
across the South 66 feet of that part of the Northeast Quarter of the Southwest Quarter of Section 
29, Township 35, Range 23, lying easterly of the East right-of-way line of State Trunk Highway 
No. 65, as measured at right angles to the South line of said Northeast Quarter of Southwest 
Quarter, Isanti County, Minnesota. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 B-1 
 

EXHIBIT B 

(Form of Series 2021A Bond) 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 

COUNTY OF ISANTI 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ISANTI , MINNESOTA 

No. R-__ $_______ 

PUBLIC PROJECT LEASE REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2021A 
(CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA, LEASE WITH OPTION TO PURCHASE PROJECT) 

Interest Rate Maturity Date Date of Original Issue CUSIP 
    

__% December 15, June 16, 2021  
 
REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:   

THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF THE CITY OF ISANTI , 
MINNESOTA, a public body politic and corporate of the State of Minnesota (the "Issuer"), for 
value received, hereby promises to pay from its Public Project Lease Revenue Bond Fund to the 
registered owner named above, or registered assigns, the principal sum stated above on the 
maturity date specified above (unless subject to and duly called for earlier redemption) upon the 
presentation and surrender hereof and to pay to the registered owner hereof interest on such 
principal sum, until paid, from such Fund at the interest rate specified above from the Date of 
Original Issue specified above, or from the most recent Interest Payment Date to which interest 
has been paid or duly provided for, as specified below, semiannually on each December 15 and 
June 15  commencing June 15, 2022 (each, an "Interest Payment Date").  Principal and interest 
are payable in lawful money of the United States of America by U.S. Bank National Association, 
in St. Paul, Minnesota, or its successor as Trustee under the Indenture hereinafter described.  
Interest shall be based on a 360-day year consisting of twelve months of thirty days each and 
shall be paid on each Interest Payment Date by check or draft mailed to the person in whose 
name this Bond is registered (the "Holder") at the close of business on the first day (whether or 
not a Business Day) of the calendar month of such Interest Payment Date at the address set forth 
on the registration books maintained by the Trustee, as registrar for the Bonds.  Any such interest 
not punctually paid or provided for will cease to be payable on such regular record dates and 
such defaulted interest shall be paid to the person in whose name this Bond shall be registered at 
the close of business on a special record date for the payment of such defaulted interest 
established by the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture.  Each capitalized term which is used but not 
otherwise defined in this Bond shall have the meaning given to that term pursuant to the 
Indenture or the Lease. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 B-2 
 

So long as this Bond is immobilized in global book-entry form registered in the name of 
the nominee of DTC, as defined in the Indenture, payments of principal of, premium, if any, and 
interest on this Bond shall be made as provided in the Representation Letter, as defined in the 
Indenture, and surrender of this Bond shall not be required for payment of the redemption price 
upon a partial redemption of this Bond or for optional or mandatory purchases of this Bond or 
portions thereof.  Until termination of the book-entry only system pursuant to the Indenture, 
Bonds may be registered only in the name of DTC or its nominee, and notwithstanding express 
provisions of this Bond providing other or contrary results, the Representation Letter (which 
includes the applicable practices and procedures of DTC) shall apply to this Bond. 

This Bond is issued pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.090 through 469.1082 
and in conformity with the provisions, restrictions and limitations thereof, in aid of financing a 
certain project thereunder.  This Bond does not constitute an indebtedness of the Issuer, within 
the meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation, does not give rise to a charge against 
the general credit, properties or taxing powers of the Issuer or the City of Isanti, Minnesota (the 
"City") and does not grant to the Holder any right to have the Issuer or the City levy any taxes or 
appropriate any funds for the payment of the principal hereof or interest hereon.  This Bond is 
payable solely from the moneys received under the Lease hereinafter described, or held by the 
Trustee in a Fund appropriated to the payment of the Bonds under the Indenture, including 
payments of Rental Payments to be made by the City under the Lease. 

This Bond is one of an issue in the aggregate principal amount of $3,280,000, each in the 
denomination of $5,000, or an integral multiple thereof, and numbered from R-1 upwards, all of 
like tenor, except as to number, denomination, interest rate, maturity and redemption privilege, 
and all issued for the purpose of financing the costs of the construction of a municipal liquor 
store (the "Project").  The land on which the Project is located is to be ground leased to the Issuer 
under a Ground Lease Agreement from the City (the "Ground Lease").  The Project is to be 
leased to the City by the Issuer pursuant to a Lease Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2021 (the 
"Lease").  Pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated as of June 1, 2021 (the "Indenture"), executed 
and delivered by the Issuer and the Trustee, the Issuer has assigned to the Trustee its rights and 
interests in the Lease, including its rights to rental payments from the City but excluding certain 
rights to payment of expenses and indemnification.  Reference is made to the Lease, the Ground 
Lease and the Indenture, copies of which are on file with the Trustee, for a complete description 
of the agreements and covenants contained therein. 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to a resolution ("the Bond Resolution") adopted by the 
governing body of the Issuer on May 18, 2021, and the Indenture.  The Bonds are equally and 
ratably secured by the Lease, the Indenture, and the Bond Resolution.  The obligation of the City 
under the Lease to make Rental Payments sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds, when due, is a limited obligation of the City which can be terminated, by non-
appropriation, at the end of any fiscal year of the City.  More specifically, the City has the right 
to cancel and terminate the Lease at the end of any fiscal year of the City if the City Council, the 
governing body of the City, determines not to appropriate moneys sufficient to pay the Rental 
Payments coming due in the next fiscal year. 

All the Bonds maturing on December 15, 2030, and thereafter, are subject to prior 
redemption at the option of the Issuer, upon direction of the City, on December 15, 2029, and on 



13239183v2 
 

 

 B-3 
 

any date thereafter, at a redemption price equal to par plus accrued interest to date of redemption.  
Redemption may be in whole or in part, and if in part, the Issuer shall determine the amount of 
Bonds of each maturity to be prepaid; and if only part of the Bonds having a common maturity 
date are called for prepayment, the Bonds of that maturity shall be chosen by lot by the Trustee. 

Bonds maturing on December 15, 20____ and 20___, (the "Term Bonds") shall be 
redeemed by lot on December 15 in the following years and principal amounts, at their principal 
amount, without any premium, plus accrued interest thereon to such redemption date (after any 
credits are made as provided below): 

Mandatory Redemption Schedule 
 

December 15, 20____ Term Bond (inclusive) 
 

Year Principal Amount 
  
 $               
  
            (maturity)  

 
Mandatory Redemption Schedule 

 
December 15, 20____ Term Bond (inclusive) 

 
Year Principal Amount 
  
 $               
  
            (maturity)   

 
or, if less than such amount is then outstanding, an amount equal to the aggregate 

principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding. 

The Issuer may, at its option to be exercised on or before the thirtieth day next preceding 
any date specified in the Mandatory Redemption Schedule above, deliver to the Bond Registrar 
written notice, which shall (i) specify a principal amount of such Term Bonds previously 
redeemed (otherwise than pursuant to the above Mandatory Redemption Schedule) or purchased 
and cancelled by the Bond Registrar and not theretofore applied as a credit against any 
redemption of Bonds pursuant to the above Mandatory Redemption Schedule, and (ii) instruct 
the Bond Registrar to apply the principal amount of such Term Bonds so delivered or previously 
redeemed or purchased and cancelled for credit against the principal installments to be prepaid 
pursuant to the Mandatory Redemption Schedule and selected by the Issuer.  Each such Term 
Bond so delivered or previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled shall be credited by the 
Bond Registrar against the principal installments to be prepaid pursuant to the Mandatory 
Redemption Schedule and selected by the Issuer. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 B-4 
 

Prior to the date on which any Bond or Bonds are directed by the Issuer to be redeemed 
in advance of maturity, the Issuer will cause notice of the call thereof for redemption identifying 
the Bonds to be redeemed to be mailed to the Bond Registrar and all Bondholders, at the 
addresses shown on the Bond Register.  All Bonds so called for redemption will cease to bear 
interest on the specified redemption date, provided funds for their redemption have been duly 
deposited. 

Notice of any such redemption shall be given to the Holder of each Bond called by first 
class mail, addressed to the Holder at the Holder's address as it appears on the registration books 
maintained by the Trustee, not earlier than sixty days and not later than thirty days prior to the 
date fixed for redemption.  Prior to the date fixed for redemption, there are required to be 
deposited with the Trustee sufficient funds to pay the Bonds to be redeemed.  Upon the 
happening of the above conditions, Bonds thus called for redemption shall not bear interest after 
the call date and, except for the purpose of payment from the funds so deposited, shall no longer 
be protected by the Indenture. 

To effect a partial redemption of Bonds having a common maturity date, the Trustee shall 
select, using such method of selection set forth in the Indenture, an amount equal the principal 
amount of such Bonds to be redeemed.  If a Bond is to be redeemed only in part, it shall be 
surrendered to the Trustee (with, if the Trustee so requires, a written instrument of transfer in 
form satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed by the Holder thereof or by the Holder's attorney, 
duly authorized in writing) and the Issuer shall execute (if necessary) and the Trustee shall 
authenticate and deliver to the Holder of such Bond, without service charge, a new Bond or 
Bonds of the same series having the same stated maturity and interest rate and of any authorized 
denomination or denominations, as requested by such Holder, in aggregate principal amount 
equal to and in exchange for the unredeemed portion of the principal of the Bond so surrendered. 

This Bond is transferable, as provided in the Indenture, only upon books of the Issuer 
kept at the office of the Trustee by the Holder hereof in person or by the Holder's duly authorized 
attorney, upon surrender of this Bond for transfer at the office of the Trustee, duly endorsed or 
accompanied by a written instrument of transfer in form satisfactory to the Trustee duly executed 
by the Holder hereof or the Holder's duly authorized attorney, and, upon payment of any tax, fee 
or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such transfer, one or more fully 
registered Bonds of the same principal amount and interest rate will be issued to the designated 
transferee or transferees. 

The Bonds may become subject to acceleration and prepayment upon the occurrence of 
an Event of Default or upon the occurrence of a Non-appropriation resulting in a termination of 
the Lease. 

The Bonds are issuable only in fully registered form without interest coupons in 
denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.  As provided in the Indenture and 
subject to certain limitations therein set forth, the Bonds of are exchangeable for a like aggregate 
principal amount of Bonds of a different authorized denomination, as requested by the Holder or 
the Holder's duly authorized attorney upon surrender thereof to the Trustee. 



13239183v2 
 

 

 B-5 
 

The Bonds have been designated by the Issuer as "qualified tax-exempt obligations" for 
purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 

It is hereby certified and recited that the issuance of the Bonds and the acquisition and 
construction of the Project will promote the public welfare and carry out the purposes of the 
Issuer Powers Act; that all acts, conditions and things required to be done precedent to and in the 
issuance of this Bond and the issue of which it is a part have been properly done, have happened 
and have been performed in regular and due time, form and manner as required by law; and that 
this Bond and the issue of which it is a part do not constitute a debt of the Issuer or the City 
within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory limitation, except insofar as this Bond shall 
be payable from revenues derived from the Lease or as may otherwise be available for such 
purposes pursuant to the Indenture. 

This Bond shall not be valid or become obligatory for any purpose until it shall have been 
authenticated by the manual execution of the Trustee's Certificate of Authentication. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Economic Development Authority of the City of Isanti , 
Minnesota, by its Board of Commissioners, has caused this Bond to be executed in its name by 
the facsimile signatures of its President and Secretary, the seal of the Issuer having been 
intentionally omitted as permitted by law, all as of the Date of Original Issue specified above. 

 
Date of Registration    Registrable by:  U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
         ASSOCIATION 
 
___________________________  Payable at:  U.S. BANK NATIONAL 
    ASSOCIATION 

TRUSTEE'S CERTIFICATE OF 
AUTHENTICATION ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY OF 

THE CITY OF ISANTI , MINNESOTA 
This Bond is one of the Bonds described  
in the Indenture mentioned within.    
       

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION /s/ (Facsimile)      
St. Paul, Minnesota, Trustee   President 

By                                                  /s/ (Facsimile)      
    Authorized Signature   Secretary 
 



13239183v2 
 

 

 B-6 
 

 
ABBREVIATIONS 

The following abbreviations, when used in the inscription on the face of this Bond, shall 
be construed as though they were written out in full according to applicable laws or regulations: 

TEN COM - as tenants in common 
TEN ENT - as tenants by the entireties 
JT TEN - as joint tenants with right of survivorship and not as tenants in common 
UTMA - __________ as custodian for _______________ 

    (Cust)    (Minor) 
under the ________________ Uniform Transfers to Minors Act 
                       (State) 

Additional abbreviations may also be used though not in the above list. 

ASSIGNMENT 

For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto __________ 
_________________________________________________________________ the within 
Bond and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint _________________ as attorney to 
transfer the Bond on the books kept for the registration thereof, with full power of substitution in 
the premises. 

Dated:_____________________   ___________________________ 
Notice:  The assignor's signature to this assignment must correspond with 

the name as it appears upon the face of the within Bond in every 
particular, without alteration or any change whatever. 

Signature Guaranteed: 

___________________________ 
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by a national bank or trust company, by a brokerage firm having 
a membership in one of the major stock exchanges, by any other "Eligible Guarantor Institution" 
as defined in 17 CFR 240.17 Ad-15(a)(2), or in such other manner as shall be reasonably 
required by or acceptable to the Trustee, including signatures guaranteed by a member of the 
Medallion Signature Program. 

The Trustee will not effect transfer of this Bond unless the information concerning the 
transferee requested below is provided. 

Name and Address: ________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________ 
 ________________________________________ 
   (Include information for all joint owners 
     if the Bond is held by joint account.)   



City of Isanti

Gross Payroll 108,846.63   

Social Security & Medicare 6,211.81       

Public Employees Retirement 10,833.88     

Total City Expense 125,892.32   

Pay Date 5/14/2021

Pay Period 10 (4/25-5/8/21)

L.1.



City of Isanti Check Register - Mayor/Council Approval Page:     1

Check Issue Dates: 5/5/2021 - 5/5/2021 May 04, 2021  04:45PM

Report Criteria:

Report type:  Summary

Check.Type = {<>} "Adjustment"

GL Period Check Issue Date Check Number Vendor Number Payee Check GL Account Amount

05/21 05/05/2021 55846 3038 ALLIANCE BUILDING CORPORATION 609-20200 17,480.00

05/21 05/05/2021 55847 2030 ARTISAN BEER COMPANY 609-20200 42.90

05/21 05/05/2021 55848 9 BERNICKS PEPSI-COLA 609-20200 694.50

05/21 05/05/2021 55849 1629 CITY OF ISANTI 226-20200 11,782.69

05/21 05/05/2021 55850 1472 CRAWFORDS EQUIPMENT INC 101-20200 379.03

05/21 05/05/2021 55851 918 CRYSTAL SPRINGS ICE 609-20200 278.64

05/21 05/05/2021 55852 8 DAHLHEIMER DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 20,389.75

05/21 05/05/2021 55853 833 DIAMOND VOGEL PAINT 101-20200 2,709 00

05/21 05/05/2021 55854 1698 FINANCE & COMMERCE INC 425-20200 334.70

05/21 05/05/2021 55855 2830 GDO LAW 101-20200 4,083 33

05/21 05/05/2021 55856 1400 GENERAL CODE LLC 603-20200 2,088 00

05/21 05/05/2021 55857 134 GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL INC 601-20200 168.75

05/21 05/05/2021 55858 2209 INNOVATIVE OFFICE SOLUTIONS INC 101-20200 68.78

05/21 05/05/2021 55859 1684 ISANTI COUNTY AUDITOR-TREASURER 425-20200 612.00

05/21 05/05/2021 55860 7 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR CO 609-20200 6,554 02

05/21 05/05/2021 55861 5 KAWALEK TRUCKING 609-20200 208.60

05/21 05/05/2021 55862 1773 KLERSY,SCOT 101-20200 164.99

05/21 05/05/2021 55863 17 MCDONALD DISTRIBUTING CO 609-20200 13,165.31

05/21 05/05/2021 55864 2978 MILBANK WINWATER WORKS 601-20200 6,278 80

05/21 05/05/2021 55865 2080 MVTL LABORATORIES INC 602-20200 181.94

05/21 05/05/2021 55866 617 PAUSTIS & SONS 609-20200 672.75

05/21 05/05/2021 55867 44 PHILLIPS WINE & SPIRITS INC 609-20200 2,457 97

05/21 05/05/2021 55868 2827 RATWIK  ROSZAK & MALONEY  P.A. 505-20200 3,403 00

05/21 05/05/2021 55869 2396 SOUTHERN GLAZERS OF MN 609-20200 13,367.99

05/21 05/05/2021 55870 73 STAR 101-20200 193.40

05/21 05/05/2021 55871 554 STEVES TIRE INC 603-20200 65.00

05/21 05/05/2021 55872 2793 TEAM LABORATORY CHEMICAL  LLC 602-20200 600.00

05/21 05/05/2021 55873 686 VERIZON WIRELESS 101-20200 1,482 51

05/21 05/05/2021 55874 42 VIKING COCA-COLA BOTTLING CO 609-20200 308.54

05/21 05/05/2021 55875 1286 VINOCOPIA INC 609-20200 268.20

05/21 05/05/2021 55876 2475 WHITE BEAR IT SOLUTIONS LLC 101-20200 2,938 00

          Grand Totals:  113,423.09

M = Manual Check, V = Void Check







CITY OF ISANTI 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

FIRE EXTINGUISHER AND FIRE PROTECTION 
SERVICES 

Proposals Due:  June 8th, 2021    

L.2.



1 
 

 
 
 I. INTRODUCTION  
  This request has been prepared by the City of Isanti to retain fire extinguisher and fire protection 

services from a qualified business.  
 
  The primary objective of requesting proposals is for the City to determine which proposer can 

offer the highest quality of service at the most reasonable cost.  
 

 II. INSTRUCTIONS FOR PROPOSERS 
A. The City will accept electronic or written proposals. Responses must clearly address all of 

the items listed in this request for proposal. Parties choosing to submit a written proposal 
please submit to:  

Jaden Strand 
City Clerk 

City of Isanti 
110 1st Ave NW P.O. Box 428 

Isanti, MN 55040 
Electronic proposal submissions are to be attached to an email with the subject line “Fire 
Extinguisher and Fire Protection Services Proposal” Questions or request for clarification 
may be directed to Jaden Strand, City Clerk by phone at (763) 762-5759 or via email at 
Jstrand@cityofisanti.us.   

 
B. All proposals must be received no later than 4:30 pm on June 8th, 2021. Any vendors 

submitting proposals after the date and time listed above are not guaranteed consideration. 
Proposals submitted should be clearly labelled “Fire Extinguisher and Fire Protection 
Services Proposal”. 

 
 III. SCOPE OF WORK:  

  Specifications for Fire Extinguisher and Fire Protection Service for Isanti Municipal Facilities is 
as follows: 

 
1) The service provider shall be a bonded and insured commercial fire sprinkler inspection 

service that provides certified inspection and maintenance for fire sprinkler systems services 
for commercial and industrial facilities. 

 
2) Provide annual inspection of fire sprinkler systems in the Isanti City Hall, Isanti Community 

Center, Isanti Police Station/ Fire Department, Isanti Indoor Arena, Isanti Liquor Store and 
Public Works Buildings. Testing and visual inspection shall be done on all equipment/ 
devices for the fire sprinkler/ fire suppression system (inspection of all the heads and piping) 
and related systems. Contractor shall verify compliance with the manufacturer’s 
recommendation s and applicable NFPA requirements. A written report shall be submitted to 
the City. The contract price includes all parts, materials and labor required to complete the 
testing and inspection services. 
 

3) Any work beyond annual inspection, for needed system repairs shall be approved in advance 
by the City Administrator. Labor rates shall be those as listed on the quotation sheet. Any 



2 
 

parts/ materials for will be invoiced at cost plus the quoted percentage mark-up. The City 
reserves the right to seek alternate quotes for repairs. All repairs shall be in compliance with 
the manufacturer’s recommendation, NFPA requirements and City and State codes. All parts 
will be OEM to maintain the systems UL rating. 

 

4) Provide annual inspection of fire extinguishers for all municipal buildings/ vehicles that 
include City Hall, Isanti Community Center, Police/ Fire Department, Liquor Store, Public 
Works facilities and Isanti Indoor Arena. 

a. Annual inspection of extinguishers: annual servicing or recharging, 6-year 
maintenance and teardown, or 12-year hydrostatic testing according to National 
Association of Fire Equipment Distributors (NAFED): 
 
2.5 lb. Dry Chemical 
5 lb. Dry Chemical 
10 lb. Dry Chemical 
6 lb. Wet Chemical 

 
5) The service shall include servicing and recharging of extinguishers dropped off by the public 

at Isanti City Hall. Service shall be provided a minimum of two times per month, with more 
stops if needed. 

 
 IV. PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND CONTRACT AWARD 

 A. The City intends to award a contract to the proposer(s) evaluated to be best qualified to 
perform the work for the City, cost and other factors considered. 

B. The City shall not be liable for any expenses incurred by the proposer including, but not 
limited to, expenses associated with the preparation of the proposal or final contract 
negotiations. 

C. The City of Isanti reserves the right to reject any and all proposals or to request additional 
information from any or all proposers. 

D. It is anticipated that the City will establish a contract with a selected business for a six (6) 
year term.  A contract for this term will be prepared and entered into with the successful 
proposer. 

E.   The successful contractor must not have any delinquent accounts with the City of Isanti. 
 

V. TERM OF CONTRACT AND INSURANCE: 
The Contract Term shall be six (6) years; from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2027.  The approved 
contractor will need to provide to the City a Certificate of Insurance with General and 
Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 and Workers Compensation 
Insurance in the statutory amounts. The City of Isanti shall be listed on the Certificate as an 
additional insured. 

 



3 
 

 
CITY OF ISANTI REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FIRE EXTINGUISHER AND FIRE PROTECTION 

SERVICES QUOTE WORKSHEET 
 
All categories must be completed to be considered in the award of the quote per the attached specifications.   
 
I (we) submit the following quote for fire extinguisher and fire protection services for the City of Isanti. 
 

 
FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM INSPECTION SERVICES 

 
Facility Annual Cost 

Isanti City Hall $ 

Isanti Community Center $ 

Isanti Police/ Fire Department $ 

Isanti Indoor Arena $ 

Isanti Liquor Store $ 

Public Works Buildings $ 

 

Fire Suppression/ Sprinkler System Repair Hourly Rates 
Regular Rate (Monday to Friday 8:00 a.m. to 4:3 

0 p.m. 

$ 

Overtime Rate (After Hours) $ 

Overtime Rate (Weekends/ Holidays) $ 

 

Materials- System Repairs  
Materials Cost Plus Percentage Mark-Up                          % 

Annual Rate Adjustment                          % 

 

*An invoice that shows vendor material costs plus mark-up shall be submitted to the City. 

 

 

 



4 
 

 

 

 

FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICES 

Annual Inspection Service of City Extinguishers 

Annual Service: 

2.5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

10 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

6 lb. Wet Chemical $ 

 

6 Year Maintenance/ Tear Down: 

2.5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

10 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

6 lb. Wet Chemical $ 

 

12 Year Hydrostatic Test: 

2.5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

10 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

6 lb. Wet Chemical $ 

 

Recharge: 

2.5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

10 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

6 lb. Wet Chemical $ 

 

 

 



5 
 

Mobile Charges Per Visit/ Building/ Location 

Isanti City Hall $ 

Isanti Community Center $ 

Isanti Police/ Fire Department $ 

Isanti Indoor Arena $ 

Isanti Liquor Store $ 

Public Works Buildings $ 

 

 

 Total Annual Inspection Quote $_____________________________ 

 

SERVICING OF PUBLIC EXTINGUISHERS 

Service: 

2.5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

10 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

 

6 Year Maintenance/ Tear Down: 

2.5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

10 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

 

Recharge: 

2.5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

5 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

10 lb. Dry Chemical $ 

 
 

Total Public Service Quote $_____________________________ 
 
 
 
 
Proposal submitted by: (Please Print) 



6 
 

 
             
Company Name     Phone Number 
 
             
Mailing Address     City, State Zip code   
 
             
Contact Person/Person Submitting Proposal  Email 
 
          
Signature of Person Submitting Proposal  Date 
 
 
REFERENCES: 
 
Commercial References: Please print or type. 
 
      
Contact Name 
 
      
Company Name 
      
Address 
 
      
Phone Number 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
      
Contact Name 
 
      
Company Name 
      
Address 
 
      
Phone Number 
 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
      
Contact Name 
 
      



7 
 

Company Name 
      
Address 
 
      
Phone Number 



 

 

CITY OF ISANTI 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS FOR FIRE EXTINGUISHER AND FIRE PROTECTION 

SERVICES 

 

The City of Isanti is accepting proposals for a six (6) year contract for fire extinguisher 

and fire protection services.  Specifications are available upon request from the City 

Clerk’s Office at Isanti City Hall or online at www.cityofisanti.us. The City Council 

reserves the authority to waive irregularities, accept or reject any/or all proposals, and 

award in the best interest of the City.  Proposals can be submitted via email to 

JStrand@cityofisanti.us or addressed to Jaden Strand at 110 - 1st Avenue NW, PO Box 

428, Isanti MN 55040.  All proposals submitted must be clearly marked as “Proposal for 

Fire Extinguisher and Fire Protection Services” and will be accepted until 4:30 p.m. on 

June 8th, 2021.   

 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 

 
Publish on: 

Posted on: 

 



To: Mayor Johnson and Members of City Council 

From: Jaden Strand, City Clerk  

Date: May 18, 2021 

Subject: Resolution 2021-XXX Accepting Quote and Authorizing to Enter into a Contract for 

Electrical Maintenance Services 

Background:  

Council authorized staff to advertise for proposals for electrical maintenance services on April 20th, 2021. 

Staff received three proposals; Northwoods Electric, LLC, Isanti Electric and Granite Ledge Electrical 

Contractors, LLC. 

Recommendation: 

Staff is recommending to enter into a five-year contract with Isanti Electric for electrical maintenance 

services as they are lower overall for services per the specifications outlined in the request for proposal. 

Request: 

• Staff is requesting City Council action on this item.

Attachment: 

• Resolution 2021-XXX Accepting Quote and Authorizing to Enter into a Contract for Electrical

Maintenance Services

Request for City Council Action- MEMO 

L.3.



RESOLUTION 2021- XXX 

ACCEPTING QUOTE FOR ELECTICAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES AND 

AUTHORIZING TO ENTER INTO CONTRACT FOR ELECTRICAL MAINTENANCE 

SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti has determined it is in the city’s best interest to receive 

quotes for general electrical maintenance services from qualified contractors for City buildings and 

facilities as outlined in the attached Specifications for Services; and  

WHEREAS, an ad was placed in the official newspaper requesting quotes for Electrical 

Maintenance Services; and, 

WHEREAS, three quotes for general electrical maintenance services from qualified 

contractors were received by the due date: 

BIDDER BID AMOUNT 

Per Hour Labor Rate 

Northwoods Electric, LLC. $100.00– Regular Hours Rate 

$120.00– After Hours 

$140.00-Weekends & Holidays 

Annual Price Adjustment Over Term of 

Contract– None 

Isanti Electric $75.00- Regular Hours Rate 

$75.00 – After Hours 

$75.00 – Weekends & Holidays 

Annual Price Adjustment Over Term of 

Contract – None 

Granite Ledge Electrical 

Contractors, INC. 

$115.00- Regular Hours Rate 

$215.00- After Hours 

$215.00- Weekends & Holidays 

Annual Price Adjustment Over Term of 

Contract- $2.50/ Year 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 

Minnesota as follows: 

1. The City Council hereby awards the quote to Isanti Electric, Inc., as the lowest

responsible quoter.

2. That the City Administrator is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Isanti

Electric, Inc. for the provision of general electrical maintenance services for the City

of Isanti for a five-year period starting June 1, 2021 and ending May 31, 2026, unless

terminated sooner as provided in the contract.

3. That a copy of the said contract is attached to this resolution that provides for the

responsibilities of both parties for the service.

4. If the contractor does not respond when contacted for service, both in regular and

after hours (24 hours) service, the City Council will review the matter and may

terminate the contract.



5. Any issues that may arise between the Contractor and City shall be managed by the

City Administrator.

6. That the contractor shall submit monthly statements for services provided in a given

month to the city and receive compensation in the amounts as provided within the

attached contract.

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 



CITY OF ISANTI 

ELECTRICAL SERVICES 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT between the City of Isanti (hereinafter “City”), whose principal 

office is located at 110 First Avenue North, City of Isanti, State of Minnesota, and Isanti Electric 

Inc., 277th Lane NW, Isanti, Minnesota, 55040 (hereinafter “Contractor”), is made and entered 

into on the ____ day of ___________, 2021. 

A. Period of Agreement.

City hereby agrees to hire Contractor on an as needed basis and Contractor faithfully agrees to

diligently perform such duties for the period from June 1, 2021 to May 31, 2026.

B. Nature of Services.

Services shall be provided as per the attached Specifications for Contractor Services for services

during weekdays and in emergency circumstances (after hours). The contractor recognizes the

right of the City to use electrical contractors for specialized service work regarding City Utilities

and related operating facilities.  The City also reserves the right to use other contractors on an

emergency basis if the contractor is not available or cannot be contacted.

C. Compensation

Contractor shall receive compensation based on the rates submitted in their proposal for services.

Material costs shall be reimbursed as per the Specifications for Contractor Services.  Labor rates

shall be as follows:  $75.00 per hour (regular hours), $75.00 per hour (after hours) and $75.00 per

hour (weekends and holidays).

D. Licensing and Certification.

Contractor hereby agrees to requirements as outlined in the Specifications for Contractor

Services.

E. Relationship of Parties

The parties intend that an independent contractor relationship will be created by this Agreement.

The City is interested only in the results to be achieved and the conduct and control of the work

will lay solely with the Contractor. Contractor is not to be considered an agent or employee of the

City for any purpose, and the employees of the Contractor, if any, are not to be considered

employees of the City, and are not entitled to any of the benefits that the City provides its

employees. It is further understood that Contractor may perform services for other entities, as

long as such relationship does not impede, or prohibit, the provision of services for City pursuant

to this Agreement.

F. Liability Insurance and Indemnification.

The services to be performed by Contractor pursuant to this Agreement will be performed entirely

at Contractor’s risk, and Contractor assumes all responsibility for the use and condition of tools

and equipment used in the performance of Contractor’s duties, efforts and work.  Contractor shall

be solely responsible for obtaining, at contractor’s expense, automobile and general liability

insurance coverage in the amount of $1,000,000 and Workers Compensation (if required) in the

statutory amounts.  The City of Isanti shall be listed as an additional insured on the Certificate.

Contractor further agrees to indemnify City for any and all liability or loss arising in any way out

of the performance of this Agreement, including costs and attorney’s fees.

Independent contractors carrying on a trade or business as sole proprietors must present an

Independent Contractor Exemption Certificate (ICEC).



G. Termination.

City and Contractor may terminate this Agreement at any time by providing written notice of not

less than sixty (60) days.  Such notice shall be given to City at City offices. Such notice shall be

given to Contractor at its place of business.

H         Facilities and Equipment.

Contractor shall be responsible for providing all tools and equipment necessary to perform

electrical maintenance services. The Contractor shall provide their own office facilities and

related equipment.

I. Accounting and Billing.

Contractor will bill the City on a monthly basis for services and materials provided as per

the Specifications for Contractor Services.

J. Entire Agreement.

This Agreement, the attached Specifications for Contractor Services, and City Resolution

constitutes the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and

supersedes all other agreements or representations, whether written or oral.

K. Headings

Headings are for convenience only and are not a part of this Agreement.

CONTRACTOR CITY OF ISANTI 

Contractor Signature Date Josi Wood Date 

Isanti Electric Inc.  City Administrator 



CITY OF ISANTI 

SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONTRACTOR SERVICES 

Section 1.  Electrical Maintenance Work 

The City is accepting proposals to perform electrical maintenance work on an “as-needed basis” for City 

buildings and facilities.  The work may be indoor or outside.  This work includes tasks ranging from 

maintenance of building lighting and electrical systems to small projects in City Parks.  Work to be 

performed under direction of a state licensed Master Electrician.  This proposer should list experience, 

examples of project work, list individual(s) to perform the work, their qualifications and contractor 

references.  A completed Doing Business with the City of Isanti form should be provided with the 

proposal.   

Acceptance of the proposal is for a “first call” basis, and if the contractor is not available or cannot 

respond in a timely manner, the City reserves the right to contact another vendor.  Specialty equipment in 

city utility and liquor store facilities is not covered under this contract. 

Section 2. Contract / Term of Contract 

The successful proposer will enter into a contract with the City to provide services.  The contact shall be 

for a five-year time period. 

Section 3.  Insurance /Independent Contractor 

The Successful Contractor will need to provide to the City a Certificate of Insurance with General and 

Automobile Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 and Workers Compensation Insurance in the 

statutory amounts.  The City of Isanti shall be listed on the Certificate as an additional insured.  

Independent contractors carrying on a trade or business as sole proprietors must present an Independent 

Contractor Exemption Certificate (ICEC) when submitting a quote for the above services. 

Section 4.  Material Costs / Invoice Required – For approved materials that need to be ordered for City 

projects that cost more than $50.00 dollars either individually or in total cost (multiple items), a copy of 

the vendor invoice that shows the cost to the Contractor for materials needs to be submitted with any 

request for reimbursement.  With the use of materials purchased wholesale, the wholesale cost of the 

materials needs to be reported and a copy of the vendor receipt provided.   In no case shall the 

contractor’s mark-up exceed 10% of the wholesale cost (excluding any sales tax).  The City also requires 

that any rebates be reported and those amounts must be deducted from the cost of materials on the 

Contractor’s bill to the City.  



RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

APPROVING APPLICATION FOR AN EXEMPT GAMBLING PERMIT FOR KNIGHTS 

OF COLUMBUS COUNCIL #10238 RAFFLE 

WHEREAS, the City has received an application for exempt gambling permit from Rum 

River BMX to hold an event on September 23rd, 2021 at 207 Co Rd 23 NW, Isanti, MN; and, 

WHEREAS, the applicant estimates the value of prizes to be awarded is more than 

$1,500.00 for the event and will require state approval; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti has no objection to the conduct of lawful gambling by the 

applicant, in accordance with law, at the designated location; and, 

WHEREAS, the applicant, Dean Carpenter, has successfully passed a background check by 

the Isanti Police Department; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Isanti, Minnesota that the applications for an exempt gambling permits is approved for the 

following date: September 23, 2021 at Elizabeth Ann Seton Church; 

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk  

L.4.





RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

APPROVING A TEMPORARY ON-SALE LIQUOR LICENSE 

FOR ISANTI FIREFIGHTER’S RODEO ASSOCIATION 

WHEREAS, the City has received a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License application from 

the Isanti Firefighter’s Rodeo Association for the 2021 Rodeo event; and, 

WHEREAS, the applicant has paid the $50 Temporary Liquor License application fee as 

established by City Code Chapter 160; and, 

WHEREAS, the Police Department has reviewed the application and made a 

recommendation for approval of the application subject to certain conditions. 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Isanti, Minnesota as follows: 

1. That the Isanti Firefighter’s Rodeo Association Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for

the Rodeo event scheduled for July 9th through July 17th, 2021 is approved subject to the

following conditions:

a) A Certificate of Liquor Liability Insurance for the event is received by the City

prior to the event date.

b) That the procedures as outlined in Resolution 99-32 shall be met.

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 

L.5.







Memo for Council Action 

To: Mayor Johnson and City Council Members 

From: Keith Lusk, Interim Liquor Store Manager 

Date: May 18, 2021 

Subject: Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Donation Box at Liquor Store 

_______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background: 

Each year the MMBA supports a Troops Drive for the sole purpose of raising funds as well as 

supplying donations to help support local troops and veterans. We are requesting approval to 

promote this program in-store via signage and a donation box.  Customers can donate supply items 

or cash donations in any amount. The Support Our Troops Supplies Drive runs May 17th through 

July 7th, 2021. 

While the MMBA is asking for donations to be forwarded to them to distribute to “Folds of Honor”, 

we would like approval to send all donations received to Isanti County Beyond the Yellow Ribbon.  

While Folds of Honor is a great organization, ICBYR serves veterans in Isanti County, which 

means that the donations that we receive will have a direct impact on veterans in the local 

community.  Folds of Honor will still be receiving $1 for every case of Budweiser sold throughout 

the Troops Supplies Drive through the MMBA and Anheuser-Busch. 

Request: 

Staff is requesting City Council action on this item. 

Attachment: 

• Resolution 2021-XXX Approving Donation Box at Liquor Store

L.6.



RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

 

APPROVING DONATION BOX AT LIQUOR STORE 

 
 WHEREAS, on June 2nd, 2009 City Council approved a donation box policy; and, 

 
 WHEREAS, Isanti Liquor is requesting use of a donation box at the liquor store in 

support of the “MMBA Support Our Troops Drive”; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the Donation Policy has been reviewed and approval is recommended; 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 

Isanti, Minnesota hereby approves placement of a donation box for the “MMBA Support Our 

Troops Drive” at the Isanti Liquor Store from May 17, 2021 through July 7, 2021. 

 

 

Adopted by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

 

 

 

 

      ___________________________________ 

Attest:                                                              Mayor Jeff Johnson 

 

 
______________________________________ 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 





RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 
 

APPROVING MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) BETWEEN THE CITY OF 
ISANTI AND CAMBRIDGE-ISANTI SCHOOL DISTRICT #911 FOR THE SCHOOL 

RESOURCE OFFICER PROGRAM 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti has had a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the 
Cambridge-Isanti School District #911 for several years that provides guidelines for the employment and 
assignment of a School Resource Officer for the Isanti Middle School, Intermediate School, and Primary 
School; and 
 

WHEREAS, the MOU provides for funding for the 2021-2022, 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 school 
years; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cambridge-Isanti School District #911will consider this MOU at its May 20th 

2021 Board meeting;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota to hereby approve the Memorandum of Understanding as amended and attached as ‘Exhibit A’; 
and 
 

NOW FURTHERMORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota that the Mayor, City Administrator, and Police Chief be hereby authorized to execute the 
document. 
 
This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 
 
 
             
       ________________________________  
       Mayor Jeff Johnson 
 
Attest: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Jaden Strand 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Page 1 of 6  

MEMORANDUM  OF UNDERSTANDING 
 

Between the 
City of Isanti and Cambridge-Isanti Schools, District 911 

Regarding the School Resource Officer Program 
 

 
This agreement made and entered into this ______ day of _____________________, 2021, by and 
between the City of Isanti and Cambridge-Isanti Schools, District 911.  For purposed of this agreement, 
all references to a school resource officer refers to the acting school resource officer (SRO). 
 
A. Goals and Objectives 

1. Establish a positive working relationship in a cooperative effort to prevent juvenile delinquency 
and assist in student development. 

 
2. Maintain a safe and secure environment at all Cambridge-Isanti schools, creating an atmosphere 

conducive to learning. 
 

3. Prevent juvenile delinquency through education and enforcement. 
 
4. Assist in student development by providing learning opportunities and presentations. 
 
5. Assist in district Positive Behavioral Intervention Strategies (PBIS) structures in our schools 

to support a positive school environment. 
 
6. Promote positive attitudes regarding the police role in society and to inform students of their 

rights and responsibilities as lawful citizens. 
 

B. Employment and Assignment of School Resource Officer (SRO) 
 

1. The Isanti Police Department agrees to provide a School Resource Officer to the following schools: 
 

a. Isanti Middle School 
b. Isanti Intermediate School 
c. Isanti Primary School 

 
2. The Isanti Police Department shall select the School Resource Officer and assign the officer as 

appropriate. 
 

3. In the event the SRO is absent from work, the SRO shall notify his supervisor at the police 
department and the principal at the school to which he is assigned.  The Isanti Police Chief will 
make reasonable attempts to fill those hours with another available officer at the Chief’s 
discretion.  In the event that no replacement is available the District will still be obligated to pay 
costs associated with those hours. 

 
4. The School Resource Officer shall remain an employee of the City of Isanti and is not an 

employee of the Cambridge-Isanti School District. The School District and the City of Isanti 
acknowledge that the School Resource Officer must remain responsive to both entities. 

 
5. The District agrees that the SRO shall act as an agent of the District. 

 



Page 2 of 6  

 
C. Hours and Special Events 

 
1. The SRO is assigned to the school on an hourly basis based on the funding agreed to in section R 

of the document. During regular school hours, the SRO may be off campus performing such 
tasks as may be required by his/her assignment. 
 

2. When school is not in session due to holidays, workshops, snow days or other events, the SRO 
will be expected to report for uniformed patrol duty at the police department unless otherwise 
directed by the Chief of Police. 

 
3. The assignment of police personnel for all school sponsored off-duty events shall be the 

responsibility of the Isanti Police Department upon written request by a Cambridge-Isanti 
Schools administrator (Superintendent, Director, Principal, or Assistant Principal).  All 
overtime compensation shall be paid by the requesting entity. 

 
4. The School Resource Officer shall wear his/her uniform and carry his/her duty weapon while 

at school unless an alternative uniform or clothing is approved by the Chief of Police. 
 

D. Duties of the School Resource Officer (SRO) 
 

I. The SRO shall assist the principal in developing plans and strategies to prevent and/or minimize 
dangerous situations that may occur on campus. 

 
2. The SRO shall present programs on various topics to students. Subjects shall include a basic 

understanding of law, the role of law enforcement, drug awareness, anger management, and the 
mission of law enforcement. 

 
3. The SRO is encouraged to interact with students on an individual basis and in small groups. 

 
4. The SRO shall make themselves available for conferences involving teachers, parents, and faculty. 

 
5. The SRO shall be familiar with agencies and resources that offer assistance to youth and their 

families and make referrals to agencies when necessary. 
 

6. The SRO shall take law enforcement action when necessary. 
 

7. The SRO shall contact the principal of the school about his/her actions to make them aware 
of arrest or crime situations. 

 
8. The SRO shall notify the principal or his designee before removing a student from school. 

 
9. At the Principal’s request the SRO may take law enforcement action against intruders and 

unwanted guests who appear on school property. This includes the utilization of the building 
security monitoring system. 

 
10. The SRO shall conduct investigations of crimes, which occur at his/her assigned schools and 

use other resources if needed for follow-up investigations. 
 

11. The SRO shall not be involved in determining consequences for school policy violations.  
However, if the principal believes an incident is a violation of the law, they may contact the 



Page 3 of 6  

SRO to see if law enforcement action is needed. 
 

12. The SRO may be present when a principal or other school administrator conducts a search if 
requested or if school personnel fear for their safety. 

 
13. The SRO shall follow the policies of the Isanti Police Department when confiscating drugs from 

a student on school property. 
 

14. The SRO shall conduct all investigations, interviews, and searches in accordance with the 
policies of the Isanti Police Department and the laws of the State of Minnesota. 

 
15. Reference attached SRO Position Description. 

 
16. The SRO shall investigate and coordinate mandatory reporting investigations involving child abuse 

in cooperation with school and county social workers. 
 

17. The SRO shall work closely with school administration, counselors, chemical health advisors, 
human rights officers, student assistance teams and others as appropriate to assist in the 
identification of pre-delinquent children, and attempt to eliminate delinquency-producing factors.  
Accept assignments and follow-up referrals requested by school staff members. 

 
18. The SRO shall attend school staff meetings, when requested by the administration, as a resource 

person in developing and adopting procedures that will contribute to the prevention of juvenile 
delinquency. 

 
19. The SRO must have knowledge of the practices and philosophy of the school district and the police 

department concerning the handling of troubled youth. 
 
20. The SRO is to consult, on a regular basis, with the School Administrators in order to determine any 

special concerns or needs. 
 

21. The SRO shall maintain regular communications with building administrators and follow 
appropriate chain of command for school-related issues. 

 
E. Assignment of School Resource Officers. The City will assign one full-time licensed SRO to perform 

SRO duties on a full-time basis during each scheduled school day (see section R for determining 
scheduled days). Although stationed at a particular school, the SRO is expected to perform SRO duties 
at the District's other schools, as needed. 
 
1. Absences. If the SRO is absent for more than 10 consecutive school days, the City will undertake 

reasonable efforts to assign another licensed peace officer to serve as a temporary replacement and 
perform the regular SRO's duties during any additional absences. 
 

2. Vehicles, Equipment, and Training. The City is responsible for providing the SRO with a vehicle 
and all necessary law enforcement equipment, including any necessary electronic devices except as 
outlined in section P. The City is also responsible for providing training and education to provide 
services pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
3. Objections to Personnel. A District representative will sit on the interview panel that interviews 

peace officers who apply for an SRO assignment. Although the final hiring decision lies with the 
City, the City will undertake reasonable efforts to assign peace officers who are acceptable to the 
District. The District will notify the Isanti Chief of Police of any concerns related to the performance 



Page 4 of 6  

of an SRO. If the concern relates to the officer's performance, the District will notify the Isanti 
Chief of Police. Any request for reassignment of a SRO that is based on work-related concerns must 
be made in writing to the Isanti Chief of Police. The City will have thirty (30) calendar days to 
demonstrate to the District's satisfaction that the concern has been addressed. 

 
F. Relationship of the Parties. Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to create a partnership or joint 

venture between the District and the City. Neither party has any authority or power to take any unilateral 
action that could legally bind the other party. For purposes of the Minnesota Government Data Practices 
Act, each party is considered to be an independent contractor relative to the other party. 

 
G. Liability and Indemnification. Each party is solely responsible for the act(s) and omission(s) of its own 

officers, employees, officials, agents, and representatives. To the extent permitted by law, each party 
agrees to indemnify the other party from any and all damages, liability, judgments, claims, expenses, 
attorney fees, and costs resulting from any act or omission of any of its officers, employees, officials, 
agents, or representatives. Each party's liability, if any, is limited under Minnesota Statutes Chapter 466, 
and nothing in this Agreement may be deemed to constitute a waiver of those limits. 
 

H. Prohibited Actions. In the absence of exigent  circumstances, a school resource officer who  is employed 
by the City may not interview a student on school property about criminal activity or potential criminal 
activity unless: (a) the officer is conducting a maltreatment of minor investigation; or (b) the crime has 
occurred, is alleged to have occurred, may have occurred, is occurring, or is reasonably expected to 
occur in the near future on school property or at a school sponsored event or activity; or (c) the officer 
has obtained permission from the building principal and from the student's parent or guardian if feasible 
and/or practical and would not jeopardize the investigation or put the student in any further harm if 
parent permission was obtained prior to interviewing them; or the student, if the student is eighteen (18) 
years of age or older. In addition, a school resource officer may not participate in recommending or 
determining student discipline or in investigating incidents of student discipline which do not involve 
potential criminal activity. 

 
I. Execution of Arrest Warrants. When executing an arrest warrant for a student on school property, a 

school resource officer must make reasonable efforts to protect other students and staff members who 
are present and to avoid undue embarrassment to the student who is being arrested. This paragraph is 
not intended to prevent an officer from taking immediate action to arrest a student who is fleeing or 
who presents an imminent and substantial risk of harm to self, others, or property. 

 
J. Data Practices. All government data that are collected, created, received, or maintained as a result of 

this Agreement will be handled in accordance with all applicable federal and state laws, including, but 
not limited to, the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act ("MGDPA"). The parties recognize that 
educational data maintained by the District are protected under the MGDPA and under the Family 
Educational Rights Privacy Act ("FERPA"), including its implementing regulations at 34 C.F.R. part 
99. The parties acknowledge that unless a statutory exception applies, the District may not disclose 
private educational data to a SRO without the written consent of the student's parent or guardian (or 
the written consent of the student if the student is eighteen (18) years of age or older); a lawfully 
issued subpoena; or a court order. Nothing in this Agreement may be construed to modify the 
responsibilities of either party under the MGDPA or the District's responsibilities under FERPA 

 
K. No Unlawful Discrimination. The District and the City each agree to provide equal employment 

opportunities to all employees and applicants for employment in accordance with all applicable federal, 
state, and local laws. No person may be excluded from full employment rights in, participation in, be 
denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination in any program, service, or activity 
based on race, color, religion, age, sex, disability, marital status, sexual preference, HIV status, public 
assistance status, creed, or national origin. In addition, the District and the City each specifically agree 



Page 5 of 6  

not to discriminate unlawfully against any student in any program, service, activity, or decision based 
on race, color, religion, age, sex, disability, marital status, sexual preference, HIV status, public 
assistance status, creed, or national origin. 

 
L. Waiver and Enforcement. The failure to insist on compliance with any term, covenant, or condition 

contained in this Agreement must not be deemed to be a waiver of that term, covenant, or condition, 
nor will any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power contained in this Agreement at any time be 
deemed to be a waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any other time. Each party is to be 
responsible for its own costs, expenses, and any attorneys' fees associated with this Agreement and any 
related matters, including enforcement of this Agreement. 

 
M. Equal Drafting. In the event that either party asserts that a provision of this Agreement is ambiguous, 

this Agreement must be construed to have been drafted equally by the Parties. 
 

N. Choice of Law, Forum and Severability. This Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of 
Minnesota. The parties agree that the Minnesota state and federal courts will have exclusive jurisdiction 
over any dispute arising out of this Agreement. If a court determines that any part of this Agreement is 
unlawful or unenforceable, the remaining portions of the Agreement will remain in full force and effect. 

 
O. Entire Agreement, Changes, and Effect. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between 

the District and the City regarding SRO duties and additional services. This Agreement supersedes any 
inconsistent statements or promises made by either party. This Agreement also supersedes and 
terminates any prior or existing agreements or contracts regarding the same or any similar subject 
matter. Neither party has relied upon any statements, promises, agreements, or representations that are 
not stated in this Agreement. No changes to this Agreement are valid unless they are in writing and 
signed by both parties.  A copy of this Agreement has the same legal effect as the original. 
 

P. Rights and Duties of the School Board. The school board shall provide the following materials and 
facilities which are deemed necessary to perform the duties of the SRO: 

 
1. Access to an air conditioned and properly lighted private office containing a telephone line to be 

used for general business purposes. 
 

2. A desk with drawers, a chair, and a filing cabinet which can be locked and secured. 
 

3. Access to a computer terminal or computer hookup. 
 

4. Provide the SRO with a cell phone with a voice and data plan and pay the actual costs associated 
with such service. The will allow for immediate access and enhanced communications between 
school officials, the SRO and the police department and will allow the SRO to be part of the 
district's alert system. 

 
Q. Termination of Contract. Either party may end this agreement within 30 days after reasonable 

attempts have been made to resolve any disputes.  The 30 day timeline will begin upon receipt of 
written notification of such intent.  Attempts to resolve disputes should occur within that 30 day period. 

 
R. SRO Funding. 

 
Reimbursement by the Cambridge-Isanti School District to the City of Isanti for the 2021-2022, 
2022-2023, and 2023-2024 school years will be calculated as follows: 
 
District will pay a percentage of total annual SRO compensation based on the following calculation: 



Page 6 of 6  

 
(School/Service Days X Hours Per Day) / 2080 = Percent of Total Compensation 

 
Total Compensation = salary + all employee benefits 
 

 

Mutual agreement on the number of School/Service days will be made prior to the start of each 
school year, with consideration to the Year Round and Traditional school calendars.  The School 
District will be invoiced quarterly, with payroll detail, and agrees to reimburse the City within 20 
days of the invoice date.  The School District will be invoiced for the actual cost of the School 
Resource Officer’s actual days worked during the quarter being invoiced. 

 

  
 

Hours of service for each scheduled day shall not exceed 8 hours and scheduled days per year 
shall not exceed 179 (172 student days, 2 days to attend meetings prior to the first day of school, 
and 5 days to attend the year-round programs once a week prior to the traditional calendar start).  
The School District will also cover the cost of half of the School Resource Officer’s vacation 
time, not to exceed 15 days.  If vacation time is taken during the scheduled days, that time will be 
included in that quarterly invoice.  If not all school district covered vacation days are taken during 
the scheduled days, the remainder of vacation days will be billed on the last quarter of the school 
year invoice.  Hours of service for each school year are thirty (30) minutes prior to the start of 
school and thirty (30) minutes after the school’s dismissal for scheduled school days. Funding 
and hours of service are subject to annual review upon request by either the City of Isanti or the 
School District. 
 

S. Duration 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding is effective for the 2021-2022, 2022-2023, and 2023-2024 school 
years.  This Memorandum of Understanding may be reviewed upon request by the City of Isanti and the 
Cambridge-Isanti School District. 

 
 
 
Signatures: 
 
 
 
________________________________ 

 
 
______ 

  
 
________________________________ 

 
 
______ 

School Board Chair Date  Mayor of Isanti Date 
 
 
________________________________ 

 
 
______ 

  
 
________________________________ 

 
 
______ 

School Board Clerk Date  Isanti City Administrator Date 
 
 
________________________________ 

 
 
______ 

  
 
________________________________ 

 
 
______ 

Superintendent of Schools Date  Isanti Police Chief Date 
 





RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

APPROVING PAINTING OF A PICKLEBALL COURT AT MATTSON PARK 

WHEREAS, community members have requested a pickleball court be built in the City of 

Isanti; and, 

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti has identified Mattson Park as an appropriate location for a 

pickleball court to be created; and,  

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti seeks to paint yellow lines on the existing tennis courts to 

outline a pickleball court; and,  

WHEREAS, the tennis courts will become a multi-use court for tennis and pickleball 

players; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 

Minnesota to hereby approve the painting of a pickleball court at Mattson Park, effective May 18th, 

2021. 

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

__________________________________ 

Mayor Jeff Johnson 

Attest: 

__________________________________ 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 





Page 2 
 

SA445-14-720689.v1 

revenues or secured by any taxing power of Isanti.  The Note will not affect any debt limitation 
imposed on Isanti and the issuance of the Note will not have any adverse impact on Isanti’s credit 
rating, even in the event that Borrower encounters financial difficulties with respect to the Project 
Facilities to be financed with the proceeds of the Note. If a default did occur, the lender would work 
with the Borrower to develop a work-out strategy for the payment of the conduit bonds or could 
foreclose the Mortgage and recover payment from the security pledged by the Borrower. 

The Note is proposed to be issued as a tax-exempt obligation, the interest on which is 
excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Because the Project Facilities will be 
owned by a non-profit owner, the Note can be designated as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for 
purposes of Section 265(b)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) 
which relates to a deduction available to banks and other financial institutions (sometimes referred 
to as “bank-qualified bonds”) and the Borrower has requested that designation for the Note.  In 
order to issue bank-qualified bonds, the issuer of the conduit bonds must not expect to issue more 
than $10,000,000 of bonds in the calendar year, including its own general obligation bonds.  Isanti 
has indicated that it intends to issue general obligation bonds this year in an amount less than 
$4,400,000; therefore, the total amount of Isanti’s governmental purpose bonds and the Note will 
not exceed $10,000,000.  As a result, both Isanti’s governmental purpose bonds and the Note can be 
designated as “bank-qualified bonds”.  The Note will have no impact on Isanti’s ability to issue 
bank-qualified bonds in future years.  

Before issuing the Note, Isanti will need to hold a public hearing, adopt a resolution 
authorizing the issuance of the Note, and execute various related documents, including the Note and 
the Loan Agreement.  The Borrower is requesting that the City Council hold a public hearing and 
consider approval of the Note on July 20, 2021. 

Kennedy and Graven, as bond counsel, will provide forms of resolutions and all the 
necessary documents and handle publication of the hearing notice in Isanti’s official newspaper.  
The Borrower will be required to pay all the expenses of paid or incurred by Isanti with respect to 
the Note and will be required to indemnify Isanti for any potential liability incurred by Isanti with 
respect to the Note, the Project Facilities, and granting necessary approvals. 

Attachments: 

1. Resolution Calling for a Public Hearing on the Issuance of a Conduit Revenue Note and 
Authorizing the Publication of a Notice of Hearing (Art and Science Academy Project) 

2. Borrower’s Memo describing its Conduit Financing Proposal (previously submitted for the 
Council’s May 4, 2021 meeting) 



SA445-14-720572.v2 

EXTRACT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 
CITY COUNCIL OF THE  

CITY OF ISANTI, MINNESOTA 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota, was duly called and held at the City Hall in said City on Tuesday, May 18, 2021, 
commencing at 7:00 P.M.    

The following Members were present:   

  

and the following were absent:   

Member ___________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 

RESOLUTION NO._______ 

RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING ON 
THE ISSUANCE OF A CONDUIT REVENUE NOTE AND 

AUTHORIZING THE PUBLICATION OF A NOTICE OF HEARING 
 (ART AND SCIENCE ACADEMY PROJECT) 

WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.152 through 469.1655, relating to 
municipal industrial development (the “Act”), gives municipalities the power to issue revenue 
obligations for the purpose of promoting the welfare of the state by the active attraction and 
encouragement and development of economically sound industry and commerce to prevent so far as 
possible the emergence of blighted and marginal lands and areas of chronic unemployment; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Isanti, Minnesota (the “City”), has received from ABC Building 
Services, a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and 501(c)(3) organization (the “Borrower”), a proposal 
that the City assist in financing a Project hereinafter described, through the issuance of a conduit revenue 
note or obligations (in one or more series) (the “Note”) pursuant to the Act; and 

WHEREAS, before proceeding with consideration of the request of the Borrower it is 
necessary for the City to hold a public hearing on the proposal pursuant to the Act: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota,  as follows: 

1. A public hearing on the proposal of the Borrower will be held at the time and 
place set forth in the form of Notice of Public Hearing attached hereto as Exhibit A or on a date to be 
determined by the City Administrator in order to meet publication requirements in accordance with 
applicable law.  The general nature of the Project and an estimate of the aggregate principal amount of 
revenue bonds or other obligations to be issued to finance the proposal are described in the Notice of 
Public Hearing. 

2. The City Administrator of the City is hereby authorized and directed to cause 
notice of the hearing to be given one publication in the official newspaper of the City and a newspaper 



 2  
SA445-14-720572.v2 

of general circulation available in the City, not less than 14 days nor more than 30 days prior to the date 
fixed for the hearing, substantially in the form of the attached Notice of Public Hearing. 

The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by member 
___________________, and after full discussion thereof and upon vote being taken thereon, the 
following voted in favor thereof:   

and the following voted against the same:   

whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 



 3  
SA445-14-720572.v2 

STATE OF MINNESOTA  
COUNTY OF ISANTI 
CITY OF ISANTI 
 
 

I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting City Administrator of the City of Isanti, 

Minnesota, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that I have compared the attached and foregoing extract of minutes 

with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a full, true and complete transcript of 

the minutes of a meeting of the City Council of said City duly called and held on the date therein 

indicated, insofar as such minutes relate to calling for a public hearing on the issuance of a conduit 

revenue note to finance the acquisition, construction and improvements to the existing charter school 

facilities for Art and Science Academy, Inc. 

WITNESS my hand this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 

 ______________________________________  
City Administrator 

 



 A-1  
SA445-14-720572.v2 

 
EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON A PROPOSAL 
FOR ISSUANCE OF A CONDUIT CHARTER SCHOOL LEASE REVENUE 

NOTE (ART AND SCIENCE ACADEMY PROJECT) 

Notice is hereby given that a public hearing shall be conducted by the City Council of the City 
of Isanti, Minnesota (the “City”) on Tuesday, July 20, 2021 at 7:00 P.M. at the City Hall located at 110 
1st Avenue NW, Isanti, Minnesota, to consider the proposal for the issuance by the City of a conduit 
revenue bond in one or more series (the “Note”) pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.152-
469.1655, as amended (the “Act”).  The proceeds of the Note will be loaned to ABC Building Services, 
a Minnesota nonprofit corporation (the “Borrower”), to (i) finance the acquisition, renovation and 
improvement of the existing Art and Science Academy campus located at 903 6th Ave Court NE and 
1005 7th Ave NE in the City (the “School Facility”); (ii) fund a debt service reserve fund, if necessary;  
(iii) pay a portion of the interest on the Note, if necessary; and (iv) pay the costs of issuing the Note, if 
necessary (the “Project”).   The School Facility will be owned by the Borrower and leased to and 
operated by Art and Science Academy, Inc., a Minnesota nonprofit corporation and public charter school 
(the “School”) as a kindergarten through 8th grade school facility with plans for expansion through 12th 
grade. 

Following the public hearing, the City will consider adopting a resolution approving the Project 
and the issuance of the Note to finance the Project.  The aggregate face amount of the Note proposed to 
be issued is presently estimated not to exceed $5,600,000.  The Note if and when issued will not 
constitute a charge, lien or encumbrance upon any property of the City except its interest in the Project 
and revenues to be paid by the Borrower. Such Note will be a special, limited revenue obligation of the 
City payable solely from the revenues expressly pledged to the payment thereof, and will not constitute 
a general or moral obligation of the City, and will not be a charge against the City’s general credit or 
taxing powers, but will be payable solely from revenues or collateral to be paid or provided by the 
Borrower pursuant to a revenue agreement. 

A draft copy of the proposed application to the Commissioner of the Department of Employment 
and Economic Development, State of Minnesota, for approval of the Project, together with all 
attachments and exhibits thereto, is available for public inspection during normal business hours, 
Monday through Friday, at the City Hall in the City. 

At the time and place fixed for the public hearing, the City will give all persons who appear at 
the hearing an opportunity to express their views with respect to the proposal.  In addition, interested 
persons may file written comments respecting the proposal with the City Administrator at or prior to the 
public hearing. 



1 

YOUR COMPANY 
CONDUIT FINANCING PROPOSAL 

OVERVIEW 
Your Company is pleased to submit this conduit financing proposal to the City of Isanti.  This provides an overview for 
the nature of the request and a primer on the financials of the project. 

The Objective 
 
• Complete a proposed acquisition of properties for the Art and Science Academy (ASA) school complex to meet 

the needs for an increased student population to include a 9-12 high school. 

• To partner with the City of Isanti in a tax conduit bank financing issue to lower costs for the school to finance the 
acquisition or alternatively for the City of Isanti to provide host approval for another city to be the sponsor of the 
tax conduit issuance. 

Location Analysis 
 
Currently both properties of Art and Science Academy are owned by the Charter School Development Corporation 
(CSDC) but will shortly become properties of ABCBS.  ABCBS will become the long-term owner and lease manager 
of the properties for Art and Science. The two current properties operate under a P&Z conditional use permit that is 
allowed for public schools to operate in various zoning areas.  The school currently leases use of the Elementary 
building to Grace Gospel Church for Sunday services and the school also leases a portion of the unused property 
north of the Middle School to a local farmer.  This provides additional income streams to pay against the lease cost to 
CDSC, the remainder of the balance is paid through lease aid through the state and general funding from the school. 
 
The Cambridge-Isanti area is growing at a substantial rate which includes over 50 housing permits in Isanti just in the 
past year and a similar amount in Cambridge nearby.  With this growth comes additional families to the area which 
will increase the educational needs of this area for the foreseeable future.  ASA and ABCBS see this as potential for 
steady growth in the area without the need to compete with the local school district for enrollment.  Currently, ASA 
serves Cambridge, Isanti, and the immediate surrounding area in grades K-8. 

Development Plan 
ASA and ABCBS would be working together to implement the following plan: 
• Step 1: Formation of an affiliated building corporation as the legal instrument to operating a charter school 

buildings per MN law.  – Complete. 

• Step 2: Line up financing and contact CDSC for purchase price of existing buildings. – In Progress. 

• Step 3: Acquire buildings.  Conclude business with CDSC. – On Hold, pending Step 2. 

• Step 4: Once school fund balance reaches level for financial bonding (approx. 2-4 years), start the process to 
bond for building expansion of the Middle School into a 5-12 combined building.  Bonding would roll over 
conduit loan for the acquisition of buildings into the bonding price for a single payment of long-term debt. 

• Step 5: Commence construction of high school expansion and open to the public for school services. 

Conduit Revenue Bond and Process 
ABCBS wants to pursue this option for purchasing the properties because of the lower rates associated with tax 
exempt bonds vs conventional financing.  Schools work within tight margins, so any way to reduce costs translates 







4 

CONCLUSION 
We look forward to hearing feedback regarding this proposal. 

If you have questions on this proposal, feel free to contact Kevin Fitton at your convenience by email at 
kevin.fitton@asa.k12.mn.us or by phone at 763-444-0342. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

 
Kevin Fitton 
Managing Director – ABCBS 
Executive Director - ASA 





RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

AUTHORIZING TO ENTER INTO AGREEMENT WITH MARIE RIDGEWAY LICSW 

LLC FOR WELLNESS CONSULTING SERVICES 

WHEREAS, the Council approved funding in 2021 budget fund 101-42110-300 for officer 

wellness and resiliency program; and,  

WHEREAS, staff had identified officer wellness as a top priority for the department; and, 

WHEREAS, staff has identified Marie Ridgeway & Associates as the best fit for 

professional services for the program; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Isanti, Minnesota, the following: 

1. That staff is hereby authorized to enter into and sign a contract with Marie Ridgeway

LICSW LLC for professional services.

3. Marie Ridgeway LICSW LLC (contractor) shall submit monthly statements for

services provided in a given month to the city and receive compensation in the

amounts as provided within the agreed upon contract.

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

____________________________ 

Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson 

____________________________ 

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 



CORE/3520766.0002/162768274.1 

MARIE RIDGEWAY LICSW LLC 

 

THERAPY AND CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 

This Agreement is made this ___ day of _________, 2021 (“Effective Date”) by and 

between MARIE RIDGEWAY LICSW LLC, d/b/a Marie Ridgeway & Associates and 

Ridgeway & Associates, a Minnesota limited liability company ("Service Provider") and Isanti 

Police Department/ City of Isanti in the State of Minnesota ("Customer").   

 

RECITALS 

 

A. Service Provider is engaged in the business of providing professional mental health 

services to law enforcement officers and consulting with law enforcement agencies on 

mental health wellness topics.    

 

B. Customer, for the benefit of its officers, their families, and the community, desires to obtain 

mental health services for its law enforcement officers.    

  

C. Customer desires to engage Service Provider to provide the mental health services 

described in this Agreement and Service Provider is willing to provide such mental health 

services on the terms and conditions in this Agreement. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms and conditions expressed in this Agreement, 

the Service Provider and Customer agree as follows: 

  

AGREEMENT 

 

1. Services to be Provided.  Service Provider agrees to provide Customer with professional 

mental health and consulting services as described in Exhibit A attached hereto (the 

“Services”).  Service Provider will provide all Services in a manner consistent with the level 

of care and skill ordinarily exercised by professionals providing similar services.  Service 

Provider will at all times be free to exercise professional judgment and discretion regarding 

the provision of professional mental health services.   

 

2. Qualifications.  Service Provider's owner, Marie Ridgeway, LICSW, is licensed as a Licensed 

Independent Clinical Social Worker in the State of Minnesota.  Ms. Ridgeway also holds an 

Advanced Certification in Accelerated Resolution Therapy and she and her staff may use this 

type of eye movement therapy for the treatment of trauma, anxiety, panic attacks, and other 

mental health concerns.   

 

3. Compensation.  As compensation for the Services, Customer will pay Service Provider the 

compensation set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto ("Compensation").  Service Provider will 

provide Customer with at least 30 days’ written notice prior to the effective date of any fee 

changes. 

 



2 
 

4. Invoices and Payment.  Service Provider will provide invoices to Customer by e-mail on the 

last day of each month or the first business day of the following month for payment. Service 

Provider's invoices will contain a description of the services provided, hours, rates, and 

amounts undertaken by the Service Provider during that billing period.  Invoices will use a 

unique anonymous code known only to Service Provider for each officer to protect individual 

officers' identity.  Service Provider will maintain client confidentiality at all times and nothing 

in this paragraph mandates disclosure of confidential or private data. 

 

Customer will make payment to Service Provider via direct deposit whenever possible, within 

ten (10) days of receipt of the invoice. Credit card or check are also accepted when direct 

deposit is not an option. If Customer fails to pay any invoice within thirty (30) days of the date 

the invoice is issued, Service Provider may impose an eight percent (8%) late fee.    

 

5. Term.  The term of this Agreement will begin on the Effective Date and last for a period of 

one (1) year.  This Agreement will automatically renew for subsequent one (1) year terms 

unless either party gives the other party sixty (60) days notice of nonrenewal.    

 

6. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated as follows: 

 

a. Service Provider may terminate this Agreement in the event Customer fails to comply 

with any material term of this Agreement effective thirty (30) days after notice by 

Service Provider that Customer is not in compliance with such material term.   

b. Customer may terminate this Agreement in the event Service Provider fails to comply 

with any material term of this Agreement effective thirty (30) days after notice by 

Customer that Service Provider is not in compliance with such material term.   

c. Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause upon sixty (60) days prior 

written notice to the other party. 

 

In the event of a termination, Customer shall pay Service Provider for Services performed to 

the date of termination and for all costs or other expenses incurred prior to the date of 

termination. 

 

7. Work Products and Ownership of Documents.  All records, information, materials and other 

work products, including, but not limited to completed reports, drawings, plans, and 

specifications prepared and developed specifically at the request of Customer in direct 

connection with the provision of Services pursuant to this Agreement will become the property 

of Customer, but reproductions of such records, information, materials and other work products 

in whole or in part may be retained by Service Provider.  Any and all records, information, 

materials and other work products, including, but not limited to reports, drawings, plans, and 

specifications developed by Service Provider for general use with Service Provider's clients or 

in Service Provider's business shall be and remain the property of Service Provider, regardless 

of whether they are used by Service Provider in fulfilling Service Provider's obligations under 

this Agreement.  Further, nothing in this paragraph shall cause any professional therapy 

records, notes, or other related documents to become the property of Customer and all such 

documents shall remain the property of Service Provider or individual Clients. These 

obligations survive the termination of this Agreement. 



3 
 

 

8. Publicity. Each party must not use the other party's logo or state that the other party endorses 

its services without the other party’s advanced written approval. If one party wishes to use the 

other party’s logo or state that the other party endorses its services, Customer and Service 

Provider will develop mutually agreed upon language to use when discussing the Services. 

Both parties agree that any publicity including, but not limited to, press releases, social media 

postings, and written or oral statements to members of the news media, regarding the Services 

or the subject matter of this Agreement must not be released unless they comply with this 

mutually agreed upon language.  Both parties acknowledge and agree that due to the nature of 

the Services, publicity associated with the Services may have a detrimental effect on Service 

Provider's ability to effectively provide Services and achieve the desired officer wellness goals.  

These obligations survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 

9. Records/Inspection.  Pursuant to Minnesota Statute § 16C.05, subd. 5, Service Provider 

agrees that the books, financial records, financial documents, and accounting procedures and 

practices of Service Provider that are relevant to the contract or transaction are subject to 

examination by the Customer and the state auditor or legislative auditor for a minimum of six 

years.  Service Provider shall maintain such records for a minimum of six years after final 

payment.  These obligations survive the termination of this Agreement. 

 

10. Data Practices Act and Data Privacy Compliance.  Customer does not intend by this 

Agreement to delegate a government function to Service Provider and Service Provider agrees 

that it is not performing a government function.  Service Provider agrees to administer any and 

all data provided to the Service Provider or created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, 

or disseminated by Service Provider in fulfillment of this Agreement in accordance with all 

applicable laws, which may include the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota 

Statutes, Chapter 13 ("MGDPA"), the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

("HIPAA"), and the mandatory reporting obligations of Service Provider's licensed mental health 

professionals.  Service Provider agrees to notify the Customer within five (5) business days if 

it receives a request for data under the MGDPA. This paragraph does not create a duty on the 

part of Service Provider to provide public access to data unless required under the provisions of 

an applicable law.  These obligations survive the termination of this Agreement.   

 

11. Insurance.  Service Provider will maintain commercially reasonable insurance coverage, 

including commercial general liability insurance, professional liability insurance, and workers' 

compensation insurance, throughout this Agreement.  Service Provider will provide Customer 

with copies of current certificates of insurance upon request.    

 

12. Subcontracting.  Customer acknowledges and agrees that Service Provider may provide 

Services through such independent consultants, associates, and subcontractors as it may deem 

appropriate to assist it in the performance of Services required by this Agreement.  Service 

Provider will ensure that all professional mental health services are provided by individuals 

holding appropriate professional licenses in the State of Minnesota. 

 

13. Payment of Subcontractors. Service Provider agrees that it must pay any subcontractor 

within ten (10) days of its receipt of payment from the Customer for undisputed services 



4 
 

provided by the subcontractor. Service Provider agrees that it must pay interest of 1-1/2 percent 

per month or any part of a month to the subcontractor on any undisputed amount not paid on 

time to the subcontractor. The minimum monthly interest penalty payment for an unpaid 

balance of $100 or more is $10. For an unpaid balance of less than $100, the prime contractor 

shall pay the actual penalty due to the subcontractor. A subcontractor who prevails in a civil 

action to collect interest penalties from Service Provider must be awarded its costs and 

disbursements, including attorney’s fees, incurred in bringing the action. 

 

14. Compliance with Laws.  Service Provider will exercise due professional care to provide 

Services in accordance with applicable federal, state and local laws, rules, ordinances and 

regulations in effect from time to time.    

 

15. No Discrimination.  Service Provider agrees not to discriminate in providing products and 

services under this Agreement on the basis of race, color, sex, creed, national origin, disability, 

age, sexual orientation, status with regard to public assistance, or religion.   

 

16. Exclusive Agreement.  Customer agrees that it is retaining Service Provider as the sole mental 

health care provider for its law enforcement officers for the duration of this Agreement. All 

employer-paid check-ins, therapy sessions, and mental health care will be provided by Service 

Provider. Any and all fitness for duty or other evaluations will be sought elsewhere as Service 

Provider is a care provider and does not provide fitness for duty evaluations. 

 

17. Relationship of the Parties.  For the purpose of this Agreement, the relationship of a party 

and its employees, agents and servants to the other party and its respective employees, agents 

and servants will be that of independent contractors.  Nothing in this Agreement will be 

construed, implied, or deemed to create any other relationship between the parties, including 

one of employment, agency, joint venture, association, partnership, or any other form of 

separate legal entity or organization.  

 

18. Authority.  The parties represent and warrant that, upon its execution, this Agreement will be 

binding upon each of them and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 

19. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  Nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to 

confer any rights or remedies under, or by reason of, this Agreement on any person or entities 

other than the signatories hereto. 

 

20. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement, including any schedules, exhibits, amendments or 

attachments thereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the 

subject matter hereof.   

 

21. Severability.  If any term, provision or condition contained in this Agreement is deemed or 

declared unenforceable, invalid or void, the same will not impair or invalidate any of the other 

provisions contained herein, which will remain in full force and effect. 

 

22. Governing Law.  This Agreement and the rights of the parties hereunder will be governed and 

interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota.   



5 
 

 

23. Notices.  Any notices required to be given hereunder will be in writing and may be either 

emailed, delivered personally or sent by mail: 

 

  Service Provider: Marie Ridgeway LICSW, LLC 

    Attn: Marie Ridgeway, LICSW 

    3550 Lexington Avenue N, Suite 303,  

    Shoreview, MN  55126 

    marieridgeway@gmail.com 

 

 Customer:  Isanti Police Department 

    Attn: Chief Travis Muyres 

    401 1st Avenue NW 

    Isanti, MN 55040 

 

24. Waiver.  Waiver by a party of a breach of any provision of this Agreement will not operate as 

or be construed to be a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

 

25. Amendment.  This Agreement may be amended only by mutual agreement in writing executed 

by the parties. 

 

26. Headings.  The headings contained in this Agreement have been inserted for convenience of 

reference only and will in no way define, limit or affect the scope and intent of this Agreement. 

 

27. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall 

be deemed to be an original and all of which taken together shall constitute a single instrument. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Service Provider and Customer have caused this Agreement to 

be executed by their duly authorized representatives on the respective dates indicated below. 

 

 

SERVICE PROVIDER 

Marie Ridgeway LICSW, LLC 

 

By:  __________________________ 

        Marie Ridgeway, LICSW 

 

Its:  Lead Clinician/Owner 

 

Date:  __________________________ 

 

CUSTOMER 

Isanti Police Department 

 

By:  __________________________ 

 

Its:  ___________________________ 

 

Date:  _________________________ 

 

 

 

 



6 
 

 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

 

1. Services.  Service Provider and Customer agree that the primary purpose and spirit of these 

Services are to address personnel mental wellness and to reduce barriers, including lack of 

access to culturally competent care providers, to mental health care for law enforcement 

officers.  In furtherance of this goal, Service Provider will provide the following Services:  

 

a. Therapy Sessions.  Service Provider will provide individual mental health therapy 

sessions ("Therapy Sessions") to law enforcement officers employed by Customer 

("Clients").   

i. Number of Sessions.  Clients are eligible to receive up to six (6) Therapy 

Sessions per calendar year.  If authorized by the Customer, Service Provider 

may provide more than six (6) Therapy Sessions when doing so will provide 

a significant benefit to the Client.  Service Provider will request 

authorization for additional Therapy Sessions from Customer without 

sharing any identifying Client information.  

ii. Couples/Family Therapy Sessions.  If Service Provider and Client 

determine that it would be helpful to the Client to include the Client's 

significant other and/or household family members in a Therapy Session, 

Service Provider may invite such individuals to join Client in the Therapy 

Session.  In Service Provider's sole discretion, Service Provider may speak 

with Client's significant other individually as part of the Therapy Session.   

 

b. Individual Critical Incident Follow Up Sessions.  Upon request of Customer, 

Service Provider will provide individual mental health therapy to Clients following 

critical incidents ("CI Sessions").  Customer will notify Service Provider of all 

Clients required to complete a CI Check-In.  Service Provider will confirm Client 

attendance at CI Sessions but CI Sessions are otherwise strictly confidential and 

Service Provider will not share any substantive information with Customer.  CI 

Sessions are not fitness for duty evaluations. 

 

c. Mandatory Mental Health Check-Ins.  Service Provider will provide a mental health 

check-in ("MH Check-Ins") for each member of Customer's staff on an annual 

basis.  Service Provider will also provide a mental health check-in to each of 

Customer's new hires.  MH Check-Ins are opportunities for one-on-one 

consultation and education and are not mental health therapy.  Service Provider will 

confirm Client attendance at MH Check-Ins but MH Check-Ins are otherwise 

strictly confidential and Service Provider will not share any substantive information 

with Customer.    

 

d. On-Site and Consulting Services.  Service Provider will provide the following 

services as requested by Customer: 

i. Telephone or in-person consultation services regarding mental health and 

wellness.   



7 
 

ii. Attendance at roll calls at the start of the program and as needed to introduce 

the program, answer questions, and provide information.   

iii. Participation in ride-alongs as appropriate to be a familiar resource and 

support to the Customer and Clients.   

iv. Attendance at critical incident defusings or debriefings, when possible.   

v. In-person or remote presentations on mental health and wellness topics. 

 

e. Therapy Dog.  Service Provider owns a therapy dog in training (a male German 

Shepherd) and may bring the dog on-site when appropriate as mutually agreed upon 

by Customer and Service Provider.  

   

2. Logistics.  

 

a. Contact Information.  Customer will e-mail Service Provider's contact information 

to all Clients.  Customer will also post Service Provider's contact information in 

conspicuous locations within the department.   

 

b. Appointment Scheduling.  Customer will inform all Clients that they may call, text, 

or e-mail Service Provider directly to schedule appointments.  Appointments will 

be scheduled during normal business hours as mutually agreed by Service Provider 

and Clients.  For purposes of this Agreement, normal business hours shall mean 

between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday to Friday.  Evening and 

weekend appointments are available weekly, depending on therapist schedules. 

 

c. Location.  Unless otherwise agreed by Service Provider and Customer, Therapy 

Sessions, CI Check-Ins, and MH Check-Ins will occur at Service Provider's office.   

 

d. Urgent Requests.  Service Provider will use best efforts to accommodate urgent 

requests for appointments and other services provided under this Agreement as 

necessary to serve Client needs.  Customer agrees that Services provided on an 

urgent basis (less than five (5) business days notice) or outside of normal business 

hours will incur an additional fee specified in Exhibit B.    

 

  



8 
 

EXHIBIT B 

FEES/COMPENSATION 

 

Service Fee 

Therapy Sessions (Individual or Couple/Family) $150/session  

Critical Incident Follow Up Sessions $150/session  

MH Check-Ins  

• 50 minute $110/session 

• 30 minute $75/session  

Wellness Program Consulting  

• Minimum of 2 hours on-site 

$150/hour 

Healthy Family Presentation (1 hour of 

presentation time, up to 2 hours on site) 

$300 

Peer Support Consultation/Group Defusing or 

Debriefing 

• Minimum of 2 hours for on-site services 

$150/hour 

Familiarity Building Roll Call/Ride Along 

• Up to 3 hours 

$250 

• Urgent/Outside Normal Business Hours 

Fee  

$25/hour or $25/session, as applicable 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

 

APPROVING SHORT-TERM BUILDING INSPECTION SERVICES CONTRACT 

WITH RUM RIVER CONSTRUCTION CONSULTANTS  

 

 

 WHEREAS, at the May 4, 2021 City Council meeting staff was directed to send out an 

RFP for interim and backup building inspection services; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the RFP is not due until May 24, 2021 and will be considered at the June 1, 

2021 City Council meeting; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the current building official will be on vacation at the end of may and short-

term services are necessary; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed short-term services will be from May 20, 2021 to June 1, 

2021; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, Minnesota 

as follows: 

 

1. Approval of the proposed contract. 

2. Mayor and City Administrator are hereby authorized to execute said document. 

 

 

This Resolution is hereby approved by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

 

 

              

Attest:        Mayor Jeff Johnson 

 

 

      

Jaden Strand 

City Clerk 

    



CITY OF ISANTI
ISANTI COUNTY

STATE OF MINNESOTA

AGREEMENT FOR BUILDING OFFICIAL SERVICES

This Agreement for Building Official Services (the “Agreement”) is entered into on this______
day of ______________, 2021, by and between the City of Isanti (the “Municipality”) and Rum
River Ventures, LLC DBA Rum River Construction Consultants (the “Contractor”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Municipality is in need of professional services to fulfill the needs of
their building inspection services pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 326B.133; and

WHEREAS, Contractor has substantial experience as a Building Official and providing
building department inspection services implementing the State Building Code and is otherwise
qualified to assist the Municipality on an as needed basis for the same; and

WHEREAS, the Municipality desires to contract with Contractor to act as a Building
Official and/or provide building inspection services for the Municipality; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is engaged in an independent business and has complied with all
federal, state, and local laws regarding business permits and licenses of any kind that may be
required to carry out said business and the tasks as set forth in this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, Contractor is an independent contractor and may be engaged to perform the
same or similar activities for other municipalities during the term of this Agreement, and that
Contractor shall not work solely on behalf of Municipality.

NOW, THEREFORE, for the reasons set forth above, and in consideration of the mutual
promises and covenants made herein, it is agreed as follows:

I. Services. Contractor shall provide services to the Municipality on an as requested
basis for the prices set forth on Exhibit A attached hereto (the “Services”). Contractor shall
perform the Services in the capacity of a Certified Building Official, at the direction of the Chief
Building Official, under Minn. Stat. § 326B.133, in accordance with the Minnesota State
Building Code, applicable Municipality Ordinances, and applicable Minnesota law. The
Municipality understands that all transportation expenses incurred in the course of performing
the Services shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. Contractor reserves the right to change
the prices and services offered on Exhibit A from time to time, and shall provide the
Municipality 30 days written notice in advance of any such changes. Municipality agrees that in
the course of performing the Services, Contractor is acting as a public official on the
Municipality’s behalf.

1



II. Term. This Agreement shall commence on the date first written above and shall
continue for a period of one year therefrom, at which time the Agreement shall automatically
renew on a yearly basis until or unless terminated as specified below.

III. Performance. Contractor shall maintain licenses by the State of Minnesota as a
Certified Building Official and by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency as a Certified
Inspector for on-site septic systems. Contractor shall perform the Services in a manner consistent
with that of a reasonable and prudent Building Official. Contractor shall maintain an adequate
set of records in Municipality property files of all dates, types, and results of permits as required
when inspecting permitted work. If any work is requested outside of the scope of the services set
forth in Exhibit A, such work shall not commence until Contractor and the Municipality agree to
the terms, scope, price, and other details in writing (including via electronic mail). Such
additional work shall still be subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

IV. Duties and Powers of Building Official. As provided by Minnesota
Administrative rules 1300.0110, the Municipality and Building Official hereby appoint Rum
River Construction Consultants and its employees as Subd. 2. Deputies, and extend the Duties
and Powers of Building Official while providing services for the City of Andover.

V. Independent Contractor. Contractor shall perform the Services as an
independent contractor and agent of the Municipality, and not as an employee. No withholdings
or deductions shall be made from payments due to Contractor. Contractor shall not be eligible for
benefits, workers compensation, or unemployment benefits. To the extent allowable by law,
Contractor may subcontract the performance of certain administrative or other duties under the
Agreement.

VI. Insurance. During the entire term of this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain
the following insurances and will provide the Municipality of evidence of the same upon request:
(1) Commercial general liability insurance coverage with a policy limit of at least $1,500,000 per
occurrence; (2) Business automobile liability coverage with a total liability limits of at least
$1,500,000; and (3) Workers’ compensation insurance. If Contractor is not required by law to
carry workers’ compensation insurance, in place of proof of workers’ compensation insurance,
Contractor may provide a written statement of exemption specifying the particular provision of
Minn. Stat. § 176.041 that exempts Contractor from having to carry such coverage. If Contractor
is required by law to carry workers’ compensation insurance, Contractor shall, at the time of
execution of this Agreement, furnish evidence satisfactory to the Municipality that Contractor
maintains or is exempt from maintaining insurance coverage pursuant to the terms of this
Agreement.

VII. Amendments. Any alterations, variations, modifications, or changes of any
provisions of this Agreement shall only be valid when they have been reduced to writing and
signed by Municipality and Contractor.

VIII. Regulatory Compliance. Contractor shall abide by all federal, state, and local
laws, statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations now in effect or hereinafter adopted pertaining

2



to this Agreement or to the facilities, programs, and staff for which Contractor is responsible.
Contractor shall procure, at Contractor’s expense, all permits, licenses, or other rights required
for the provision of the Services. Any violation of federal, state, or local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules or regulations, as well as loss of any applicable license, permit, or certification
by Contractor shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement, regardless of the reason and
whether or not intentional, and shall entitle Municipality to terminate this Agreement effective as
of the date of such violation, failure, or loss.

IX. Data Practices Compliance. Contractor will have access to data collected or
maintained by the Municipality to the extent necessary to perform Contractor’s obligations under
this Agreement. Contractor agrees to maintain all data obtained from the Municipality in the
same manner as the Municipality is required under the Minnesota Government Data Practices
Act, Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13. Contractor will not release or disclose the contents of data
classified as not public to any person except at the written direction of the Municipality. Upon
termination of this Agreement, Contractor agrees to return all data pertaining to Municipality
business within 30 days of Agreement termination.

X. Termination. Either party may terminate this Agreement by providing written
notice to the other party 60 days prior to the termination. In the event of a material breach by
either party, the Agreement may be terminated with 10 days written notice to the other party. In
the event Municipality elects to terminate based upon an alleged material breach of the
Agreement by Contractor, Contractor shall have 10 days (or the least amount of time reasonably
necessary if longer than 10 days) to cure the breach.

XI. Billing and Payment. Invoices shall be submitted periodically (customarily on a
monthly basis) and are due and payable within 30 days of receipt by Municipality. Past due
balances shall accrue interest at a rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum rate of interest
permitted by law, if less).

XII. Choice of Law and Venue. This Agreement is being executed in and is intended
to be performed in the State of Minnesota, and shall be construed and enforced in accordance
with Minnesota law. The parties hereto consent and agree that any legal action arising from or
related to the Agreement shall be venued in Anoka County District Court, State of Minnesota.

XIII. Severability. The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable. If
any part of this Agreement is rendered void, invalid, or otherwise unenforceable, such rendering
shall not affect the validity and enforceability of the remainder of this Agreement.

XIV. Merger. The Parties acknowledge and represent that no promise or
representation not contained in this Agreement has been made to them, and acknowledge and
represent that this Agreement contains the entire understanding between the Parties and contains
all terms and conditions between them.

XV. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which shall constitute one and the same

3



instrument. For purposes of this Agreement, the use of facsimile, email, or other electronic
medium shall have the same force and effect as an original signature.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have signed and executed this Agreement, both in
duplicate, on the day and year first above written.

MUNICIPALITY

By: _______________________________

Its: _______________________________

Second Signature (if required by Municipality)

By: _______________________________

Its: _______________________________

CONTRACTOR

By: _______________________________

Its: ________________________________

4



Exhibit A
Services

● Building Inspection Services and Additional Requested Work.
o On call and as needed general building inspection services during normal business

hours will be billed at a rate of $85.00 per hour at the direction of the Chief
Building Official. In the absence of a Designated Building Official, Contractor
agrees to provide interim services at the above hourly rate.

o The above services may include building, mechanical, plumbing, septic, fire
inspections as well as those required under Delegation Agreement provisions
outlined by the Minnesota State Department of Labor and Industry.

o Performance of services as the Designated Building Official are to be negotiated
in a separate agreement and will be based on a percentage of fees collected.
Shared responsibilities between the City of Isanti and Contractor will result in a
proportionate distribution of fees.

● Transportation Costs. Contractor will provide transportation to meetings and site
inspections within the Municipality at no additional cost.

5



RESOLUTION 2021-XXX 

 ACCEPTING QUOTE FROM AA STORE FIXTURES FOR SALES FLOOR SHELVING AT 
LIQUOR STORE 

 WHEREAS, the Liquor Store Project will require sales floor shelving; and, 

WHEREAS, the existing liquor store is planned to be open every day until the new store opens; and, 

WHEREAS, the following quotes were received; and, 

Vendor Quote 
AA Store Fixtures  $    17,885.00 
SCR  $    28,536.00 
AA Equipment Company  $    33,010.00 
Allen Display  $    45,308.05 

WHEREAS, the low quote is for refurbished shelving, while the other 3 quotes were for new shelving; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Isanti, 
Minnesota to accept the quote from AA Store Fixtures for gondola style sales floor shelving, with funding 
coming from the 2021A bond issue. 

This resolution was duly adopted by the Isanti City Council this 18th day of May 2021. 

____________________________ 
Attest: Mayor Jeff Johnson 

__________________________________ 
Jaden Strand 
City Clerk 

L.12.





Quote
04/15/2021

Total $28,536.00

Project: From:
Isanti Liquor SCR

Jason Ellering
604 Lincoln Ave NE
St. Cloud, MN 56304
(320)251‐6861 
320‐258‐5141 (Contact)

Job Reference Number: 3308

Item Qty Description Sell Total

1 1 ea STORE SHELVING $28,536.00
Custom Model No. STORE SHELVING      
Lozier shelving per the following: Platinum color 
Island shelving, 60" high, 22" base decks, pegboard backs 
5 ‐ 40' long runs 
10 ‐ 4' wide end caps, 60" high, 22" base deck, pegboard front/solid
back with T stabilizers 
180 ‐ 4' x 22" deep shelves 
Island shelving, 60" high, 22" base decks, pegboard backs 
4 ‐ 28' long runs 
8 ‐ 4' wide end caps, 60" high, 22" base deck, pegboard back/solid front
with T stabilizers 
108 ‐ 4' x 22" deep shelves 
Wall shelving, 72" high, 22" base deck, pegboard front side only 
1 ‐ 52' long run 
39 ‐ 4' x 22" deep shelves 
1 ‐ 92' long wall run 
72 ‐ 4' x 22" deep shelves 

ITEM TOTAL: $28,536.00
2 NOTE

NOTE: DOES NOT INCLUDE SALES TAX, FREIGHT OR INSTALLATION 

Prices Good Until: 05/12/2021

 

Sell

$28,536.00

Isan  Liquor
Ini al: ______

Page 1 of 3



 
Unless noted sales tax, freight and installation are not included.

SCR Quote Declarations
 

The above quoted prices do not include:
* Electrical wiring * Control wiring

* Plumbing * Roof work and penetrations
* Structural work * Roof flashing

* Permits * Premium time

* Tax * Engineered Drawings
* Equipment Disposal * Floor cutting & patching

* Refrigeration under floor * PVC, pits and trenching
* Freight * Normal cleaning & maintenance

* 4 year extended compressor warranties - quoted separately

Date:______________ Initial:_______________
 

Warranty Statement
In all cases, unless otherwise noted, equipment manufacturer’s warranties will apply and be honored by SCR
and it is the customer’s responsibility to be aware of warranty time periods and start dates. Food product is
the customer’s responsibility and is not covered under any warranty.

· New equipment:__90 days_____Labor__1 year_____Parts

Per manufacturer - typical 1 year parts
· Refurbished equipment:__________Labor_____________Parts

· Existing and owner provided equipment - No warranty
· 90 day SCR warranty on LED labor, 5 yr. Innovative Lighting manufacturer’s warranty on parts

 

Notes:
- Electrical information or plan is not an engineered design, it is provided in good faith and is for electrical
contractor to design, not for bidding or building purposes

- Lost product/business due to any refrigeration malfunction is the owner''s responsibility as temp checks
are owner’s responsibility.
- Installation prices can vary depending upon what equipment is purchased.

- Any alteration or deviation from above specifications involving extra costs will be above the estimate.

- Installation is also dependent upon contractor being ready at job site upon our arrival. This correlates
closely with electricians, plumbers, and carpenters.
- All work to be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices.

- This agreement is contingent upon accidents or delays beyond our control.
- Owner is to carry necessary construction insurance.

All manufacturers have strict guidelines on how to operate and maintain their equipment. It is very important
the owner/operator familiarizes themselves with the manufacturer’s owner’s manuals that are provided with
the equipment when delivered. If the owner/operator need s additional information or is unclear on use of
equipment SCR will assist with this or provide additional training. Manufacturer’s warranties will be void if
owner/operator use equipment in a manner that is inconsistent with operation manual. When dealing with
equipment that is not serviced by SCR, it is up to the owner/operator to contact manufacturer to get an
approved service agent for equipment in question. Warranty claims need to be handled between end user
and manufacturer for proper coverage of warranty. SCR is not responsible for manufacturer warranty
policies.

 
*All freight delivered to site must be checked in by owner or owner's representative. Any damage must be
noted on the bill of lading. After receipt all equipment becomes the owner's full responsibility.

*By accepting this proposal, owner accepts financial liability for engineering, drawings, cancellation fees
and any other costs incurred in the project process.
*Pricing is valid for 30 days from date of quote.

SCR 04/15/2021

Isan  Liquor
Ini al: ______

Page 2 of 3



Acceptance: Date:

Printed Name:

 
Sincerely,
SCR Central
 
Jason Ellering
JE/km
 
Payments will be made as follows:
50% down / 50% upon completion
 

  

Project Grand Total: $28,536.00

  

 

SCR 04/15/2021

Isan  Liquor
Ini al: ______

Page 3 of 3



 

           
 
APRIL 19, 2021         QUOTE 
 
City of Isanti 
Attn: Mike Betker 
Isanti, MN 55040 
 
Dear Mike, 
 
We are pleased to quote you on the following store fixtures:  
 

LOZIER DISPLAY SHELVING 
 

Color / Finish: (PLT) Platinum  
Back Panel Style: (PLT) Solid 
 
5 40’ Island Unit, 60” High, 22”/22” Base Deck (06) 
 
4 28’ Island Unit, 60” High, 22”/22” Base Deck (06)  
 
18 4’ Wall End Display (End Cap), 60” High, 22” Base (06) 
 
 INCLUDES: Wall End Display Stabilizer 
 
288 4’ x 22” Adjustable Shelves (For Islands and End Caps)  
 
 
1 52’ Wall Unit, 72” High, 22” Base Deck (06) 
 
1 92’ Wall Unit, 72” High, 22” Base Deck (06)  
 
112 4’ x 22” Adjustable Shelves (For Wall Units)  
 

TOTAL FIXTURE COMPONENTS AS LISTED: $ 33,010.00 
    
 
 
 
** Current factory lead time is estimated at 16 weeks. Pricing is subject to change due 
to 2021 third quarter raw material surcharges are yet to be published from Lozier 
Corporation ** 



                        
  

4/19/21                CityofIsanti_AAEquip_Quote_N041921 

   Page 2 of 2  

 
FACTORY FREIGHT EXTRA. 

 
SALES TAX EXTRA IF APPLICABLE. 

 
PRICES ON THIS QUOTATION ARE VALID FOR 30 DAYS. 

 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
AA Equipment Company, Inc. 
 

  
   
  Nick Larsen 









Reported Crime Month to Date Year to Date

Theft 10 35

Assault 4 12

Vandalism/Damage to Property 14 22

Narcotics 6 18

Burglary 0 3

Domestics 5 23

Crim Sex 2 5

Robbery 0 0

Loud Party/Disturbance 3 14

Medical 31 124

Permit to Purchase 12 51

Security Check / Extra Patrol 375 1,646

Traffic Offenses Month to Date Year to Date

No Insurance 6 26

DUI 1 4

Accidents 7 32

Hit & Run 0 0

Warrant P/U 4 14

Speed 9 45

DAR/DAS 4 15

Administrative Citations (Including 

Speed) 6 37

Squad Mileage Month End Mileage Month Miles YTD Miles

Ford Explorer 221 97,970 576 2,169

Ford Explorer 224 95,733 635 2,696

Ford F150 225 44,259 905 2,987

Chevy Impala 223 98,789 241 772

Dodge Durango 226 30,376 1,218 4,382

Dodge Durango 227 36,214 775 4,806

Dodge Durango 228 14,960 1,860 7,274

Chevy Tahoe 229 5,520 995 5,520

Isanti Police Department Monthly Report

April 2021

M.1.



M.2.



CITY OF ISANTI MONTHLY REPORT

April 2021

RESIDENTIAL

Month YTD Month YTD Month Quarter Month YTD Month YTD

FENCE 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOF / SIDING 24 62 $0.00 $0.00 $24.00 $24.00 $1,920.00 $4,960.00

DECK 8 10 $0.00 $3,000.00 $8.00 $8.00 $2,400.00 $2,853.45

LL FINISH 5 12 $0.00 $7,000.00 $3.00 $3.00 $1,026.00 $2,778.88

REMODEL / ADDITION 1 2 $0.00 $15,650.00 $2.50 $2.50 $123.00 $598.20

GARAGE / SHED 0 1 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $80.00

MISCELLANEOUS 11 55 $0.00 $65,000.00 $10.00 $10.00 $820.00 $5,860.00

SINGLE DWELLINGS 11 23 $2,134,357.00 $4,611,325.00 $1,054.50 $1,054.50 $28,625.50 $62,577.50

MULTI DWELLINGS 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

MECHANICAL 16 48 $0.00 $0.00 $16.00 $16.00 $1,125.00 $3,520.00

PLUMBING 16 45 $0.00 $0.00 $15.00 $15.00 $1,330.00 $3,736.00

RESIDENTIAL TOTAL 92 258 $2,134,357.00 $4,701,975.00 $1,133.00 $1,133.00 $37,369.50 $86,964.03

COMMERCIAL

NEW BUILDINGS 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

REMODEL / ADDITION 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

PLUMBING 2 2 $0.00 $0.00 $5.40 $5.40 $186.00 $186.00

MECHANICAL 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

ROOF / SIDING 0 2 $0.00 $15 150.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1 728.50

MISCELLANEOUS 6 29 $0.00 $113 390.00 $5.00 $45.70 $358.00 $4 822.20

COMMERCIAL TOTAL 8 33 $0.00 $128,540.00 $10.40 $51.10 $544.00 $6,736.70

RESIDENTIAL/COMMERCIAL TOTAL 100 291 $2,134,357.00 $4,830,515.00 $1,143.40 $1,184.10 $37,913.50 $93,700.73 $70,125.00 $146,321.00

Number of permits Value of permits Surcharge Permit Fees Sac/Wac Fees

M.3.



h:\isan\0r1123130\1_corres\c_to others\2021-05-12 123130_proj stat rep.docx 

MEMORANDUM 

Date: May 12, 2021 

To: Honorable Mayor Johnson and Members of the City Council 

From: Jason W Cook, P.E. 

City Engineer 

Subject: Project Status Report 

Project No.: 0R1.123310, Isanti, MN 

Please find listed below a status report of the current projects in the City of Isanti: 

1) Liquor Store Site

Sewer, water, and storm sewer will be completed by May 14, 2021.  Building footings will be 

constructed this month. 

2) Main Street Reconstruction

The project bid opening is scheduled for June 1, 2021. 

3) Eagle Park Parking Lot Reconstruction

We have added this as an alternate to the Main Street Reconstruction bid package to be evaluated 

after bids are received. 

4) Heritage Walk Improvements

We have added this as an alternate to the Main Street Reconstruction bid package to be evaluated 

after bids are received. 

5) 2021 Pavement Management Project

The project bid opening is scheduled for June 1, 2021. 

6) 2021 Storm System Management Project

This project has been awarded to DW Companies.  They are scheduled to begin work on Whiskey 

Road later this month. 

7) 6th Avenue Rehabilitation

Punchlist items will be completed this spring.  Sod will be maintained by the contractor through 

May 15, 2021. 

8) Legacy Pines 2nd & 3rd Additions

Punchlist items will be addressed in the spring on 2nd Addition. Sidewalks and final pavement 

surfaces will be completed in the spring on 3rd Addition Phases 1 & 2. 3rd Addition Phase 3 has 

installed the underground utilities and will complete Eagle Street construction this summer. 

M.4.



Name: Project Status Report 
Date: May 12, 2021 
Page: 2 
 

 

9)  Fairway Greens South Development 

A new development is proposed to extend Wendover Street NE.  The project is planned for 

construction this summer/fall. 

10)  Fairway Greens North Development 

A new development is proposed to extend to the NE along 7th Avenue from Cajima Street near the 

Arts & Science Academy.  The first phase is planned for construction this summer. 

11)  Caribou Coffee 

The Caribou Coffee project at the intersection of 5th Avenue NE & Main Street is scheduled to 

begin construction this month. 

12)  MS4 Implementation  

We assisted the City with completing the MS4 permit application and will continue to assist the 

City as requested to meet MS4 requirements. 

Please contact me if you have any questions.  




